
 
 
 
 

 

Livingston County Water & Sewer Authority 
PO Box 396, 1997 D’Angelo Drive, Lakeville, NY 14480 

(585) 346-3523 
www.lcwsa.us 

 
 
 

 

Executive Director 
Jason Molino 

 
Deputy Director 

Lauren Monaghan 

Agenda 
March 15, 2023 at 8:00 a.m. 

Watershed Education Center (Vitale Park) 
Lakeville, NY 14480 

All attachments and reports may be found at 
www.lcwsa.us 

 
1. Call to Order 

 
2. Approval of Agenda 

 
3. Approval of Minutes  

a. February 15, 2023 – Regular Meeting 
b. March 8, 2023 – Audit & Finance Committee Meeting  

 
4. Reports 

a. Financial Report - February 2023 
i. Approval of Financial Report 

 
b. Operation/Capital Report 

 
c. Executive Director’s Report  

i. Internal Assessment  
ii. Capital Project Bond 

iii. 2023 Work Plan 
 

5. Other Business 
 

Resolution No.:  2023-10  RESOLUTION ADOPTING ADMINISTRATIVE POLICIES A-001 – A-004  
 
Resolution No.:  2023-11  RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE 2022 FINANCIAL AUDIT 
 

6. Executive Session 
 

7. Adjournment 
 

 
 
 

Next Regular Meeting: Wednesday, April 19, 2023 @ 8 am 
 

http://www.lcwsa.us/


 
 
 
 

 

Livingston County Water & Sewer Authority 
PO Box 396, 1997 D’Angelo Drive, Lakeville, NY 14480 

(585) 346-3523 

 
 
 

 

Executive Director 
Jason Molino 

 
Deputy Director 

Lauren Monaghan 

Unreviewed Minutes 
REGULAR MEETING  

January 18, 2023 at 8:00 am 
Watershed Education Center (Vitale Park) 

Lakeville, NY 14480 
 
Members Attending:  B. Ceci, Ted Saunders, S. Beardsley, and D. Fanaro 
 
Others attending:  J. Molino (Executive Director), L. Monaghan (Executive Deputy Director), M. Kosakowski 

(Director of Operations) arrived at 8:24, S. Wright (Secretary) and J. Campbell (Attorney) 
 
Call to Order:   8:02 a.m. 
 
Approval of Agenda: 

Motion: T. Saunders moved, and S. Beardsley seconded to approve the agenda. Carried unanimously.   
  
Open Public Hearing: 
 At 8:02 a.m., the public hearing for the proposed 2023 Fee Scheduled was opened.  

Motion: D. Fanaro opened the public hearing. Carried unanimously.  
 
Approval of Minutes: 

January 18, 2023 - Organizational Meeting and Regular Meeting 
Motion: S. Beardsley moved, and B. Ceci seconded to approve the organizational and regular board meeting 
minutes dated January 18, 2023. Carried unanimously.  
  

Reports: 
       Financial Report – January 2022  

J. Molino reviewed the Financial Report with the Board (on file with Secretary).   
  
       Operations and Capital Report  

J. Molino reviewed the Operations and Capital Reports with the Board (on file with Secretary). 
   

        Executive Director Report 
J. Molino reviewed: 

• LCWSA received $450,000 from the Local Efficiency Grant Program. With this grant funding, 
LCWSA will purchase a vacuum truck and construct a garage large enough to house the truck. 
Conceptual drawings show a one bay garage with the ability to expand for additional bays and/or 
shop or office space. After lengthy discussion, it was agreed that the Authority should consider 
adding administrative space as part of this new building.   

• There is a need to construct permanent storage for phosphorus at the Lakeville Treatment Plant. 
Currently, LCWSA is using totes for storage, but this is not cost effective. A storage solution needs 
to be considered and will be designed.  

• The UV project at the Groveland Treatment Plant will be moving forward this year. LCWSA has 
received some grant funding for the project. The bidding needs to be awarded by May 1st as a 
requirement of our SPEDES permit.  

• While working with customers as part of the Meter Replacement Program, many unique situations 
have arisen. Meters are in crawls spaces or in spaces that require extensive structural or plumbing 
changes to install the new meter correctly and safely. As a result, LCWSA has determined that 



 
 
 
 

 

Livingston County Water & Sewer Authority 
PO Box 396, 1997 D’Angelo Drive, Lakeville, NY 14480 

(585) 346-3523 

 
 
 

 

Executive Director 
Jason Molino 

 
Deputy Director 

Lauren Monaghan 

some properties may need a meter pit instead. The Authority can require the property owner install 
a meter pit but will be working with property owners to spread the cost to the owner of over four 
quarters.  

 
Other Business:  
 Resolutions: 

2023-08 RESOLUTION DELCARING EQUIPMENT AS SUPRLUS PROPERTY  
Motion: T. Saunders moved, and B. Ceci seconded to approve Resolution 2023-08. Carried 
unanimously. 

 
Close Public Hearing:  

Motion: At 9:25 a.m., T. Saunders moved, and B. Ceci seconded to close the public hearing. Carried 
unanimously.                         

 
2023-09 RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE REVISED 2023 FEE SCHEDULE  
 Motion: S. Beardsley moved, and B. Ceci seconded to approve Resolution 2023-09. Carried 

unanimously.                        
 
Executive Session:  

Motion: S. Beardsley moved, and T. Saunders seconded that the board reconvene in Executive Session at 9:26                 
a.m. for the purpose of discussions concerning the employments history of a particular person or corporation, 
or matter leading to the appointment. Employment, promotion, demotion, discipline, suspension, dismissal or 
removal of a particular person or corporation. Carried unanimously. 
 
Motion: S. Beardsley moved, and T. Saunders to end the Executive Session at 9:39 a.m. with no action taken. 
Carried unanimously. 
 

Adjournment – 9:39 a.m.  
Motion: S. Beardsley moved, and B. Ceci seconded to close the meeting. Carried unanimously. 



 
 
 
 

 

Livingston County Water & Sewer Authority 
PO Box 396, 1997 D’Angelo Drive, Lakeville, NY 14480 

(585) 346-3523 
www.lcwsa.us 

 
 
 

 

Executive Director 
Jason Molino 

 
Deputy Director 

Lauren Monaghan 

Unreviewed Minutes 
AUDIT & FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 

March 8, 2023 at 8:00 a.m. 
Watershed Education Center (Vitale Park) 

Lakeville, NY 14480 
 

Members Attending:  Don Higgins (via phone), Mike Falk, and Steve Beardsley 
 
Others attending:  J. Molino (Executive Director), R. Lewis (Principal Accountant), S. Wright (Secretary) and 

Randy Shepard (Bonadio & Co., LLP) 
 

 
R. Shepard reviewed the 2022 Draft Required Communication Letter and Financial Statements 

 
S. Beardsley asked for clarification regarding the “Client Adjustment” amount of $46,838. R. Shepard and R. Lewis will 
research this adjustment and have an explanation for the Regular Board Meeting.  
 
M. Falk inquired about the Authority’s Post-65 Medical Coverage as part of the Noncurrent Liabilities and informed the 
Committee that Livingston County has recently changed their provider for the benefit.  
 
S. Beardsley complimented the Management Discussion and Analysis Future Factors for its thorough and 
comprehensive explanation of the Authority's ongoing projects.  
 
The Committee agreed to present the Required Communication Letter and Financial Statements to the Board for 
approval at the March 15, 2023 meeting.  

 
 
 

 

http://www.lcwsa.us/


LIVINGSTON COUNTY 

SA 
WATER & SEWER AUTHORITY 

Livingston County Water & Sewer Authority 
1997 D'Angelo Drive 
POBox396 

CD Lakeville, NY 14480 
Phone: (585) 346-3523 
e-mail: rlewis@lcwsa.us
Fax:(585)346-0954
TTY NY: (800) 662-1220

Board Financial Report 
February 2023 

Operating Cash (Reserve) 

Debt Reserve Bank Balance 

Restricted Cash: 

ASSETS 

$1,111,857 p.3a

$ 886,196 p.3b

$ 375,426 p.3d
Town of Caledonia ($11,354) 
On Deposit M & T ($364,072) 

Accounts Receivable $ 1,126,369 p.3c

Work-In-Progress (WIP Report Attached) $653,995 p.4e

Current Liabilities 
Accrued Interest & Retirement $ 18,635 
Current Portions Loans, $2,251, 177 
Debt & Lease 
Funds Held for Others 
Other AP 

Long Term Liabilities 
LT Debt 
V. Livonia Lease
Deferred Outflow-Pension
Deferred Outflow-OPEB
Deferred Inflow-OPEB
Deferred Inflow-Pension
OPEB
Compensated Absences

$ 33,152 
$ 1,198 

$9,690,661 
$ 194,120 
$(501,901) 
$(403,469) 
$90,126 
$ 604,288 
$2,222,978 
$ 56,622 

LIABILITIES 

$ 2,304,163 p. 3f

$11,953,425 

Cash Report p. 4 

WIP Report p.5 

p.3g

This is an Equal Opportunity Program. Discrimination is prohibited by Federal law. Complaints of discrimination may be filed 1 
with USDA, Director, Office of Civil Rights, Room 326-W, Whitten Building, 1400 Independence Ave., SW, Washington, DC 

20250-9410 



Year to Date Revenue 

Increases 
Retail Fees 
0 & M Service 

$23,910 
$10,120 

Year to Date Expenses 

REVENUE 

2023 Budget Revenue-$3,743,714 

$372,401 

Timing of Compact Of Towns Payments 

EXPENSES 

2023 Budget Expenses -$3, 739,387 

$341,276 (approx .. 9% of Budget) 

Increase of $1,259 from same time last year 

p.6a

p.7 a

Increases 
Wages & Fringe $58,337 Additional staff, wages increases, increased Health Care 

Decreases 
Purchased Water & Sewer 
Building Repair 

$30,320 
$19,199 

Auditors on site 2/13/23-2/17 /23 

New for2023 

Timing of receiving bills 

We will process bills twice per month, both sessions will include: 
utilities, projects & standard bills. 
The Financial Report will include bills paid the previous month. 

Operating disbursements 

Capital Project disbursements 

Total Disbursements 

2/1/23-2/28/23 

2/1/23-2/28/23 

$246,978.12 

$106,290.75 

$353,268 .87 

This is an Equal Opportunity Program. Discrimination is prohibited by Federal law. Complaints of discrimination may be filed 2 
with USDA, Director, Office of Civil Rights, Room 326-W, Whitten Building, 1400 Independence Ave., SW, Washington, DC 

20250-9410 



Livingston County WSA 

Balance Sheet 

As of 2/28/2023 
(In Whole Numbers) 

Current Year 
Current Year Prior Year Change Beginning Year Bal ... YTD Change 

CURRENT ASSETS 

Operating Cash 1,111,857 Q_ 416,898 694,960 1,183,052 (71,195) 
Debt Reserve ss6,196 D 911,164 (24,968) 852,249 33,947 
Accounts Receivable 1,126,369 {:_ 555,306 571,063 1,113,036 13,333 
Capital Contributions Receivable 55,716 41,048 14,668 57,289 (1,573) 
Inventory 10,420 39,435 (29,014) 9,773 647 
Prepaid Expenses 107,129 13,381 93,748 158,996 (51,867) 
Funds held for Others 33 145 27 963 5 182 42 300 {9,155) 

Total CURRENT ASSETS 3,330,833 2,005,194 1,325,638 3,416,696 (85,863) 
Total Current Assets 3,330,833 2,005,194 1,325,638 3 416 696 {85,863) 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 

375,4260\
Restricted Cash 667,365 (291,939) 375,370 56 
Capital Contrib Receivable, net current 592,057 632,064 (40,007) 592,057 0 
Property & Equipment, Net Depree 40,269,972 24,089,313 16,180,659 40,512,895 (242,923) 
Work-In-Progress 653 995 8,032,971 {7,378,976) 1 457 413 {803,418) 

Total NON-CURRENT ASSETS 41,891,450 33,421,713 8,469,737 42,937,736 (1,046,286) 
Total Non-Current Assets 41,891,450 33,421,713 8 469 737 42 937 736 {1,046,286) 

TOT AL ASSETS 45,222,282 35,426,907 9,795,376 46,354,431 {1,132,149) 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Accounts Payable 18,635 96,153 (77,518) 56,356 (37,721) 
Current Portion Loans Payable 2,251,177 1,224,005 1,027,172 2,067,468 183,709 
Other Current Liabilities 1,198 (1,257,411) 1,258,609 1,112,704 (1,111,505) 
Funds held for others 33,152 27 963 5 189 42 300 {9,148) 

Total CURRENT LIABILITIES 2,304,163 � 90,710 2,213,453 3,278,828 (974,665) 
Total Current Liabilities {2,304,163) (90,710) (2,213,453) {3,278,828) 974.665 

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 

System Revenue Notes Payable 11,953,425 3,961.225 7,992,200 11,953,425 0 
Total NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 11,953,425 � 3,961,225 7,992,200 11,953,425 0 

Retained Earnings & Net Position

Retained Earnings (31,628,957) (32,317,116) 688,159 (31,628,957) 0 
Net Income 168 998 942 144 (773,147) 0 168 998 

Total Retained Earnings & Net Position (31,459,959) (31,374,971) (84,988) (31,628,957) 168,998 

®
Total Net Position 45,717,547 35,426,906 10,290,640 46,861,209 (1,143,663) 

- - ·---- -- .. , .. -..... 



Mar-22 Apr-22 May-22 Jun-22 Jul-22 Aug-22 

Actual Actual Acual Actual Actual Actual 
Cash on hand 1st of 

each month $ 850 $ 1,139 $ 1,151 $ 1,519 $ 1,254 $ 817 $ 

Cash Received 

Customer Billing 356.5 64.6 328.8 477.6 50 363.2 

Miscellaneous 1 0.6 0.2 1 
Grant/Contributions/EFC 

Draws 845.9 
Billing Services/O & M 

Services 16.8 15 3.8 13.2 16.3 
Relevy 250.5 
Estimated Cash 

Receipts 

Cash Receipts 

Debt/Grant/Contrib 

Receipts 404.2 655.8 125.6 379 
EFC 

Cash Balance before 

expenditures $ 1,629 $ 2,125 $ 2,326 $ 2,126 $ 1,317 $ 1,579 $ 

187.7 158.4 166 319.4 169.4 216.7 
Operating Vouchers 88.8 77.3 93 95.7 83.6 269.1 

Project Vouchers 213.3 738 548.7 456.7 247.4 163.4 

Estimated Expenditures 

Utilities 

Operating 

Projects 

Cash Balance after 

expenditures $ 1,139 $ 1,151 $ 1,519 $ 1,254 $ 817 $ 930 $ 

Reserve Projects in 

Progress Budget Bal + 

Equipment to Purchase 728 759 707 707 435 413 

Unallocated Cash 

Balance $ 411 $ 392 $ 812 $ 547 $ 382 $ 517 $ 

Sep-22 Oct-22 Nov-22 Dec-22 

Actual Actual Actual Actual 

930 $ 1,779 $ 1,281 $ 1,185 

474.5 46.4 387.4 445.7 

1 9.3 1.5 10 

197 

13.2 4 

443.7 

859.2 260 

2,712 $ 1,838 $ 1,946 $ 1,844 

304.5 259.7 160.6 

40 185.9 217.5 491.6 

587.8 111.4 383.4 162.7 

1,779 $ 1,281 $ 1,185 $ 1,190 

397 390 387 293 

1,382 $ 891 $ 798 $ 897 

Jan-23 

Actual 

$ 1,183 

28 

32 

71.5 

183.7 

$ 1,501 

214.7 

69.1 

$ 1,217 

I 

293 

$ 924 

Feb-23 

Actual 

$ 

-·

-
-

-

$ 

s 

� 

$ 

1,217 

216.7 

2.2 

-,

. . 

11.6 

- -

1,448 

247 

106.2 

•• I 
< 

r. --· 

··• 

. - , 

1,09S 

269 

826 

Mar-23 April 

Estim Estim 

$ 1,095 $ 1,475 

625 65 

15 

225 

$ 1,735 $ 1,765 

250 250 

10 10 

$ 1,475 $ 1,505 

259 249 

$ 1,216 $ 1,256 

@ 



Project 

Code Project Name 

DEBT & REIMBURSABLE PROJECTS 

31131 WaterSystem hnprovements (EFC WIIA) 

31142 Upgrade Lakeville Plant Phase 2 
Groveland Wastewater Treatment Plant Disinfection 

31132 Project 

31121 Lakeville WWTP Phosphorus Removal 

31450 LeicesterNork Regional Water Project 

31455 Conesus Lake PS hnprovements 

GENERAL RESERVE PROJECTS 

31148 SCADA System Wide hnprovements (Phase 1) 

31146 PS Heating & Vent Upgrades 

Groveland Station 
Total General Reserve Projects 

Total WIP Expense ( GL 1600) 

Studies/ Non Capitalization 
Phase 2 Collection System Inflow cl Infiltration Study 

Project 

Avon WWTP Evaluation -Study 

ERP Review (Billing/ Accounting Software) 

Rate Study and Analysis 
-

Operation and Admin Bldg Assessment 

Total Studies 

Less Grants 

Total Project Cash Committed 

Expenditures 

Expenses 

45,146.11 

88,725.99 

26,600.00 

12,738.58 

261,777.50 

7,412.40 

442,400.58 

206,686.40 

4,907.99 

211,594.39 

653,994.97 

7,557.18 

15,600.00 

- .. . 

--� � -

-· 

-

-

-

Capitalized 

3,351,506.26 

4,309,052.41 

- .. 

-

Budget 

8,658,000.00 

5,525,016.06 

526,070.00 

247,500.00 

5,000,000.00 

370,000.00 

28,700.00 

- .. 

120,000.00 

30,000.00 

25,000.00 

20,000.00 

25,000.00 

7,500.00 

I 

Budget 

Balance Funding 

·-

5,261,347.63 WIIA Grant/Loan 

1,127,237.66 EFC Grant/Loan CS-6449-05-00 

499,470.00 

234,761.42 

7,122,816.71 

163,313.60 

23,792.01 

187,105.61 

.. 

112,442.82 

14,400.00 

25,000.00 

20,000.00 

25,000.00 

7,500.00 
204,342.82 

122,soo.oo I 

268,948.43 

WQIP 

WQIPNo. 111711 

WIIAGrant 

-·-· -- . 

EPG No. 10S113 

(V) Avon/ (f) Avon/ LC IDA 

: 

-

. . 
. --

- -

- ·

-:-
--

GranUContrib 
uted 

$ 3,000,000 

$ 367,576 

$ 198,055 

$ 1,250,000 

,. ·�,: 

I 

$ 100,000 

$ 22,500.00 

· ... 

, .. 
_. 

Feb-23 

Financing 

Reserve Debt Date Began End Date 

$ 3,842,000.00 7/12/2019 12/31/2024 

5,525,016.06 1/1/2022 12/31/2022 

$ 158,494 1/1/2022 12/31/2023 

$ 49,445 1/1/2022 12/31/2022 

1/1/2022 12/31/2022 

-

$ 20,000 ·- 1/1/2022 12/31/2023 
-·-

$ 7,500.00 1/1/2022 12/31/2022 

$ 25,000 - 1/1/2022 12/31/2022 
-

$ 20,000 .. 1/1/2022 12/31/2022 

$ 25,000 
.. • ·

·-· 

1/1/2022 12/31/2022 

$ 7,500 1/1/2022 12/31/2022 

(§ 



Livingston County WSA 
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures - Un posted Transactions Included lo Report 

From 2/1/2023 Through 2/28/2023 

Current Period YTD Last Year Total Budget 
Actual YID Actual Actual Current Year Change Total Budget Variance 

OPERATING REVENUE 
Fees 

4110 Retail Fees 841,654.79 315,111.12 291,201.13 23,909.99 3,416,888.00 (3,101,776.88) 
4120 Wholesale Fees 156.00 156.00 194.00 (38.00) 0.00 156.00 
4125 Wholesale Fees V Caledonia 19

2
894.00 35

2
062.86 15

2
145.91 19 916.95 0.00 35

2
062.86 

Total Fees 861,704.79 350,329.98 306,541.04 43,788.94 3,416,888.00 (3,066,558.02) 
Permit Fees 

4200 Permits 1 400.00 1
2
605.00 8 588.89 (6

2
983.89} 45

2
000.00 {43

2
395.00} 

Total Permit Fees 1,400.00 1,605.00 8,588.89 (6,983.89) 45,000.00 (43,395.00) 
O&M Services 

4130 O & M  Service 10,120.00 10
2
120.00 0.00 10,120.00 23

2
000.00 (12

2
880.00} 

Total O&M Services 10,120.00 10,120.00 0.00 10,120.00 23,000.00 (12,880.00) 
Other Income 

4140 Late Fees 1,783.25 2,573.25 496.40 2,076.85 36,326.00 (33,752.75) 
4160 Billing Services 1,528.15 1,528.15 500.00 1,028.15 0.00 1,528.15 
4410 Miscellaneous Income (6.66} 6

2
244.40 1 658.65 4 585.75 222

2
500.00 (216

2
255.60} 

Total Other Income 3 304.74 10)45.80 2
2
655.05 7 690.75 258

2
826.00 (248

2
480.20} 

Total OPERATING REVENUE 876,529.53 L :t72,4QOJ8 317,784.98 54,615.80 3,743,714.00 Q... (3,371,313.22) 
OPERATING EXPENSE 

Wages & Fringes 
5010 Wages & Salaries 89,682.31 137,600.46 99,455.19 38,145.27 1,196,773.00 1,059,172.54 
5020 Overtime 4,694.68 6,150.98 6,330.31 (179.33) 46,782.00 40,631.02 
5030 FICA 7,261.30 10,882.99 7,261.13 3,621.86 94,924.00 84,041.01 
5040 Retirement 8,239.41 21,548.00 19,638.41 1,909.59 139,874.00 118,326.00 
5048 Retiree Health Insurance 2,036.30 2,036.30 2,795.64 (759.34) 37,620.00 35,583.70 
5050 Health Insurance 0.00 72,194.30 54,509.15 17,685.15 363,601.00 291,406.70 
5060 Workman's Compensation/Disability 0.00 17,638.24 19,343.63 (1,705.39) 20,141.00 2,502.76 
5070 Unemployment 2

2
028.24 3 790.76 4,171.34 (380.58} 15,000.00 11

2
209.24 

Total Wages & Fringes 113,942.24 271,842.03 213,504.80 58,337.23 1,914,715.00 1,642,872.97 
Professional Services 

6110 Legal Services 1,124.00 1,124.00 178.50 945.50 25,350.00 24,226.00 
6120 Engineering Services 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 25,000.00 25,000.00 
6125 Project Engineering NC 3,000.00 3,000.00 0.00 3,000.00 0.00 (3,000.00) 
6130 Financial Services 492.29 6,509.47 7,252.66 (743.19) 18,300.00 11,790.53 
6140 Computer Services 480.00 659.98 1,204.90 (544.92) 30,800.00 30,140.02 
6150 Insurance 8

2
200.00 16

2
406.60 16

2
200.00 206.60 l 12

Z
000.00 95

2
593.40 

Total Professional Services 13,296.29 27,700.05 24,836.06 2,863.99 211,450.00 183,749.95 
Utilities 

6210 Electricity 22,487.94 16,284.09 19,720.24 (3,436.15) 287,426.00 271,141.91 

®
6220 Gas/Heating 1,413.41 971.38 1,041.90 (70.52) 33,600.00 32,628.62 
6230 Telephone 741.86 1,980.56 5,137.04 (3,156.48) 23,707.00 21,726.44 

... , ... , .................. . . ..... 6 Pi1n,.· l 



Livingston County WSA 

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures - Unposted Transactions Included In Report 

From 2/1/2023 Through 2/28/2023 

Current Period YTD Last Year Total Budget 
Actual YTD Actual Actual Current Year Change Total Budget Variance -

Total Utilities 24: 643 21 1923603 25 822 18 (6 663 15) 34:4:'.23300 325 4:26 21 
Vehicle Expense 

6420 Vehicle Maint 1,548.20 1,548.20 2,839.95 (1,291.75) 16,000.00 14,451.80 
6430 Gasoline 12

2
096.76 (756.28} 0.00 {756.28} 37,600.00 38,356.28 

Total Vehicle Expense 13,644.96 791.92 2,839.95 (2,048.03) 53,600.00 52,808.08 
Purchased Water/Sewer 

6510 Purchased Water 13,037.26 (15,735.53) 972.76 (16,708.29) 376,908.00 392,643.53 
6515 Purchased WaterMCWA 19,874.25 19,874.25 15,145.25 4,729.00 0.00 (19,874.25) 
6520 Purchased Sewer Treatment 7,466.58 (8

2
757.55} 4 854.30 (13,611.85} 79,500.00 88,257.55 

Total Purchased Water/Sewer 40,378.09 (4,618.83) 20,972.31 (25,591.14) 456,408.00 461,026.83 
Equipment Maintenance 

6610 Equipment Repair/Supply 25.18 25.18 84.33 (59.15) 13,125.00 13,099.82 
6625 Small Equipment Purchase 1,511.97 1,511.97 (2,529.62) 4,041.59 72,155.00 70,643.03 
6635 Equip Lease/Rental Contracts 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 65,000.00 65

2
000.00 

Total Equipment Maintenance 1,537.15 1,537.15 (2,445.29) 3,982.44 150,280.00 148,742.85 
Building Maintenace 

6310 Outside O&M Services 23,755.53 16,788.53 3,027.30 13,761.23 241,500.00 224,711.47 
6320 Laboratory Services 3,819.00 2,872.00 1,817.00 1,055.00 0.00 (2,872.00) 
6350 Refuse Collection 175.00 1,149.69 1,559.67 (409.98) 9,800.00 8,650.31 
6360 Cleaning Service 375.00 375.00 300.00 75.00 4,000.00 3,625.00 
6620 Building Repair/Supply 17,788.76 (2,280.24) 16,918.79 (19,199.03) 183,178.00 185,458.24 
6640 Customer Installation Supplies 0.00 0.00 24,443.56 (24,443.56} 38,908.00 38,908.00 

Total Building Maintenace 45,913.29 18,904.98 48,066.32 (29,161.34) 477,386.00 458,481.02 
Other Expenses 

6340 Uniforms/Clothing 650.89 650.89 211.00 439.89 7,050.00 6,399.11 
6700 Permits, Fees & Inspections 47.50 47.50 0.00 47.50 23,915.00 23,867.50 
6810 Postage & Freight 182.68 182.68 2,790.69 (2,608.01) 15,100.00 14,917.32 
6820 Office Supplies 262.11 529.35 640.33 (110.98) 4,760.00 4,230.65 
6830 Advertising 777.70 822.51 1,507.36 (684.85) 3,990.00 3,167.49 
6840 Travel & Training 3 649.80 3,649.80 3 712.77 (62.97} 35,000.00 31

2
350.20 

Total Other Expenses 5,570.68 5,882.73 8,862.15 (2,979.42) 89,815.00 83,932.27 
Easements & Judgements 

6870 Easements & Landtaking 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 40,500.00 40,500.00 
6880 Judgements & Claims 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 500.00 

Total Easements & Judgements 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 41,000.00 41,000.00 
Total OPERATING EXPENSE 258,925.91 [J4J

-,
216.D61 342535.48 (1,259.42} 3,739

2
387.0c(J__. 3,398,110.94 

GAIN/LOSS BEF DEPRECIATION 617
2
603.62 31,124.72 (24

2
750.50} 55,875.22 4 327.00 26,797.72 

DEPRECIATION EXPENSE Q6910 Depree Expense-non contrib (63,337.52) (126,675.04) (97,353.63) (29,321.41) 0.00 (126,675.04) 
6920 Depree Expense-contributed (58,124.20) (116,248.40) (116,248.40) 0.00 0.00 (116,248.40) 

,.. ,n,,..,.. ,..,.. ,..,. 1 • '1"11,11. • 



Livingston County WSA 

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures - Un posted Transactions Included In Report 

From 2/1/2023 Through 2/28/2023 

Current Period YTD Last Year Total Budget 
Actual YTD Actual Actual Current Year Change Total Budget Variance 

Total DEPRECIATION EXPENSE ()21 46) 72} (242 923 44) (213 6Q2 Q3) (2932) 41) Q QQ (242 923 44) 

OPERATING GAIN/LOSS 496,141.90 (211,798.72) (238,352.53) 26,553.81 4 327.00 (216,125.72) 

NON-OPERATING REVENUE/EXPENSE 
Non-Operating Income 

4115 Retail Fees-Debt related 129,911.60 46,944.70 32,732.42 14,212.28 343,447.00 (296,502.30) 
4300 Restricted Revenue 26.07 55.78 1.43 54.35 0.00 55.78 
7110 Interest Income 5 457.35 10,989.07 4 255.74 6 733.33 0.00 10,989.07 

Total Non-Operating Income 135,395.02 57,989.55 36,989.59 20,999.96 343,447.00 (285,457.45) 
Non-Operating Expense 

8110 Interest Expense 0.00 0.00 (3,505.00) 3,505.00 0.00 0.00 
8140 Debt Fees (1,250.00) (3,675.00) 0.00 (3,675.00) 0.00 (3,675.00) 

Total Non-Operating Expense (1,250.00) (3,675.00) (3,505.00) (170.00) 0.00 (3,675.00) 
Total NON-OPERATING 134,145.02 54,314.55 33,484.59 20,829.96 343,447.00 (289,132.45) 
REVENUE/EXPENSE 

NET GAIN/LOSS BEF CONTRIB 630,286.92 (157,484.17) (204,867.94) 47 383.77 347,774.00 (505,258.17) 

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 
Grant Revenue 

9110 Grant & Donation Revenue 0.00 0.00 (737,275.78) 737 275.78 0.00 0.00 
Total Grant Revenue 0.00 0.00 (737,275.78) 737 275.78 0.00 0.00 

Total CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 0.00 0.00 (737,275.78) 737,275.78 0.00 0.00 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 630,286.92 {157,484.17} {942,143.72} 784,659.55 347,774.00 {505,258.17} 

@ 



Livingston County WSA 

� 
Vendor Activity - Cash Disbursements-board mtg-Cap_ital Projects 

From 2/1/2023 Through 2/28/2023 

Category 
Code Category Title Check# Vendor Name Transaction Description Expenses 

31121 Lakeville WWTP Disenfection 3524 Clark Patterson Lee P3 l l 2 l Lakeville WWTP 9,900.00 
Chemical 01/01/2023 - 01/27/2023 

Transaction Total 9,900.00 

Total Lakeville WWTP Disenfection 9,900.00 
31121 

31131 Water System Improvements (EFC 3534 MW Controls, Inc P3113 1 Pay App 2 23,207.07 
WIIA) 

Water System Improvements (EFC 3505 NYS Dept of Environ Conserva ... P3113 l SPEDES Contract 5 190.30 
WIIA) Contruction Stormwater Fee 

Water System Improvements (EFC 3510 Ti-Sales Inc P31131, Meters and parts 7,974.48 

WIIA) 

Transaction Total 31,371.85 

Total Water System Improvements (EFC 31,371.85 

31131 WIIA) 

31132 GS WWTPUV 3488 Clark Patterson Lee P31132 12/01/22 - 12/30/22 4,480.00 

GS WWTPUV 3524 Clark Patterson Lee P31132 Groveland WWTP UV 1,400.00 
0l/01 /2023 - 01/27/2023 

Transaction Total 5,880.00 

Total GS WWTPUV 5,880.00 

31132 

31142 Lakeville Plant Upgrades-Phase 2 3485 Blue Heron Construction Co P31142 12/01/22 - 12/31/22 16,150.00 

Lakeville Plant Upgrades-Phase 2 3488 Clark Patterson Lee P31142 l 1/26/22-12/30/22 7,000.40 

Lakeville Plant Upgrades-Phase 2 3524 Clark Patterson Lee P3114 2 Lakeville WWTP 7,000.40 
Upgrades 01/01/2023 - 01/27/2023 

Lakeville Plant Upgrades-Phase 2 3543 Underberg & Kessler P31 l 42 - Professional Services 2,285.00 

01/01/2023 - 01/31/2023 

Lakeville Plant Upgrades-Phase 2 3513 Underberg & Kessler P31142, Legal Services 850.00 
10/20/2022 - 11/30/2022 

Transaction Total 33,285.80 

Total Lakeville Plant Upgrades-Phase 2 33,285.80 

31142 

31148 SCADA Sy Wide Imp Pl 3496 GHD Services Inc P31148 professional services 24,000.00 
01/01/2023 - 01/28/2023 

Transaction Total 24,000.00 

Total SCADA Sy Wide Imp Pl 24,000.00 

31148 

31455 Conesu Lake PS Improvements 3524 Clark Patterson Lee P31455 Conesus Lake Pump 1,853.10 

Station 01/01/2023 - 01/27/2023 

Transaction Total 1,853.10 

Total Conesu Lake PS Improvements 1,853.10 

31455 

Report Opening/Current 
Balance 

- ·- ·-- -- .... ,,. ....... , . . . . ....



Category 
Code Category Title 

Report Transaction Totals 

Report Current Balances 

Livingston County WSA 

Vendor Activity - Cash Disbursements-board mtg-Capital Projects 

From 2/1/2023 Through 2/28/2023 

Check# Vendor Name Transaction Description Expenses 

106,290.75 



Livingston County WSA 

Vendor Activity -Cash Disbursements-board mtg-Operatg Exp overview 

From 2/1/2023 Through 2/28/2023 

Vendor Name Pmt Date Transaction Description GLCode GL Short Title Expenses Check# 

ALS Group USA 2/15/2023 Samples 01/05/2023 6320 Lab Services 411.00 3516 

Samples 0 1/06/2023 Lab Services 395.00 

Samples 01/12/2023 Lab Services 411.00 

Samples 01/18/2023 Lab Services 390.00 

Samples 01/19/2023 Lab Services 189.00 

Samples 0 1/26/2023 Lab Services 189.00 

Samples 10/20/2022 Lab Services 70.00 

Samples 10/27/2022 Lab Services 70.00 

Samples 12/29/2022 Lab Services 234.00 

2/16/2023 Samples 0 1/05/2023 1001 Checking 0.00 3516 

Samples 0 1/06/2023 Checking 0.00 

Samples 01/12/2023 Checking 0.00 

Samples 01/18/2023 Checking 0.00 

Samples 0 1/19/2023 Checking 0.00 

Samples 0 1/26/2023 Checking 0.00 

Samples 10/20/2022 Checking 0.00 

Samples 10/27/2022 Checking 0.00 

Samples 12/29/2022 Checking 0.00 

Transaction Total 2,359.00 

Total ALS Group USA 2,359.00 

Benefactor Funding Corp 2/15/2023 Samples 0 1/18/2023 6320 Lab Services 243.00 3517 

Samples 0 1/23/2023 Lab Services 270.00 

2/16/2023 Samples 0 1/18/2023 1001 Checking 0.00 3517 

Samples 0 1/23/2023 Checking 0.00 

Transaction Total 513.00 

Total Benefactor Funding Corp 513.00 

Blue Heron Construction Co 2/3/2023 P31142 12/01/22- 12/31/22 1001 Checking 0.00 3485 

Transaction Total 0.00 

Total Blue Heron Construction Co 0.00 

BXI Consultants, Inc 2/1/2023 M606 printer cartridges 6820 Office Sup 9.50 3486 

2/3/2023 M606 printer cartridges 1001 Checking 0.00 3486 

2/15/2023 Contract 0 1/05/2023 - 6820 Office Sup 56.60 3518 

02/04/2023 

2/16/2023 Contract 0 1/05/2023 - 1001 Checking 0.00 3518 

02/04/2023 

Transaction Total 66.10 

Total BXI Consultants, Inc 66.10 

Chase Card Services 2/15/2023 Amazon - First Aid Kits 6620 Bldg Repair 296.97 3523 

Amazon - large flash drives for 6820 Office Sup 139.96 3523 

Billing Dept 

A WW A I WEF 2022 Utility 6840 Travel/Traing 910.00 3523 

Management Conference 

A WWA I WEF Utility Travel/Traing 1,934.90 

Management Conference 

Date: 3/8/23 03:40:16 PM Note: Partial Payments may cause totals to be overstated in the Expenses or the Charges column. Page: I 



Livingston County WSA 

Vendor Activity -Cash Disbursements-board mtg-Operatg Exp overview 

From 2/1/2023 Through 2/28/2023 

Vendor Name Pmt Date Transaction Description GLCode GL Short Title Expenses Check# 

Genesee Lumber - Adams Road 6620 Bldg Repair 15.48 3523 
Pump 

Genesee Lumber - Adams Road Bldg Repair 48.68 

Pump Station 

Genesee Lumber - brush for Lab Bldg Repair 13.99 

Genesee Lumber -Compressor Bldg Repair 30.54 
at Shop 

Genesee Lumber - Gloves 6340 Uniforms 21.78 3523 

Genesee Lumber - Groveland 6620 Bldg Repair 141.87 3523 

Bagger Room maintenance 

Genesee Lumber - hydrant shop Bldg Repair 74.34 

supplies 

Genesee Lumber - keys Bldg Repair 38.92 

Genesee Lumber - Lab supplies Bldg Repair 63.40 

and pump stations 

Genesee Lumber - Lake Forest Bldg Repair 119.96 

Park supplies 

Genesee Lumber - Lakeville parts Bldg Repair 9.84 

Genesee Lumber - Lakeville Bldg Repair 56.27 

valve replacement parts 

Genesee Lumber - Liquid nails Bldg Repair 11.18 

for Lab 

Genesee Lumber - Orange paint Bldg Repair 9.59 

for North and Summer St. 

Genesee Lumber - Paint roller Bldg Repair 6.99 

for Lab 

Genesee Lumber - paint rollers Bldg Repair 14.17 

and brush for Lab 

Genesee Lumber - Paint supplies Bldg Repair 9.99 

for Lab 

Genesee Lumber - Shop supplies Bldg Repair 3.99 

Genesee Lumber - supplies for Bldg Repair 24.47 

truck 

Genesee Lumber - Trim painting Bldg Repair 11.28 

tape for Lab 

Geneseo Hardware - Adams Bldg Repair 2.78 

Road Pump Station 

Harbor Freight - Pry Bar 6625 Small Equip 15.99 3523 

Livonia Supply Centre - Sewer 6620 Bldg Repair 14.89 3523 

clean out repair, Livonia Cent 

Lowes - Paint supplies for Lab Bldg Repair 170.79 

NAP A - Adams Road Pump Bldg Repair 98.81 

Station 

NAP A - antifreeze for generators Bldg Repair 60.36 

NAP A - Pump Station belts and Bldg Repair 162.84 

supplies 

NAP A - Pump Station oil Bldg Repair 92.99 

NAP A - pump stations Bldg Repair 129.24 

NAP A - sewer cleaner parts 6610 Equip Repair 9.20 3523 

NAP A - Sewer pump stations 6620 Bldg Repair 84.78 3523 

NAP A - supplies for backhoe 6610 Equip Repair 15.98 3523 

and excavator 

NAP A - supplies for truck 6620 Bldg Repair 9.31 3523 

NAPA - wiper blades AY3897 6420 Vehicle Maint 40.90 3523 

NYS - L. Dickinson exam fee for 6700 Permit/lnspec 15.00 3523 

Notary 

Date: 3/8/23 03:40: 16 PM Note: Partial Payments may cause totals to be overstated in the Expenses or the Charges column. Page: 2 



Livingston County WSA ®Vendor Activity -Cash Disbursements-board mtg-Operatg Exp overview 

From 2/1/2023 Through 2/28/2023 

Vendor Name Pmt Date Transaction Description GLCode GL Short Title Expenses Check# 

Tractor Supply - Adams Road 6620 Bldg Repair 3.19 3523 
Pump 

Tractor Supply - Lakeville Bldg Repair 7.99 

Compactor parts 

Tractor Supply - Lakeville plant Bldg Repair 46.99 

maintenance 

Tractor Supply - Lakeville valve Bldg Repair 20.55 

replacement parts 

Tractor Supply - supplies for Bldg Repair 289.98 

truck 

USPS - certified postage 6810 Postage 108.75 3523 

USPS - Postage Postage 73.93 

Vincenzo's Pizza - Training lunch 6840 Travel/Traing 59.23 3523 

Walmart - cleaning supplies and 6620 Bldg Repair 13.61 3523 

water 

Walmart - cleaning supplies and 6840 Travelffraing 7.80 3523 

water 

Walmart - water Travel/f raing 1.95 

Wegmans - Training lunch and Travel/f raing 35.92 

supplies 

2/16/2023 Amazon - First Aid Kits 1001 Checking 0.00 3523 

Amazon - large flash drives for Checking 0.00 

Billing Dept 

A WW A I WEF 2022 Utility Checking 0.00 

Management Conference 

A WWA I WEF Utility Checking 0.00 

Management Conference 

Genesee Lumber - Adams Road Checking 0.00 

Pump 

Genesee Lumber - Adams Road Checking 0.00 

Pump Station 

Genesee Lumber - brush for Lab Checking 0.00 

Genesee Lumber -Compressor Checking 0.00 

at Shop 

Genesee Lumber - Gloves Checking 0.00 

Genesee Lumber - Groveland Checking 0.00 

Bagger Room maintenance 

Genesee Lumber - hydrant shop Checking 0.00 

supplies 

Genesee Lumber - keys Checking 0.00 

Genesee Lumber - Lab supplies Checking 0.00 

and pump stations 

Genesee Lumber - Lake Forest Checking 0.00 

Park supplies 

Genesee Lumber - Lakeville parts Checking 0.00 

Genesee Lumber - Lakeville Checking 0.00 

valve replacement parts 

Genesee Lumber - Liquid nails Checking 0.00 

for Lab 

Genesee Lumber - Orange paint Checking 0.00 

for North and Summer St. 

Genesee Lumber - Paint roller Checking 0.00 

for Lab 

Genesee Lumber - paint rollers Checking 0.00 

and brush for Lab 

Date: 3/8/23 03:40:16 PM Note: Partial Payments may cause totals to be overstated in the Expenses or the Charges column. Page: 3 



Livingston County WSA 

®Vendor Activity - Cash Disbursements-board mtg-Operatg Exp overview 

From 2/1/2023 Through 2/28/2023 

Vendor Name Pmt Date Transaction Description GL Code GL Short Title Expenses Check# 

Genesee Lumber - Paint supplies Checking 0.00 
for Lab 

Genesee Lumber - Shop supplies Checking 0.00 

Genesee Lumber - supplies for Checking 0.00 
truck 

Genesee Lumber - Trim painting Checking 0.00 

tape for Lab 

Geneseo Hardware - Adams Checking 0.00 
Road Pump Station 

Harbor Freight - Pry Bar Checking 0.00 

Livonia Supply Centre - Sewer Checking 0.00 

clean out repair, Livonia Cent 

Lowes - Paint supplies for Lab Checking 0.00 

NAP A - Adams Road Pump Checking 0.00 

Station 

NAP A - antifreeze for generators Checking 0.00 

NAP A - Pump Station belts and Checking 0.00 

supplies 

NAP A - Pump Station oil Checking 0.00 

NAP A - pump stations Checking 0.00 

NAP A - sewer cleaner parts Checking 0.00 

NAP A - Sewer pump stations Checking 0.00 

NAP A - supplies for backhoe Checking 0.00 

and excavator 

NAP A - supplies for truck Checking 0.00 

NAP A - wiper blades A Y3897 Checking 0.00 

NYS - L. Dickinson exam fee for Checking 0.00 

Notary 

Tractor Supply - Adams Road Checking 0.00 

Pump 

Tractor Supply - Lakeville Checking 0.00 

Compactor parts 

Tractor Supply - Lakeville plant Checking 0.00 

maintenance 

Tractor Supply - Lakeville valve Checking 0.00 

replacement parts 

Tractor Supply - supplies for Checking 0.00 

truck 

USPS - certified postage Checking 0.00 

USPS - Postage Checking 0.00 

Vincenzo's Pizza - Training lunch Checking 0.00 

Walmart - cleaning supplies and Checking 0.00 

water 

Walmart - water Checking 0.00 

Wegmans - Training lunch and Checking 0.00 

supplies 

Transaction Total 5,602.31 

Total Chase Card Services 5,602.31 

CID Waste Management 2/1/2023 Overage Incident 39374198 6350 Refuse 175.00 3487 

2/3/2023 Overage Incident 39374198 1001 Checking 0.00 3487 

Transaction Total 175.00 

Date: 3/8/23 03:40:16 PM Note: Partial Payments may cause totals to be overstated in the Expenses or the Charges column. Page: 4 



Livingston County WSA ®Vendor Activity - Cash Disbursements-board mtg-Operatg Exp overview 

From 2/1/2023 Through 2/28/2023 

Vendor Name Pmt Date Transaction Description GL Code GL Short Title Expenses Check# 

Total CID Waste Management 175.00 

Clark Patterson Lee 2/3/2023 P3 l 132 12/01/22 - 12/30/22 1001 Checking 0.00 3488 

P3 l 142 l l/26/22-12/30/22 Checking 0.00 

2/15/2023 Professional Services for 6125 Project Enginee 3,000.00 3524 
01/01/2023 - 01/27/2023 

2/16/2023 P3 l 12 l Lakeville WWTP 1001 Checking 0.00 3524 
Chemical 01/01/2023 -
01/27/2023 

P3 l l 32 Groveland WWTP UV Checking 0.00 
0l/01 /2023 - 01/27/2023 

P31142 Lakeville WWTP Checking 0.00 
Upgrades 0 1/01/2023 
01/27/2023 

P31455 Conesus Lake Pump Checking 0.00 
Station 01/01/2023 - 01/27/2023 

Professional Services for Checking 0.00 

01/01/2023 - 01/27/2023 

Transaction Total 3
1
000.00 

Total Clark Patterson Lee 3,000.00 

Colacino Industries Inc 2/1/2023 11 E generator repair 6310 Outside O&M 330.00 3489 

2/3/2023 l lE generator repair 1001 Checking 0.00 3489 

2/15/2023 Monitoring 03/01/2023 6230 Telephone 580.00 3525 

03/31/2023

Repairs to East Swamp Road 6310 Outside O&M 2,520.00 3525 

Vault 

2/16/2023 Monitoring 03/01/2023 - 1001 Checking 0.00 3525 

03/31/2023 

Repairs to East Swamp Road Checking 0.00 

Vault 

Transaction Total 3
1
430.00 

Total Colacino Industries Inc 3,430.00 

Complete Payroll 2/17/2023 PR 4(1/29/23-2/11/23) Feb Retire 1001 Checking 0.00 ach 

PR 4(1/29/23-2/11/23) Feb Retire 5010 Wages 42,710.43 ach 

PR 4(1/29/23-2/11/23) Feb Retire 5020 Overtime 1,289.26 ach 

PR 4(1/29/23-2/11/23) Feb Retire 5030 FICA 3,563.91 ach 

PR 4{1/29/23-2/11/23) Feb Retire 5070 Unemployment 886.17 ach 

PR 4(1/29/23-2/11/23) Feb Retire 6130 Financial 107.27 ach 

2/3/2023 PR 3 l/15/23-1/28/23 1001 Checking 0.00 Ach00l 

PR 3 1/15/23-1/28/23 5010 Wages 42,352.41 Ach0Ol 

PR 3 1/15/23-1/28/23 5020 Overtime 3,405.42 Ach00l 

PR 3 1/15/23-1/28/23 5030 FICA 3,697.39 Ach00I 

PR 3 1/15/23-1/28/23 5070 Unemployment 1,142.07 Ach0Ol 

PR 3 1/15/23-1/28/23 6130 Financial 200.02 Ach00l 

Transaction Total 99
1
354.35 

Total Complete Payroll 99,354.35 

Constellation NewEnergy, Inc 2/15/2023 12/22/2022 - 01/24/2023 6210 Electric 8,603.45 3526 

2/16/2023 12/22/2022 - 01/24/2023 1001 Checking 0.00 3526 

Date: 3/8/23 03:40:16 PM Note: Partial Payments may cause totals to be overstated in the Expenses or the Charges column. Page: 5 



Livingston County WSA 

Vendor Activity - Cash Disbursements-board mtg-Operatg Exp overview 

From 2/1/2023 Through 2/28/2023 

Vendor Name Pmt Date Transaction Description GL Code GL Short Title Expenses Check# 

Transaction Total 8
1
603.45 

Total Constellation NewEnergy, Inc 8,603.45 

Cronmiller, Mike 2/1/2023 31 East Ave, Livonia Sewer 6310 OutsideO&M 907.83 3490 
repair 

2/3/2023 3 1 East Ave, Livonia Sewer 1001 Checking 0.00 3490 
repair 

Transaction Total 907.83 

Total Cronmiller, Mike 907.83 

CSEA, Inc 2/15/2023 Union Dues 02/03/2022 & 2050 A/P Payroll 575.00 3527 
02/17/2023 

Union Dues 10/14/2022 & A/P Payroll 575.00 

10/28/2022 

2/16/2023 Union Dues 02/03/2022 & 1001 Checking 0.00 3527 
02/17/2023 

Union Dues 10/14/2022 & Checking 0.00 
10/28/2022 

Transaction Total 1
1
150.00 

Total CSEA, Inc 1,150.00 

Direct Energy Business 2/1/2023 12/15/2022 - 01/12/2023 6220 Gas 1,123.57 3492 

2/3/2023 12/15/2022 -01/12/2023 1001 Checking 0.00 3492 

Transaction Total 1
2
123.57 

Total Direct Energy Business 1,123.57 

Fineline Pipeline, Inc 2/1/2023 31 East Ave, Livonia sewer repai1 6310 OutsideO&M 5,400.00 3493 

2/3/2023 31 East Ave, Livonia sewer repait 1001 Checking 0.00 3493 

Transaction Total 5
2
400.00 

Total Fineline Pipeline, Inc 5,400.00 

Frazier, Trevor 2/1/2023 NYS OMV CDL Permit Testing 6700 Permit/In spec 32.50 3494 

2/3/2023 NYS OMV CDL Permit Testing 1001 Checking 0.00 3494 

Transaction Total 32.50 

Total Frazier, Trevor 32.50 

Frontier Communications 2/1/2023 01/22/2023 - 02/21/2023 6230 Telephone 161.86 3495 

2/3/2023 01/22/2023 - 02/21/2023 1001 Checking 0.00 3495 

Transaction Total 161.86 

Total Frontier Communications 161.86 

Genesee Valley Publications Inc 2/15/2023 Seasonal Worker Ads, 01/20/23, 6830 Advertising 777.70 3528 

01/27/2023 

2/16/2023 Seasonal Worker Ads, 01/20/23, 1001 Checking 0.00 3528 

01/27/2023 

Date: 3/8/23 03:40:16 PM Note: Partial Payments may cause totals to be overstated in the Expenses or the Charges column. Page: 6 



Livingston County WSA @ Vendor Activity - Cash Disbursements- board mtg-Operatg Exp overview 

From 2/1/2023 Through 2/28/2023 

Vendor Name Pmt Date Transaction Description GL Code GL Short Title Expenses Check# 

Transaction Total 777.70 

Total Genesee Valley Publications .. 777.70 

GHD Services Inc 2/3/2023 P3 l 148 professional services 1001 Checking 0.00 3496 
01/01/2023 - 01/28/2023 

Transaction Total 0.00 

Total GHD Services Inc 0.00 

Guenther Automotive 2/15/2023 Service for 2016 Ram 1500, 6420 Vehicle Maint 1,082.83 3530 
AY3897 

Service for 2019 Ram 1500, Vehicle Maint 84.90 
BC3584 

Service for 2021 Chevy 2500, Vehicle Maint 196.62 
BE1201 

Service for 2022 Ford F150, Vehicle Maint 59.95 
BF5691 

2/16/2023 Service for 2016 Ram 1500, 1001 Checking 0.00 3530 
AY3897 

Service for 2019 Ram 1500, Checking 0.00 
BC3584 

Service for 2021 Chevy 2500, Checking 0.00 
BE1201 

Service for 2022 Ford F150, Checking 0.00 
BF5691 

Transaction Total 1 424.30 

Total Guenther Automotive 1,424.30 

Hach Company 2/1/2023 Renewal Bench Service 6310 OutsideO&M 651.70 3498 

2/3/2023 Renewal Bench Service 1001 Checking 0.00 3498 

Transaction Total 651.70 

Total Hach Company 651.70 

Holland Company 2/1/2023 Chemical totes 6620 Bldg Repair 4,644.74 3500 

2/3/2023 Chemical totes 1001 Checking 0.00 3500 

2/15/2023 Chemicals 6620 Bldg Repair 7,493.71 3531 

2/16/2023 Chemicals 1001 Checking 0.00 3531 

Transaction Total 12,138.45 

Total Holland Company 12,138.45 

Jackson Welding Supply Co Inc 2/1/2023 Cylinder Rental 6620 Bldg Repair 33.66 3501 

2/3/2023 Cylinder Rental 1001 Checking 0.00 3501 

Transaction Total 33.66 

Total Jackson Welding Supply Co ... 33.66 

Joseph Hauslauer 2/1/2023 Clothing Allowance 2023 6340 Uniforms 200.00 3499 

2/3/2023 Clothing Allowance 2023 1001 Checking 0.00 3499 

Date: 3/8/23 03:40: 16 PM Note: Partial Payments may cause totals to be overstated in the Expenses or the Charges column. Page: 7 



Livingston County WSA @Vendor Activity - Cash Disbursements-board mtg-Operatg Exp overview 

From 2/1/2023 Through 2/28/2023 

Vendor Name Pmt Date Transaction Description GL Code GL Short Title Expenses Check# 

Transaction Total 200.00 

Total Joseph Hauslauer 200.00 

Lifetime Benefit Solution 2/28/2023 Feb. 2023 FSA Transactions 1001 Checking 0.00 ACH 

Feb. 2023 FSA Transactions 2050 NP Payroll 1,043.39 ACH 

2/21/2023 Lifetime Benefit ACH 1001 Checking 0.00 ach003 

Lifetime Benefit ACH 2050 A/P Payroll 433.80 ach003 

2/3/2023 Lifetime Ben Monthly ACH 1001 Checking 0.00 Ach004 

Lifetime Ben Monthly ACH 6130 Financial 75.00 Ach004 

Transaction Total 1,552.19 

Total Lifetime Benefit Solution 1,552.19 

Livingston Co Treasurer 2/15/2023 Retiree Health Insurance 5048 Retiree Health 2,036.30 3532 
01/01/2023 - 01/31/2023 

2/16/2023 Retiree Health Insurance 1001 Checking 0.00 3532 
01/01/2023 - 01/3 l /2023 

Transaction Total 2,036.30 

Total Livingston Co Treasurer 2,036.30 

Livingston County EMS 2/1/2023 CPR, AED, first aid course 6840 Travel/Traing 400.00 3503 
materials 

2/3/2023 CPR, AED, first aid course 1001 Checking 0.00 3503 

materials 

Transaction Total 400.00 

Total Livingston County EMS 400.00 

M&T Bank-Bond pmts 2/2/2023 C8-6449-04-01 Trustee Fee 1180 Debt Res MM 0.00 wire00 ... 

C8-6449-04-0 I Trustee Fee 8140 Debt Fees 500.00 wire00 ... 

Transaction Total 500.00 

Total M&T Bank-Bond pmts 500.00 

Monroe County Water Authority 2/15/2023 12/30/2022 - 01/31/2023 6515 Purchased Water 19,874.25 3533 

2/16/2023 12/30/2022 - 01/31/2023 1001 Checking 0.00 3533 

Transaction Total 19,874.25 

Total Monroe County Water Auth ... 19,874.25 

MW Controls, Inc 2/15/2023 Service call Groveland WWTP 6310 Outside O&M 760.00 3534 

2/16/2023 P3113 l Pay App 2 1001 Checking 0.00 3534 

Service call Groveland WWTP Checking 0.00 

Transaction Total 760.00 

Total MW Controls, Inc 760.00 

National Grid 2/1/2023 12/22/2022 - 01/24/2023 6210 Electric 13,549.93 3504 

2/3/2023 12/22/2022 - 01/24/2023 1001 Checking 0.00 3504 

Transaction Total 13,549.93 

Date: 3/8/23 03:40:16 PM Note: Partial Payments may cause totals to be overstated in the Expenses or the Charges column. Page: 8 



Livingston County WSA ® 
Vendor Activity - Cash Disbursements-board mtg-Operatg Exp overview 

From 2/1/2023 Through 2/28/2023 

Vendor Name Pmt Date Transaction Description GL Code GL Short Title Expenses Check# 

Total National Grid 13,549.93 

NYS Employees Retirement Syst... 2/17/2023 PR 4(1/29/23-2/11/23) Feb Retire 1001 Checking 0.00 ach00l 

PR 4(1/29/23-2/11/23) Feb Retire 2050 A/P Payroll 1
1
680.38 ach00l 

Transaction Total 1
1
680.38 

Total NYS Employees Retiremen ... 1,680.38 

NYS Deferred Compensation Plan 2/3/2023 PR 3 1/15/23-1/28/23 1001 Checking 0.00 Ach002 

PR 3 1/15/23-1/28/23 2050 A/P Payroll 1,430.33 Ach002 

2/17/2023 PR 4(1/29/23-2/11/23) Feb Retire 1001 Checking 0.00 ach002 

PR 4(1/29/23-2/11/23) Feb Retire 2050 A/P Payroll 1 476.19 ach002 

Transaction Total 2
2
906.52 

Total NYS Deferred Compensatio ... 2,906.52 

NYS Dept of Environ Conservation 2/3/2023 P3 l l 3 l SPEDES Contract 5 1001 Checking 0.00 3505 

Contruction Stonnwater Fee 

Transaction Total 0.00 

Total NYS Dept of Environ Cons ... 0.00 

NYSEG 2/15/2023 12/29/2022 - 01/27/2023 6210 Electric 148.00 3535 

12/29/2022 - 01/27/2023 6220 Gas 126.88 3535 

2/16/2023 12/29/2022 - 01/27/2023 1001 Checking 0.00 3535 

Transaction Total 274.88 

Total NYSEG 274.88 

Pace Analytical Services, LLC 2/1/2023 Samples 06/24/2022 6320 Lab Services 200.91 3506 

Samples 09/30/2022 Lab Services 225.89 

Samples 10/07/2022 Lab Services 348.61 

Samples I 0/21/2022 Lab Services 171.59 

2/3/2023 Samples 06/24/2022 1001 Checking 0.00 3506 

Samples 09/30/2022 Checking 0.00 

Samples 10/07/2022 Checking 0.00 

Samples 10/21/2022 Checking 0.00 

Transaction Total 947.00 

Total Pace Analytical Services, LLC 947.00 

Patricia Johnston, AHA 2/1/2023 CPR, AED, First Aid Course 6840 Travel/Traing 300.00 3502 

01/10, 01/17, 01/24/2023 

2/3/2023 CPR, AED, First Aid Course 1001 Checking 0.00 3502 

01/10, 01/17, 01/24/2023 

Transaction Total 300.00 

Total Patricia Johnston, AHA 300.00 

Penny Lane Promotional Productc; 2/15/2023 Employee ID Cards 6310 OutsideO&M 296.00 3536 

2/16/2023 Employee ID Cards 1001 Checking 0.00 3536 

Transaction Total 296.00 

Date: 3/8/23 03:40 16 PM Note: Panial Payments may cause totals to be overstated in the Expenses or the Charges column. Page: 9 



Livingston County WSA @Vendor Activity - Cash Disbursements-board mtg-Operatg Exp overview 

From 2/1/2023 Through 2/28/2023 

Vendor Name Pmt Date Transaction Description GL Code GL Short Title Expenses Check# 

Total Penny Lane Promotional Pr ... 296.00 

Rochester Gas & Electric 2/1/2023 12/15/2022 - 01/13/2023 6210 Electric 104.55 3507 

12/15/2022 - 01/13/2023 6220 Gas 143.07 3507 

2/3/2023 12/15/2022 - 01/13/2023 1001 Checking 0.00 3507 

2/15/2023 12/30/2022 - 01/31/2023 6210 Electric 82.01 3537 

12/30/2022 - 01/31/2023 6220 Gas 19.89 3537 

2/16/2023 12/30/2022 - 01/31/2023 1001 Checking 0.00 3537 

Transaction Total 349.52 

Total Rochester Gas & Electric 349.52 

ServiceMaster 2/1/2023 Cleaning 5 visits 01/01/2022 - 6360 Cleaning 375.00 3508 

01/31/2022 

2/3/2023 Cleaning 5 visits 01/01/2022 - 1001 Checking 0.00 3508 

01/31/2022 

Transaction Total 375.00 

Total ServiceMaster 375.00 

Staples Business Advantage 2/1/2023 Office Supplies 6820 Office Sup 56.05 3509 

2/3/2023 Office Supplies 1001 Checking 0.00 3509 

Transaction Total 56.05 

Total Staples Business Advantage 56.05 

Stratejus 2/15/2023 Website hoasting 02/01/2023 - 6140 Prof Computer 480.00 3541 

02/01/2024 

2/16/2023 Website hoasting 02/01/2023 1001 Checking 0.00 3541 

02/01/2024 

Transaction Total 480.00 

Total Stratejus 480.00 

The Bonadio Group 2/15/2023 Professional Services 6130 Financial 110.00 3542 

11/01/2022 - 01/31/2023 

2/16/2023 Professional Services 1001 Checking 0.00 3542 

11/01/2022 - 01/31/2023 

Transaction Total 110.00 

Total The Bonadio Group 110.00 

The Diesel Shop 2/1/2023 repair of 2020 Peterbilt dump 6420 Vehicle Maint 83.00 3491 

truck vin 1128, BD2179 

2/3/2023 repair of 2020 Peterbilt dump 1001 Checking 0.00 3491 

truck vin 1128, BD2179 

Transaction Total 83.00 

Total The Diesel Shop 83.00 

Ti-Sales Inc 2/1/2023 P3 l l 3 l, Meters and parts 1300 Inventory 647.00 3510 

2/3/2023 P3 l l 31, Meters and parts 1001 Checking 0.00 3510 

Date: 3/8/23 03:40: 16 PM Note: Partial Payments may cause totals to be overstated in the Expenses or the Charges column. Page: 10 



Livingston County WSA ®Vendor Activity -Cash Disbursements-board mtg-Operatg Exp overview 

From 2/1/2023 Through 2/28/2023 

Vendor Name Pmt Date Transaction Description GLCode GL Short Title Expenses Check# 

Transaction Total 647.00 

Total Ti-Sales Inc 647.00 

Town of Avon 2/1/2023 Water 10/28/2022 - 01/25/2023 6510 Water Purch 4,893.05 3511 

2/3/2023 Water 10/28/2022 - 01/25/2023 1001 Checking 0.00 3511 

Transaction Total 4
1
893.05 

Total Town of Avon 4,893.05 

Town of Livonia - highway Dept 2/1/2023 Unleaded and Diesel Fuel 6430 Gasoline 12,096.76 3512 

purchases 10/0 l /2022 -
12/31/2022 

2/3/2023 Unleaded and Diesel Fuel 1001 Checking 0.00 3512 

purchases 10/01/2022 -
12/31/2022 

Transaction Total 12
1
096.76 

Total Town of Livonia - highway ... 12,096.76 

Underberg & Kessler 2/3/2023 P3 l 142, Legal Services 1001 Checking 0.00 3513 

10/20/2022 - 11/30/2022 

2/16/2023 P3 l 142 - Professional Services 1001 Checking 0.00 3543 

01/01/2023 - 01/31/2023 

Transaction Total 0.00 

Total Underberg & Kessler 0.00 

US Geological Survey 2/15/2023 10/01/2021 - 09/30/2022 6310 Outside O&M 12,890.00 3544 

Conesus Lake Gage Lake levels 

2/16/2023 10/01/2021 - 09/30/2022 1001 Checking 0.00 3544 

Conesus Lake Gage Lake levels 

Transaction Total 12
1
890.00 

Total US Geological Survey 12,890.00 

USA Blue Book 2/1/2023 Gasket material supplies 6620 Bldg Repair 112.24 3514 

Gaskets for Compactor Bldg Repair 86.26 

hose adapter for the Lab Bldg Repair 226.78 

Hydrant Adapters for the Lab Bldg Repair 176.49 

Supplies for Curb Box, Lakeville Bldg Repair 110.98 

Diner 

2/3/2023 Gasket material supplies 1001 Checking 0.00 3514 

Gaskets for Compactor Checking 0.00 

hose adapter for the Lab Checking 0.00 

Hydrant Adapters for the Lab Checking 0.00 

Supplies for Curb Box, Lakeville Checking 0.00 

Diner 

Transaction Total 712.75 

Total USA Blue Book 712.75 

Village of Avon 2/15/2023 Sewer 11/04/2022 - 02/03/2023 6520 Sewer Purch 7,466.58 3545 

Date: 3/8/23 03 .40: 16 PM Note: Partial Payments may cause totals to be overstated in the Expenses or the Charges column. Page: II 



Livingston County WSA 

@Vendor Activity - Cash Disbursements-board mtg-Operatg Exp overview 

From 2/1/2023 Through 2/28/2023 

Vendor Name Pmt Date Transaction Description GL Code GL Short Title Expenses Check# 

Water 11/01/2022 - 01/30/2023 6510 Water Purch 8,144.21 3545 

2/16/2023 Sewer 11/04/2022 - 02/03/2023 1001 Checking 0.00 3545 

Water 11/01/2022 - 01/30/2023 Checking 0.00 

Transaction Total 15,610.79 

Total Village of Avon 15,610.79 

W2 Operator Training Group, LLC 2/1/2023 Repair of Plunger Pumps 6620 Bldg Repair 1,600.00 3515 

2/3/2023 Repair of Plunger Pumps 1001 Checking 0.00 3515 

Transaction Total 1,600.00 

Total W2 Operator Training Grou ... 1,600.00 

Webster Szanyi LLP 2/15/2023 Professional Services 0 1/06/2023 6110 Prof Legal 522.50 3546 

Professional Services Prof Legal 601.50 
01/09/2023 - 01/27/2023 

2/16/2023 Professional Services 0 1/06/2023 1001 Checking 0.00 3546 

Professional Services Checking 0.00 
01/09/2023 - 01/27/2023 

Transaction Total 1,124.00 

Total Webster Szanyi LLP 1,124.00 

Wilmington Trust 2/28/2023 C8-6449-00-05 Trustee Fee 1180 Debt Res MM 0.00 wire0O ... 

C8-6449-00-05 Trustee Fee 8140 Debt Fees 750.00 wire0O ... 

Transaction Total 750.00 

Total Wilmington Trust 750.00 

WW Grainger 2/1/2023 Colormeters for Chlorine 6625 Small Equip 1,495.98 3497 

Residuals 

Oil for pumps at Lake Stations 6620 Bldg Repair 335.16 3497 

Pressure Gauges for Work Trucks Bldg Repair 90.48 

Pressure Transmitter for Bldg Repair 210.43 
Scottsville Tank 

Work bench for Groveland Plant Bldg Repair 456.81 

2/3/2023 Colormeters for Chlorine 1001 Checking 0.00 3497 

Residuals 

Oil for pumps at Lake Stations Checking 0.00 

Pressure Gauges for Work Trucks Checking 0.00 

Pressure Transmitter for Checking 0.00 

Scottsville Tank 

Work bench for Groveland Plant Checking 0.00 

2/15/2023 Safety Clothing 6340 Uniforms 429.11 3529 

2/16/2023 Safety Clothing 1001 Checking 0.00 3529 

Transaction Total 3 017.97 

Total WW Grainger 3,017.97 

Report Opening/Current 
Balance 

Date: 3/8/23 03 :40: 16 PM Note: Partial Payments may cause totals to be overstated in the Expenses or the Charges column. Page: 12 



Vendor Name Pmt Date 

Report Transaction Totals 

Report Current Balances 

Date: 3/8/23 03:40:16 PM 

Livingston County WSA 

Vendor Activity - Cash Disbursements-board mtg-Operatg Exp overview 

From 2/1/2023 Through 2/28/2023 

Transaction Description GLCode GL Short Title 

Note: Partial Payments may cause totals to be overstated in the E,cpenses or the Charges column. 

Expenses Check# 

246,978.12 

Page: 13 



 
 
 
 

 

Livingston County Water & Sewer Authority 
PO Box 396, 1997 D’Angelo Drive, Lakeville, NY 14480 

(585) 346-3523 
www.lcwsa.us  

 
 
 

 

Executive Director 
Jason Molino 

 
Deputy Director 

Lauren Monaghan 

 
To:  Livingston County Water and Sewer Authority Board 
 
From: Jason Molino, Executive Director  
 
Re:  Internal Controls Self-Assessment (Year 2022)   
 
Date: February 28, 2023 
 
The purpose of this memo is to provide the Board with relevant excerpts from the Authorities Budget 
Office (ABO) recommended guidance document on performing annual internal control assessments and 
2022 LCWSA Self-Assessment results. 
 
1. ABO RECOMMENDED GUIDANCE RE: ASSESSMENT OF THE EFFECTIVENESS OF 

INTERNAL CONTROLS (excerpts) 
 
 Provisions: Section 2800 (1)(a)(9) and Section 2800 (2)(a)(9) of Public Authorities Law require 

all public authorities to complete an annual assessment of the effectiveness of their internal control 
structures and procedures. 
 

 Objectives: The importance of an adequate system of internal control is to:  
(a) promote effective and efficient operations so as to help the authority carry out its mission;  
(b) provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that assets are safeguarded against 
inappropriate or unauthorized use;  
(c) promote the accuracy and reliability of accounting data and financial reporting to ensure 
transactions are executed in accordance with management’s authorization and recorded 
properly in accounting records;  
(d) encourage adherence to management’s policies and procedures for conducting programs 
and operations; and  
(e) ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations. 

 
The Livingston County Water and Sewer Authority has developed policies and procedures to provide 
reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded from unauthorized acquisitions, use of, or disposition 
of assets that could have a material effect on the Authority's operations, financial statements, and 
reports and that the records of the Authority reflect only authorized transactions.  
 
The Authority's system of internal controls is evaluated regularly by the Authority management and 
administrative staff. Independent external auditors also review the internal control system of the 
Authority in order to determine compliance with generally accepted accounting principles and 
safeguards for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the financial statements.  
 
The Authority has established an Audit and Finance Committee in accordance with the Public 
Authorities Accountability Act. This committee meets with management and periodically with the 

http://www.lcwsa.us/


 
 
 
 

 

Livingston County Water & Sewer Authority 
PO Box 396, 1997 D’Angelo Drive, Lakeville, NY 14480 

(585) 346-3523 
www.lcwsa.us  

 
 
 

 

Executive Director 
Jason Molino 

 
Deputy Director 

Lauren Monaghan 

independent external auditors to ensure these groups are fulfilling their obligations and to discuss 
auditing, controls, and financial reporting matters.  

 
2. 2022 SELF-ASSESSMENT RESULTS 

 
Based on a review of major business functions, LCWSA Management Staff has identified weaknesses 
related to both outdated policies and procedures, and a lack of written procedures to ensure that policies 
are being carried out/implemented correctly.   
 
Proposed Corrective Actions: 
 
POLICIES/PROCEDURES 

o Identify policies that lack formal written procedures/need to be updated and develop written 
procedures/update for review and approval by the Board.  

o The Authority has established a Governance Committee in accordance with the Public 
Authorities Accountability Act.  Staff will work with the Governance Committee and 
Authority Attorney on a regular basis to review current policies and procedures and 
recommend updates to be considered by the Authority Board for adoption.  

o Communicate to staff re: new and/or updated policies/procedures. 
 
3. INTERNAL CONTROL ASSESSMENT  

 
To satisfy the requirement of Sections 2800 (1) (a) (9) and 2800 (2)(a)(9) of Public Authorities Law, 
authorities should incorporate, either within their annual report or as a separate document, a statement 
explaining that the authority has conducted a formal, documented process to assess the effectiveness of 
their internal control structure and procedures and indicating whether or not the internal controls are 
adequate. The following statement will be included in the Authority’s annual report and posted on the 
website: 

 
This statement verifies that management has documented and assessed the internal control structure 
and procedures of the Livingston County Water & Sewer Authority for the year ending December 31, 
2022. This assessment found the Authority's internal controls to be adequate, and to the extent that 
deficiencies were identified, the Authority has developed corrective action plans to reduce any 
corresponding risk. 

    
 

 
 
 
 

 

http://www.lcwsa.us/


2023 Work Plan: Livingston County Water & Sewer Authority February 14, 2023 
 

1 
 

Capital Projects 

1. Leicester/York Regional Water Supply Expansion Project –  The project is intended to achieve 
the County’s interest in providing enhanced public drinking water infrastructure for the Towns 
of Leicester and York, as well as supporting regional interests of providing greater access to 
affordable safe drinking water for all participating municipalities.  The Authority has received 
$5M from the WIIA program as well as qualifying for hardship financing.  2023 will include 
finalizing and gaining consensus on the preferred distribution and water supply sources along 
with municipal partner commitment.  Following municipal partner commitment, preliminary and 
final design can begin.  (Ongoing). 
 

2. Countywide Water System Improvements – Include Countywide improvements: Disinfection 
system upgrades, THM tank removal systems, installation of new water meters for LCWSA 
customers throughout the consolidated water district, distribution improvements to the Pine 
Tree and Lake Forest Mobile Parks water systems, Stone Hill service transfers and Conesus 
Outlet Re-Connection.  Total project cost for this work is $3.25M. Success:  Completion of all 
aspects of this project on-time and within budget. (December 2023). 
 

3. SCADA System Wide Improvements – Phase 1 – Project includes designing SCADA system 
improvements and bidding work for competitive pricing.  Once design is completed and cost 
estimates provided, decision can be made regarding phased implementation approach.  First 
phase of construction estimated $1.5M.  Success:  SCADA analysis and final design complete. 
(June 2023). 
 

4. Lakeville WWTP Upgrades – Phase 2 – Phase 2 started June 2021 and is expected to end spring 
2023.  This is a $5.5M project which includes upgrades to the Lakeville WWTP, including the 
construction of a UV treatment building and covered sludge storage building.  Success: 
Completion of project within revised timeline and within budget.  Additional items to consider, 
painting of sludge storage tank and digester cover inspection depending on funding availability. 
(May 2023). 

 
5. I/I Study – Phase 3 – Project includes smoke testing and manhole inspections for sewer 

collection system around Conesus Lake.  Will involve resident communications and inspections 
of properties and possible notice of violations for illegal connections.  Final report will involve 
testing results and recommended capital improvements.  Success:  Completion of project on-
time and within budget. (September 2023). 
 

6. Lakeville Wastewater Treatment Plant Phosphorus Removal – The Authority has been awarded 
$198,055 through the DEC QWIP (Quality Water Improvement Program) to install year-round 
phosphorus removal at the Lakeville wastewater treatment facility. This project will reduce the 
amount of phosphorus entering the Genesee River.  Total project estimated $390,000; local 
share $192,000.  Success: Design, bid and build project by the end of 2023. (December 2023). 
 

7. Groveland Wastewater Treatment Plant Disinfection Project – The Authority has been awarded 
$367,576 through the DEC QWIP (Quality Water Improvement Program) to install ultraviolet 



2023 Work Plan: Livingston County Water & Sewer Authority February 14, 2023 
 

2 
 

effluent disinfection at the Groveland Station Wastewater Treatment Facility. This project will 
improve water quality by reducing pathogens in the treatment plant's discharge.  Total project 
estimated $680,000; local share $312,500.  Success: Design, bid and build project.  Design (May 
2022), Construction starts (May 2023) and Operational (May 2024).  
 

8. Conesus Lake Pump Station Improvements Project – They Authority has been awarded $1.75M 
through the WIIA program to replace 26 pump stations around Conesus Lake and make needed 
SCADA upgrades.  Total project cost is estimated to be $5M.  The Authority has received a 
$1.75M grant provided by the NYS Environmental Facilities Corporation WIIA program and a 30-
year $3.75M low interest loan to complete the project.  Success: Design, bid and build project by 
the end of 2025.  (December 2025). 

 
Administrative 

1. Improve Financial and Capital Planning – Review current budget worksheet and spreadsheet 
processes and improve budget development and documents.  Incorporate more long-term 
financial planning and rate structure projections along with capital planning and debt 
management strategy.  Asset Management Program should also include Equipment 
Replacement Program (ERP).  Success: Update budget document, prepare ERP and develop debt 
management strategy for presentation with 2024 budget.  (September 2023). 
 

2. Organize e-Filing System – The current e-filing system needs to be cataloged and organized for 
easier access to records.  There are also hard copy property files that need to be scanned and 
cataloged as well as other LCWSA files that should be reviewed, scanned/filed and/or purged.  
This review should also include personnel files of LCWSA staff.  Success: Organize electronic 
filing system for better access and efficiency. (December 2023). 
 

3. Policy Review & Update – Review current policies and make recommendations to Authority 
Board for policy changes consistent with Authority practices and direction.  Utilize Governance 
Committee for review process.  Success: Put internal team together to review policies.  Priority 
will be procurement and design standard policies.  (Ongoing). 

 
4. Billing/Accounting Software Assessment – Hire third party consultant to assist in evaluating 

current billing and accounting software’s and recommend how to best procure a more 
centralized and interact software system.  Success: Work with consultant to develop RFP process 
that will procure the best software options for billing, budgeting, accounting, and HR functions 
saving staff time and improving organization of record keeping.  (December 2023). 
 

5. Greater Tompkins County Municipal Health Insurance Consortium - The Health Consortium 
launched in 2009 in Tompkins County includes sixteen contiguous counties in upstate NY with 53 
municipal partners. The goal of the Health Consortium is to provide competitive health 
insurance premiums to its members.  The Health Consortium has a NYS Insurance Article 47 
certificate and operates with state oversight to ensure financial stability.  In 2022 the Municipal 
Cooperative Agreement was amended to include Madison and Livingston Counties.  The New 
York State Department of Financial Services is currently reviewing the request to amend the 



2023 Work Plan: Livingston County Water & Sewer Authority February 14, 2023 
 

3 
 

Certificate of Coverage.  If expanded, the Authority would have the ability to apply for 
membership.  Savings Estimate:   $40,000 annually, based on current Authority health insurance 
costs.  Success:  Acceptance into the Consortium to achieve a reduction in healthcare costs with 
same coverage for 2024.  (December 2024). 

 
Operations 
 

1. Complete Income Survey – Current income data published in the American Community Survey’s 
five-year estimates determining Median Household Income in the Lakeville sewer system is not 
reflective of the population in the service.  As a result, the Board has approved an income survey 
of the Lakeville service area with the intent that the results of the survey would be used by EFC 
for determining hardship financing and additional subsidy eligibility, as well as qualifying for 
Community Development Block Grant (“CDBG”) program funding.  This would allow survey 
results to be used not only for future sewer projects but also water projects within that same 
service.  Success: Completion of the income survey in time for incorporation to CFA and EFC 
applications.  (May 2023). 

 
2. Develop Water Loss Management Strategy – Currently LCWSA has limited tracking and systems 

in place to monitor water loss.  Researching industry best practices will help develop a more 
comprehensive water loss management strategy to reduce the amount of revenue lost and 
identify infrastructure weaknesses.   Success: Review industry best practices and establish a 
water loss strategy for tracking water loss and making improvements to LCWSA water systems.  
(December 2023). 

 
3. Space Needs Assessment – The current administration building was originally built as a chemical 

storage building.  It was retrofitted over 25 years ago to accommodate LCWSA office staff.  With 
the addition of administrative staff in 2022, office and shop space needs to be evaluated to 
consider future growth.  This assessment will evaluate current and future space needs based on 
prospective growth.  Success: Completion of Space Needs Assessment.  Develop strategy to fund 
long-term office and facility needs.  (September 2023). 
 

4. Develop an Infiltration & Inflow (I/I) Program – As required NYS DEC consent order, LCWSA will 
need to create an I/I program.  Over the next year LCWSA will need to re-establish residential 
and commercial inspections and put forth a corrective action plan for non-compliant property 
owners.  Lastly a long-term and sustainable strategy needs to be developed for monitoring I/I.  
Establish procedures for system inspections, property inspections and compliance follow up.  
Develop a process for monitoring sewer flow levels throughout the system before and after 
recommendations are implemented. (October 2023). 
 

5. 2023 Grant Opportunities – Evaluate and strategically apply for funding for needed capital 
projects.  Grant programs can include but may not be limited to Water Infrastructure 
Improvement Act (WIIA), Community Development Block Grant (CDBG), Northern Border 
Regional Commission (NBRC), Great Lakes Commission (GLC), Congressional Spending Requests 



2023 Work Plan: Livingston County Water & Sewer Authority February 14, 2023 
 

4 
 

and Consolidated Funding Application (CFA).  Success:  Complete grant applications for as many 
programs that can advance the Authority’s initiatives.  (December 2023). 
 

6. Fire Hydrant Program – The Authority has several hundred fire hydrants throughout its 
distribution system composed of various vintage and models.  Regular maintenance, repairs and 
replacement is critical to ensure hydrants are kept in good working order.  In addition, 
developing a formal program identifying regular maintenance, flushing and repairs throughout 
the system is critical for budget planning.  Success:  Develop a systematic hydrant program that 
identifies the needed resources to ensure all hydrants are maintained and functioning.  
(September 2023). 
 

7. Develop Geographic Information Systems (GIS) Program – GIS mapping will allow the Authority 
to view, in a single electronic format and location, all sewer and water assets and infrastructure 
as well as pertinent information such as pipe size, type, age of material and past maintenance 
records. In addition, a comprehensive GIS program would allow for exact location of assets 
making it a valuable tool in helping you assess your overall system.  Currently the Authority has 
limited data available for the development of GIS mapping.  First steps in developing a 
successful and useful program will be to develop strategy for collecting/inputting data, 
developing a timeline for implementation and potential budget investments.  Success: Identify 
short and long-term objectives, budget and implementation schedule.  Begin to collect data 
points with resources currently available.  Research more on how to be proceed with program 
development.  Have strategy identified for 2024 budget.  (September 2023). 
 

8. Online Credit Card Payments – Currently the Authority only offers direct payment, mail-in and 
drop box options for bill payment.  Allowing on-line credit card bill payment through the website 
would provide another convenient method for customers to pay water/sewer bills.  Success:  
Investigate and implement on-line bill payment option for customers.  (December 2023). 
 

Personnel 

1. Grade "D" Water Operator's Certification Course – The Grade “D” course is a two-day course.  
Currently three of our seven Maintenance workers have their “D” water operator’s license.  
Having all maintenance workers with a “D” license will provide LCWSA will a greater level of 
training experience as we expand our customer base.  Course venues for attendance by staff as 
well as train the trainer options are being evaluated.   Success: Have all maintenance staff 
achieve a Grade “D” license.  (December 2023). 
 

2. Evaluate Staff Scheduling and Supervisory Structure – An evaluation of the supervisory 
structure, workorder system, work assignment and workflow process will allow for a better 
understanding of how to improve communication between customer service, work scheduling 
and work assignments can be achieved.  The primary objective of this effort is to better manage 
resources in the office and the field.  Success:  Complete evaluation, institute changes and 
measure results.  (July 2023). 
 
 



2023 Work Plan: Livingston County Water & Sewer Authority February 14, 2023 
 

5 
 

Development Opportunities 

The following are work items that have started in the current year and develop further in the upcoming 
year. 

1. Town Lima Water District #5 
2. Town of Leicester water transfer – Investigate possible transfer of water system to LCWSA. 
3. Town of Leicester sewer district – support Town efforts to establish sewer services in Cuylerville. 
4. Town of Sparta sewer district – support Town efforts to establish sewer services in Scottsburg. 
5. Support Water District Developments 

o Town of Groveland Water District #1 creation and construction (2023) 
o Town of Livonia creation of Central Water District 
o Town of Caledonia water district 

 



 
 
 
 

 

Livingston County Water & Sewer Authority 
PO Box 396, 1997 D’Angelo Drive, Lakeville, NY 14480 

(585) 346-3523 
www.lcwsa.us  

 
 
 

 

Executive Director 
Jason Molino 

 
Deputy Director 

Lauren Monaghan 

 
To:  Governance Committee 
 
From:  Jason Molino, Executive Director 
 
Date:  February 14, 2023 
 
Subject: Policy Updates 
 
 
1. Action Requested: 
 

Review and recommend to the Authority Board policy edits to existing Authority policies. 
 
2. Background: 
 

As part of the 2022 Workplan staff have been reviewing and updating current Authority policies to be 
consistent with current practices and laws.  This is an ongoing process as it is our intention to review all 
policies.  In addition, we are currently working on a standardized format that all policies will be 
incorporated into for consistency and ease of use. 
 
Below is an evaluation of several administrative policies referenced by a policy index number.  As stated, 
some policies are recommended to be discontinued, updated or combined with other policies.  During this 
review process the Authority Attorney was consulted regarding all policy updates.   
 
Attached to this memo are the current polices, redline versions of proposed updates and a clean version of 
the proposed changes.  Below is a brief explanation of each policy reviewed.  We will provide a more in-
depth overview at the Governance Committee meeting.   
 
Current policies: 
 
A01-000 Public Authorities Law – This is a copy of the Public Authorities Law at the time of adoption.  It 
is currently an outdated version of the Public Authorities Law.  It is recommended this policy be 
discontinued as the Public Authorities Law may change from time to time and the law can be accessed on-
line. 
 
A01-002 Ethics and Disclosure Law & A05-002 Code of Ethics.  Both policies are very similar.  It is 
recommended that one Code of Ethic be adopted by the Authority Board.  Attached is a redlined version 
of the proposed Code of Ethics.   
 
A01-003 Public Authorities Law 1995 & A02-001 NYS Enabling Legislation – These are the same copy 
of the Authority’s enabling legislation.  It is recommended that both be discontinued as a current link to 
the law is on the Authority’s website. 
 

http://www.lcwsa.us/


 
 
 
 

 

Livingston County Water & Sewer Authority 
PO Box 396, 1997 D’Angelo Drive, Lakeville, NY 14480 

(585) 346-3523 
www.lcwsa.us  

 
 
 

 

Executive Director 
Jason Molino 

 
Deputy Director 

Lauren Monaghan 

A01-004 LC Resolution requesting creation of LCWCA – This is a copy of the resolution by the 
Livingston County Board of Supervisor that requested to the State Legislature the creation of LCWSA.  
This is not a policy, and it is recommended policy be discontinued.  
 
A01-005 NYS Public Service Law-Water – This is a copy of fax from Boylan law firm to the prior 
Executive Director with an attachment of the Public Service Law at the time.  This is not needed as the 
Public Service Law changes from time to time and can be accessed on-line. 
 
A02-002 LCWSA Mission – This is a copy of our mission statement and performance measurements from 
2015.  It is recommended that the mission statement be a policy, but the performance measurements 
change annually and should not be a policy, but rather adopted by the Board via resolution when 
appropriate. 
 
A02-002.2 Mission Statement & Performance Measurements – This currently does not exist.  It is 
recommended this reference be discontinued. 
 
A02-003 Policies to be filed at the County Clerk’s Office – This policy is a December 28, 2007, email to 
the prior Executive Director.  These requirements can be covered under a separate policy A05-005 
Summary of Filing Requirements.  It is recommended this policy (A02-003) be discontinued. 
 
A02-004 Annual Internal Control Assessment – This is covered in the Public Authorities Law and does 
not need to be a standalone policy.  The Authority annual conducts an Annual Internal Control 
Assessment and presents its findings to the Board.  This is a requirement for our Authorities Budget 
Office (ABO) reporting to the State.  It is recommended this policy be discontinued. 
 
A05-000 Governance Committee Charter – This policy has been reviewed and updated based on 
Authorities Budget Office (ABO) guidance documents. 
   
A05-001 Bylaws – The By-laws have been reviewed and updated based on our enabling legislation and 
Public Authorities Law.  

 
A10-001 Privileges of the Floor – This policy has been included with revisions to the By-laws. It is 
recommended that the standalone policy be discontinued. 
 
A10-100 NYS Open Meetings Opinions – This policy is a March 16, 2007, email to a County staff 
member from the Committee on Open Government confirming that the Authority is subject to the Open 
Meetings Law.  It is recommended that this policy be discontinued as the Authority currently functions 
under this premise.  

 
A05-005 Summary of Filing Requirements – This policy identifies filing requirements as outlined in the 
Authority’s enabling legislation and Public Authorities Law.  It is recommended that the policy be 
reviewed, updated as needed and be re-adopted and indexed.  
 
 

http://www.lcwsa.us/


 
 
 
 

 

Livingston County Water & Sewer Authority 
PO Box 396, 1997 D’Angelo Drive, Lakeville, NY 14480 

(585) 346-3523 
www.lcwsa.us  

 
 
 

 

Executive Director 
Jason Molino 

 
Deputy Director 

Lauren Monaghan 

 
 
 
The following list of policies recommended to be adopted by the Board.  They have been re-indexed based 
on the recommendations referenced above.   
 
A01-001 Livingston County Water and Sewer Authority Mission   
A01-002 By Laws of the Livingston County Water and Sewer Authority 
A01-003 Code of Ethics 
A01-004 Governance Committee Charter 
 
Policy A05-005 Summary of Filing Requirements is currently being reviewed and will be brought the 
committee at an upcoming meeting.  It would be re-indexed as A01-005. 

 
3. Financial Implications: 

 
There are no financial implications with respect to the above referenced policies.  

 
 

 

http://www.lcwsa.us/


        
 
 

 

 

  Edited 03/02/2023 
                                                                                                   

A-001 
Livingston County Water & 

Sewer Authority Mission 

 
The Livingston County Water and Sewer Authority mission is to provide high quality, 

environmentally sound, efficient, reliable, and affordable water and sewer services to the people 
who live, work and visit Livingston County 



        
 
 

 

 

  Edited 03/02/2023 
                                                                                                   

A-002 
By-Laws of the 

Livingston County Water 
& Sewer Authority 

 
Article A: Organization  Article F: Officers 
 Section 1: Administration  Section 1: Officers 
 Section 2: Fiscal Year  Section 2: Chairperson 
 Section 3: Form of Seal  Section 3: Vice-Chairperson 
 Section 4: District of Definition  Section 4: Treasurer 
    Section 5: Secretary 
Article B: Members   Section 6: Additional Duties 
  Section 1: Members  Section 7: Election of Officers  
  Section 2: Qualifications of Members  Section 8: Removal and 
  Section 3: Official Oaths   Vacancies  
  Section 4: Vacancies 
  Section 5: Filling of Vacancies Article G: Records 
  Section 6: Removal of Member  Section 1: Definitions 
  Section 7: Unexcused Absence  Section 2: Records Required to 
   Of Member   be Maintained 
  Section 8: Compensation of Members 
    Article H: Amendment of By-Laws 
 
Article C: Meetings 
  Section 1: Annual Meeting 
  Section 2: Regular Meetings 
  Section 3: Special Meetings 
  Section 4: Notice of Members 
  Section 5: Quorum and Exercise of Powers 
  Section 6: Conduct of Meetings 
  Section 7: Procedure 
  Section 8: Minutes 
  Section 9: Privileges of the Floor 
 
Article D: Open Meetings 
  Section 1: General 
  Section 2: Accessibility 
  Section 3: Public Notice 
  Section 4: Executive Sessions 
  Section 5: Attendance 
 
Article E: Committees 
  Section 1: Committees 
  Section 2 Meetings 
  Section 3: Conduct of Meeting 
  Section 4: Minutes  
 
 
 
        
 



        
 
 

 

 

  Edited 03/02/2023 
                                                                                                   

A-002 
By-Laws of the 

Livingston County Water 
& Sewer Authority 

ARTICLE A: ORGANIZATION 
 

Section 1: Administration; The powers, organization and administration of the Livingston County Water 
and Sewer Authority (the “Authority”) shall be as authorized and established by the provisions of the 
Livingston County Water and Sewer Authority Act (the “Act”). The powers of the Authority shall be vested in 
the members thereof in office from time to time. 
 

Section 2: Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the Authority shall begin January 1 and end December 31 of 
each year. 
 

Section 3: Form of Seal. The seal of the Authority shall be in such form as may be determined, from 
time to time, by the Authority. The seal on any Authority obligation for the payment of money may be a 
facsimile. 

 
ARTICLE B: MEMBERS 

 
Section 1: Members. The Authority shall be governed by a Board consisting of seven (7) members 

(“Members”) appointed by resolution by the Board of Supervisors of Livingston County (the “Board of 
Supervisors”). 

 
Section 2: Qualifications of Members. Each member must, at the time he/she is appointed, have 

attained the age of eighteen years, be a citizen of the United States, a resident of New York State and resident of 
Livingston County.   

a) No Board member, including the chairperson, shall serve as the Authority’s chief executive 
officer, executive director, chief financial officer, comptroller, or hold any other equivalent 
position while also serving as a member of the Board. 

b) Pursuant to subdivision 2 of Section 2824 of the New York State Public Authorities Law 
(hereafter “PAL”), individuals appointed to the Board shall participate in state approved 
training regarding their legal, fiduciary, financial and ethical responsibilities as directors of the 
Authority within one year of appointment to the Board. Board Members shall participate in such 
continuing training as may be required to remain informed of best practices, regulatory and 
statutory changes relating to the effective oversight of the management and financial activities 
of public authorities and to adhere to the highest standards of responsible governance. 

c) Pursuant to subdivision 3 of Section 2825 of the PAL, all Authority Board members, officers 
and employees shall file annual financial disclosure statements with the Board of Ethics of the 
County of Livingston (the “County”) pursuant to Section 73-a of the New York State Public 
Officer’s Law. 

 
Section 3: Official Oaths. Each Member shall, within thirty (30) days after notice of his/her 

appointment or within thirty (30) days after the commencement of his/her term of office, take and subscribe to 
an oath or affirmation before entering the duties of his/her office. 

 The oath shall be administered by the County Clerk or Assistant County Clerk of Livingston County 
and shall be filed in the office of the County Clerk of Livingston County.  

At the time that each Member takes and subscribes his or her oath of office, he or she shall execute an 
acknowledgment in which the Board Member acknowledges that he or she understands his or her role, and 
fiduciary responsibilities as set forth in paragraph (g) of Section 2824 of the PAL, and acknowledges that he or 
she shall perform each of their duties as a Board Members in good faith and with that degree of diligence, care 



        
 
 

 

 

  Edited 03/02/2023 
                                                                                                   

A-002 
By-Laws of the 

Livingston County Water 
& Sewer Authority 

and skill which an ordinarily prudent person in like position would use under similar circumstances, and may 
take into 
consideration the views and policies of any elected official or body, or other person and ultimately apply 
independent judgment in the best interest of the Authority, its mission and the public; understands his or her 
duty of loyalty and care to the organization and commitment to the Authority's mission and the public interest. 
 

Section 4: Vacancies. The office of a Member shall be deemed vacant upon the happening of one of the 
following events before the expiration of the term thereof 

a.) The death of the Member 
b.) The resignation of the Member 
c.) The Member ceasing to be a resident of Livingston County; 
d.) The Member is convicted of a felony or a crime involving a violation of the oath of 

office; 
e.) The entry of a judgment or order of a court of competent jurisdiction declaring the 

Member to be incompetent; 
f.) The refusal or neglect of the Member to file the official oath within thirty (30) days 

after commencement of his/her term, except as otherwise provided by law. 
g.) The unexcused absence of a Member from three (3) consecutive regular meeting, as 

more fully set forth in, Article C. 
 

Section 5: Filling of Vacancies. Vacancies occurring at the end of a term shall each be filled in the 
manner provided in. Section 1 above and for a three (3) year term. Vacancies occurring otherwise than by the 
expiration of a term shall be filled in the same manner as set forth in. Section 1 for the remainder of the 
unexpired term. 

 
Section 6: Removal of Member. A Member may be removed from office by the Board of Supervisors 

for inefficiency, breach of fiduciary duty, neglect of duty or misconduct in office and for the same reasons as 
provided by law for the removal of officers of Livingston County. Prior to removal, the Board of Supervisors 
shall give such Member a copy of the charges against him/her and an opportunity to be heard in person or by 
counsel in his/her defense, upon not less than ten (10) days notice. 

 
Section 7: Unexcused Absence of Member. If a Member fails to attend three consecutive regular 

meetings of the Authority, unless such absence is for good cause and is excused by the Chairperson of the 
Authority, or other presiding officer, , either prior to or subsequent to the meeting, the office may be deemed 
vacant for the purposes of the nomination and appointment of a successor. The Secretary of the Authority shall 
send a written reminder of the provisions of this Section to a Member who has two consecutive unexcused 
absences. 
 

Section 8: Compensation of Members. The Officers of the Authority shall receive from the Authority 
such salary if any as shall be determined from time to time by the Board. Members and officers shall be 
reimbursed for all their actual and necessary expenses, including travel expenses, incurred in carrying out their 
duties.  The Authority may not grant loans or extend credit to members, officers or employees of the Authority. 
 
 
 
 
 



        
 
 

 

 

  Edited 03/02/2023 
                                                                                                   

A-002 
By-Laws of the 

Livingston County Water 
& Sewer Authority 

ARTICLE C: MEETINGS 
 

Section 1: Annual Meeting. The first meeting in each fiscal year shall be the annual meeting of the 
Authority and shall be held at the time and place, within Livingston County, designated in the notice of same. 
 

Section 2: Regular Meetings. Regular meetings of the Authority shall be held at the time and place, 
designated at the annual meeting or from time to time by Resolution of the Board. 
 

Section 3: Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Authority may be called by the “Chairperson,” or 
by the Board or shall be called by the Secretary upon the written request of at least two Members. Each special 
meeting shall be held at the time and place, within Livingston County, as the person calling the meeting shall 
determine. 
 

Section 4: Notice to Members. No notice need be given to Members of a regular meeting of the 
Authority. Notice of the place, day and hour of every special meeting shall be given to each Member by 
delivering the notice to the Member personally, by email or by leaving the notice at his/her residence or usual 
place of business at least three (3) days before the meeting. No notice of an adjourned meeting of the Authority 
need be given to Members other than by announcement of the meeting. Notice of any meeting need not be given 
to any Member who submits a signed waiver of notice thereof before, at or after the meeting, nor to any 
Member who attends the meeting without protesting, prior to or at the commencement of the meeting, the lack 
of notice to him/her. Neither the business to be transacted at, nor the purpose of, any meeting of the Authority 
need be specified in any notice or written waiver of notice unless so required by these By-Laws or by law, 
except that notices of special meetings shall specify the business to be transacted. 
 

Section 5: Quorum and exercise of powers. Four (4) Members shall constitute a quorum authorized to 
transact any business presented at the meeting of the Authority. All action shall be taken by the affirmative vote 
of at least four (4) of the Members of the Authority. 
When a quorum is one present to organize a meeting, it is not broken by the subsequent withdrawal of a 
Member. The Members present may adjourn the meeting despite the absence of a quorum. 
 

Section 6: Conduct of Meetings. At all meetings of the Authority, the Chairperson shall be the presiding 
officer, or if the office of Chairperson is vacant or in the absence or disability of the Chairperson, then the Vice 
Chairperson shall be the presiding officer; if the office of Vice Chairperson is vacant or the Vice Chairperson is 
absent or disabled, the Members of the Authority shall choose a presiding officer from among those Members 
present, to preside at such 
meeting. The Secretary of the Authority, except as otherwise provided by the Authority shall act as Secretary at 
all meetings of the Authority, and in the absence of the Secretary or an Assistant Secretary, a temporary 
Secretary shall be appointed by the presiding officer. 
 

Section 7: Procedure. The order of business and all other matters of procedure at each meeting of the 
Authority may be determined by the presiding officer. 
 

Section 8: Minutes. Minutes shall be taken at all meetings of the Authority and its committees which 
shall consist of a record or summary of all motions, proposals, resolutions and any other matter formally voted 
upon and the vote thereon. Such minutes shall be available to the public in accordance with the provisions of the 
Freedom of Information Law. (Public Officers Law, Article 6). 

 



        
 
 

 

 

  Edited 03/02/2023 
                                                                                                   

A-002 
By-Laws of the 

Livingston County Water 
& Sewer Authority 

Section 9: Privileges of the Floor.  Anyone wishing to have privileges of the floor at an Authority Board 
meeting must provide notice Seven (7) business days before the meeting date.   Notice may be given to any 
Board Member or officer of the Board in person or via phone, text, fax, e-mail or mail.  The Chairman of the 
Board may limit time and number of privileges of the floor granted at any meeting. It is the discretion of the 
Chairman of the Board or majority of the Board if privileges will be granted under or outside of this policy. 
 

ARTICLE D: OPEN MEETINGS 
(PUBLIC OFFICERS LAW, ARTICLE 7) 

 
Section 1: General. Every meeting of the Authority and its committees shall be open to the general 

public except for Executive Sessions or meetings by the Members with legal counsel for purposes of 
attorney/client privileged discussions. 
 

Section 2: Accessibility. The Authority shall make or cause to be made all reasonable efforts to ensure 
that meetings subject to this Section are held in facilities that permit barrier-free physical access to the 
physically handicapped. 
 

Section 3: Public Notice. Public notice of the time and place of all meetings subject to this Section shall 
be given to the news media and conspicuously posted in one or more designated public locations: 

a). At least 72 hours in advance if the meeting is scheduled at least one week prior thereto, or 
b). Otherwise, at a reasonable time prior thereto. 

 
Section 4: Executive Sessions. Upon a vote of at least four (4) Members, taken in an open meeting 

pursuant to a motion identifying the general area or areas of the subject or subjects to be considered, the 
Authority may conduct an executive session for the below enumerated purposes only, provided, however, that 
no action by formal vote shall be taken in executive session to appropriate public moneys: 

a) Matter which will imperil the public safety if disclosed; 
b) Any matter which may disclose the identity of a law enforcement agent or informer; 
c) Information relating to current or future investigation or prosecution of a criminal offense which 

would imperil effective law enforcement if disclosed; 
d) Discussion regarding proposed, pending or current litigation; 
e) Collective negotiations pursuant to article fourteen of the civil service law; 
f) The medical, financial, credit or employment history of a particular person or corporation, or 

matters leading to the appointment, employment, promotion, demotion, discipline, suspension, 
dismissal or removal of a particular person or corporation; 

g) The preparation, grading or administration of examination; and  
h) The proposed acquisition of securities, or sale or exchange of securities held by the Authority, but 

only when publicity would substantially affect the value thereof. 
i) “Any other reason authorized by law.” 

 
Section 5: Attendance. Attendance at an Executive Session shall be permitted to any Member and by 

any other persons authorized by the Authority pursuant to the vote to enter into such Executive Session. 
 
 

 
 
 



        
 
 

 

 

  Edited 03/02/2023 
                                                                                                   

A-002 
By-Laws of the 

Livingston County Water 
& Sewer Authority 

ARTICLE E: COMMITTEES 
 

Section 1: Committees. The Authority may create a management committee and one or more other 
committees of the Authority, each consisting of three or more Members of the Authority, which committees 
shall serve in an advisory capacity only, and no committee shall be delegated any powers of the Authority. The 
Chairperson shall have the authority to appoint and remove Committee Members. Appointments to regular 
committees shall be made as soon as possible after the commencement of the fiscal year. Appointments to 
special committees shall be made at the time the committee is formed.   

 
a)  For the purposes of this section, an independent member is one who: 

1) is not, and in the past two years has not been, employed by the Authority an executive 
capacity; 

2) is not, and in the past two years has not been, employed by an entity that received 
remuneration valued at more than fifteen thousand dollars for goods and services provided to 
the Authority or received any other form of financial assistance valued at more than fifteen 
thousand dollars from the Authority; 

3) is not a relative of an executive officer or employee in an executive position of the Authority; 
and 

4) is not, and in the past two years has not been, a lobbyist registered under a state or local law 
and paid by a client to influence the management decisions, contract awards, rate 
determinations or any other similar actions of the Authority or an affiliate. 

b)  Pursuant to PAL Section 2824 subsection 4, the Members shall establish and maintain an Audit 
Committee to be comprised of not less than three independent Members, who shall constitute a 
majority on the Committee, and who shall possess the necessary skills to understand the duties and 
functions of the Audit Committee; provided, however, that in the event that the Board has less than 
three independent Members, the Board may appoint non-independent Members to the Audit 
Committee, provided that the independent Members must constitute a majority of the Members of 
the Audit Committee. The Committee shall recommend to the Board the hiring of a certified 
independent accounting firm for the Authority, establish the compensation to be paid to the 
accounting firm and provide direct oversight of the performance of the independent audit performed 
by the accounting firm hired for such purposes.  Members of the Audit Committee shall be familiar 
with corporate financial and accounting practices. 

c)  Pursuant to PAL Section 2824 subsection 6, the Members shall establish and maintain a Governance 
Committee to be comprised of not less than three independent Members, who shall constitute a 
majority on the Committee, and who shall possess the necessary skills to understand the duties and 
functions of the Governance Committee; provided, however, that in the event that a Board has less 
than three independent Members, the Board may appoint non-independent Members to the 
Governance Committee, provided that the independent Members must constitute a majority of the 
Members of the Governance Committee. It shall be the responsibility of the Members of the 
Governance Committee to keep the Board informed of current best governance practices; to review 
corporate governance trends; to recommend updates to the Authority's corporate governance 
principles; to advise appointing entities on the skills and experiences required of potential Board 
Members; to examine ethical and conflict of interest issues; to perform Board self-evaluations; and 
to recommend by-laws which include rules and procedures for conduct of Board business; and 

d)  Pursuant to PAL Section 2824 subsection 8, because the Authority does periodically issue debt, the 
Members shall establish and maintain a Finance Committee to be 
comprised of not less than three independent Members, who shall 



        
 
 

 

 

  Edited 03/02/2023 
                                                                                                   

A-002 
By-Laws of the 

Livingston County Water 
& Sewer Authority 

constitute a majority on the Committee, and who shall possess the 
necessary skills to understand the duties and functions of the 
Committee; provided, however, that in the event that a Board has less 
than three independent Members, the Board may appoint non-independent 
Members to the Finance Committee, provided that the independent Members 
must constitute a majority of the Members of the Finance Committee. It 
shall be the responsibility of the Members of the Finance Committee to 
review proposals for the issuance of debt by the Authority and its 
subsidiaries and make recommendations. 

 
Section 2: Meetings. Meetings of any committee of the Authority may be held at such places within 

Livingston County as the committee shall determine. Regular meetings of any committee of the Authority shall 
be held at such times as may be determined by either the Authority or such committee, and no notice to 
Members of the Committee shall be required for any regular meeting. Special meetings of any committee shall 
be called by the Secretary of the Authority upon the request of any two Members thereof. Notice of special 
meetings of any committee shall be given by mailing or emailing the same, at least three (3) days before the day 
on which the meeting is to be held, to the address or email address of each Member designated by him/her for 
such purpose (or, if none is designated by him/her for such purpose, to his/her last known address) or by 
delivering it personally at least twelve (12) hours in advance of the time for which the meeting is called. Notice 
of any meeting need not be given to any committee member who submits a signed waiver of notice thereof 
before, at or after the meeting of any committee need be specified in any notice or written waiver of notice 
unless so required by these By-Laws, except that notices of special meetings shall specify the business to be 
transacted. 
 
 Section 3: Conduct of Meeting. The Chairperson of the committee or, in the event that the office of 
committee Chairperson is vacant or in the absence or disability of the committee Chairperson, such other 
Member of the committee as is chosen by the committee shall preside at each meeting of the committee. The 
Secretary of the Authority, except as otherwise provided by the Authority, shall act as Secretary at all meetings 
of the committee, and in the absence of the Secretary or any Assistant Secretary, a temporary Secretary shall be 
appointed by the Chairperson of the committee meeting. 
 
              Section 4: Minutes. All committees shall keep minutes of their meetings in accordance with, Article C, 
Section 8; minutes of committee meetings shall be circulated to all Members of the Authority. 

 
ARTICLE F: OFFICERS 

 
Section 1: Officers. The Officers of the Authority shall consist of a Chairperson. a Vice Chairperson. a 

Treasurer and a Secretary and such other officers as the Authority may appoint from time to time. The 
Chairperson, Vice Chairperson and Treasurer shall be Members of the Authority Board: the Secretary need not 
be a Member of the Authority. No person may hold more than one office at the same time.  
 

Section 2: Chairperson. The Chairperson shall preside at all meetings of the Authority. Except as 
otherwise authorized by resolution of the Authority, the Chairperson shall execute all agreements, contracts, 
deeds and any other instruments of the Authority. At each meeting, the Chairperson and/or the Executive 
Director shall submit such recommendations and information considered proper concerning the business, affairs 
and policies of the Authority. 

 



        
 
 

 

 

  Edited 03/02/2023 
                                                                                                   

A-002 
By-Laws of the 

Livingston County Water 
& Sewer Authority 

Section 3: Vice Chairperson. The Vice Chairperson shall, in the event of absence or disability of the 
Chairperson, perform all of the duties and responsibilities of the Chairperson. 
 

Section 4: Treasurer. The Treasurer shall have the care and custody of all funds of the Authority and 
shall deposit or cause the same to be deposited in the name of the Authority in such banks and/or trust 
companies in the State of New York as designated by the Authority or invested in accordance with the Section 
2925 of the PAL and Section 98-a of the New York  State Finance Law. Any deposit of such moneys shall be 
secured by (or guaranteed by) obligations of the United States, the State of New York, or Livingston County, of 
a market value equal at all times to the amount on deposit. The Treasurer shall keep or cause to be kept regular 
books of account showing receipts and expenditures, and shall render to the Authority as the Authority shall 
require an account of transactions and also of the financial condition of the Authority.  
 

          Section 5: Secretary. The Secretary shall keep the records of the Authority, including the records 
required to be maintained in, Article C3, Section 6 of these By-Laws, shall act as Secretary of the meetings of 
the Authority and its committees and record all votes, shall keep a record of the proceedings of the Authority in 
a journal of proceedings, and shall perform duties incident to the office. The Secretary shall have the power to 
affix the Authority seal to all contracts and other instruments authorized to be executed by the Authority. The 
Secretary shall provide all Members with a copy of the agenda for regular meetings no less than two (2) days 
prior to the meeting to the email address of each Member designated by him/her for such purpose.  The 
Secretary shall provide a paper copy any Member requesting such. 
 

Section 6: Additional duties. The officers of the Authority shall perform such other duties and functions 
as may from time to time be authorized by resolution of the Authority or be required by the Authority, by the 
By Laws of the Authority or be the rules and regulations of the Authority. The Chairperson shall have the power 
to appoint, on a temporary basis until the Authority next meets, an acting Treasurer, Vice Chairperson, or 
Secretary in the event these positions become vacant or their office holders cannot fulfill their duties due to 
absence or disability. 
 

Section 7: Election of Officers. All officers of the Authority shall be elected at the annual meeting of 
the Authority from among the Members of the Authority and shall hold office for one year or until the 
successors are elected and qualified. Nothing herein shall prevent an individual from succeeding himself/herself 
in office. 

 
Section 8: Removal and vacancies. All officers serve at the pleasure of the Authority and an officer 

may be removed or have his/her authority suspended by the Authority at any time, with or without cause. If an 
office becomes vacant for any reason, the Members of the Authority shall have the power to fill such vacancy. 
 

ARTICLE G: RECORDS 
(PUBLIC OFFICERS LAW, ARTICLE 6) 

 
Section 1: Definition. “Record means any information kept, held, filed, produced, or reproduced by, 

with or for the Authority, in any physical form whatsoever, including, but not limited to, reports, statements, 
examinations, memoranda, opinions, folders, files, books, manuals, pamphlet, forms, papers, designs, drawing, 
maps, photos, letters, microfilms, computer tapes or discs, rules, regulations or codes.” 

 
Section 2: Records required to be maintained. The Authority shall maintain the following records: (a) a 

record of the final vote of each Member in every Authority proceeding in which the Member votes, (b) a record 



        
 
 

 

 

  Edited 03/02/2023 
                                                                                                   

A-002 
By-Laws of the 

Livingston County Water 
& Sewer Authority 

setting forth the name, public office address, title and salary of every Member, officer or employee of the 
Authority, and (c) a reasonably detailed current list by subject matter of all records in the possession of the 
Authority. 

ARTICLE H: AMENDMENT OF BY LAWS 
 

Section 1: Amendment and Repeal. By-Laws may be repealed (except where provisions of sections of 
the Laws of the State of New York are incorporated), amended (except where provisions of sections of the 
Laws of the State of New York are incorporated) or adopted by the Board. 
 

Section 2: Filing of By-laws. The Secretary of the Authority shall file a certified copy of the By-Laws, 
and any amendments thereto, with the office of the Livingston County Clerk. 
 
 

 



        
 
 

 

 

  Edited 03/02/2023 
                                                                                                   

A-003 
Code of Ethics 

 

 
PURPOSE  

These policies are based on the requirements of New York State Public Officers Law Section 74 and 
shall serve as a guide for official conduct and are intended to enhance the ethical and professional 
performance of the Authority's directors and employees and to preserve public confidence in the 
Authority’s mission.  

 
SCOPE  

This Code of Ethics shall apply to all directors, officers and employees of the Livingston County Water 
and Sewer Authority (“Authority”). 

POLICY  

I. Responsibility of Directors and Employees 
1. Directors and employees shall perform their duties with transparency, without favor and refrain from 

engaging in outside matters of financial or personal interest, including other employment, that could 
impair independence of judgment, or prevent the proper exercise of one's official duties. 

2. Directors and employees shall not accept employment or engage in any business or professional activity 
which will require him or her to disclose confidential information which he or she has gained by reason 
of his or her official position with the Authority. 

3. Directors and employees shall not directly or indirectly, make, advise, or assist any person to make any 
financial investment based upon information available through the director's or employee's official 
position that could create any conflict between their public duties and interests and their private 
interests. 

4. Directors and employees shall not make personnel investments in enterprises which he or she has reason 
to believe may be directly involved in decisions to be made by him or her with regard to the Authority or 
which will otherwise create substantial conflict between his or her duty in the public interest and his or 
her private interest. 

5. Directors and employees shall not accept or receive any gift or gratuities where the circumstances would 
permit the inference that: (a) the gift is intended to influence the individual in the performance of official 
business or (b) the gift constitutes a tip, reward, or sign of appreciation for any official act by the 
individual. This prohibition extends to any form of financial payments, services, loans, travel 
reimbursement, entertainment, hospitality, thing or promise from any entity doing business with or 
before the Authority. 

6. Directors and employees shall not use or attempt to use their official position with the Authority to 
secure unwarranted privileges for themselves, members of their family or others, including employment 
with the Authority or contracts for materials or services with the Authority. 

7. Directors and employees shall not disclose confidential information acquired by him or her in the course 
of his or her official duties nor use such information to further his or her personal interests. 

8. Directors and employees must conduct themselves at all times in a manner that avoids any appearance 
that they can be improperly or unduly influenced, or unduly enjoy his or her favor in the performance of 
his or her official duties, or that he or she is affected by the kinship, rank, position or influence of any 
party or person, or that they are acting in violation of their public trust. 



        
 
 

 

 

  Edited 03/02/2023 
                                                                                                   

A-003 
Code of Ethics 

 

9. Directors and employees shall endeavor to pursue a course of conduct which will not raise suspicion 
among the public that he or she is likely to be engaged in acts that are in violation of his or her trust. 

10. Directors and employees may not engage in any official transaction with an outside entity in which they 
have a direct or indirect interest, financial or otherwise, that may substantially conflict with the proper 
discharge of their official duties. 

11. Directors and employees shall manage all matters within the scope of the Authority’s mission 
independent of any other affiliations or employment. Directors, including ex-officio board members, and 
employees employed by more than one government shall strive to fulfill their professional responsibility 
to the Authority without bias and shall support the Authority’s mission to the fullest. 

12. Directors and employees shall not use Authority property, including equipment, telephones, vehicles, 
computers, or other resources, or disclose information acquired in the course of their official duties in a 
manner inconsistent with State or local law or policy and the Authority’s mission and goals. 

II. Implementation of Code of Ethics 
This Code of Ethics shall be provided to all directors and employees upon commencement of 
employment or appointment and shall be reviewed annually by the Authority Board. The Board may 
designate an Ethics Officer, or the Authority Attorney shall act as the Ethics Officer until one may be 
designated by the Board, who shall report to the Board and shall have the following duties: 

• Counsel in confidence Authority directors and employees who seek advice about ethical 
behavior. 

• Receive and investigate complaints about possible ethics violations. 

• Dismiss complaints found to be without substance. 

• Prepare an investigative report of their findings for action by the Executive Director or 
the board. 

• Record the receipt of gifts or gratuities of any kind received by a director or employee, 
who shall notify the Ethics Officer within 48 hours of receipt of such gifts and gratuities. 

III. Violations and Penalties 
In addition to any penalty contained in any other provision of law, an Authority director or employee who 
knowingly and intentionally violates any of the provisions of this code may be fined, suspended or removed 
in the manner provided for in law, rules or regulations.  

IV. Reporting Unethical Behavior 
Employees and directors are required to report possible unethical behavior by a director or employee of the 
Authority to the Ethics Officer. Employees and directors may file ethics complaints anonymously and are 
protected from retaliation by the policies adopted by the Authority.  

 



        
 
 

 

 

  Edited 03/02/2023 
                                                                                                   

A-004 
Governance 

Committee Charter 

 
PURPOSE  

The purpose of the Governance Committee is to assist the Authority Board by keeping the Board 
informed of current best practices in corporate governance; reviewing corporate governance trends 
for their applicability to the Authority; updating the Authority’s corporate governance principles, 
policies and practices; and advising those responsible for appointing members to the Board on the 
skill, qualities and professional or educational experiences necessary to be effective Board members. 

 
SCOPE  

This Governance Committee Charter was adopted by the Board of the Livingston County Water & Sewer 
Authority, a public benefit corporation established under the laws of the State of New York, on December 
27, 2006. 

CHARTER  

I. Power of the Governance Committee 
The Board Members have delegated to the governance committee the power and authority necessary to 
discharge its duties, as per the Authority By-Laws, including: 

 
• Meet with and obtain any information it may require from authority staff. 
• Obtain advice and assistance from in-house or outside counsel, accounting and other advisors as the 

committee deems necessary. 
• Solicit, at the Authority’s expense, persons having special competencies, including legal, accounting 

or other consultants as the committee deems necessary to fulfill its responsibilities. The governance 
committee shall have the authority to negotiate the terms and conditions of any contractual 
relationship subject to the Board’s adopted procurement guidelines as per Public Authorities Law 
Section 2879, and to present such contracts to the Board for its approval. 

II. Composition and Selection                                                                                                   
The membership of the committee shall be as set forth in accordance with and pursuant to Article E, Section 
1 of the Authority’s By-Laws.  The governance committee shall consist of no fewer than three independent 
members of the Board.  The governance committee members shall be appointed by and will serve at the 
discretion of the Board.  The Board may designate one member of the governance committee as its Chair. 
The members shall serve until their resignation, retirement, removal by the Board or until their successors 
shall be appointed and qualified. When feasible, the immediate past governance committee Chair will 
continue serving as a member of the Committee for at least one year to ensure an orderly transition. 
Governance committee members shall be prohibited from being an employee of the Authority or an 
immediate family member of an employee of the Authority. In addition, governance committee members 
shall not engage in any private business transactions with the Authority or receive compensation from any 
private entity that has material business relationships with the Authority or be an immediate family member 
of an individual that engages in private business transactions with the Authority or receives compensation 
from an entity that has material business relationships with the Authority. The governance committee 
members should be knowledgeable or become knowledgeable in matters pertaining to governance. 

 



        
 
 

 

 

  Edited 03/02/2023 
                                                                                                   

A-004 
Governance 

Committee Charter 

III. Committee Structure and Meetings 
The governance committee will meet as necessary to adequately fulfill all the obligations and duties outlined 
in the charter.  All committee members are expected to attend each meeting, in person or via telephone or 
videoconference.  Meetings will be held per the Authority By-Laws. 

 
Meeting agendas will be prepared for every meeting and provided to the governance committee members at 
least five days in advance of the scheduled meeting, along with the appropriate materials needed to make 
informed decisions. The governance committee shall act only on the affirmative vote of a majority of the 
members at a meeting or by unanimous consent. Minutes of these meetings are to be recorded. 

IV. Reports 
The governance committee shall: 

 
• Report its actions and recommendations to the Board at the next regular meeting of the Board. 
• Report to the Board, at least annually, regarding any proposed changes to the governance charter or 

the governance guidelines. 
• Provide a self-evaluation of the governance committee’s functions on an annual basis. 

V. Responsibilities 
To accomplish the objectives of good governance and accountability, the governance committee has 
responsibilities related to: (a) the Authority’s Board; (b) evaluation of the Authority’s policies; and (c) other 
miscellaneous issues. 

VI. Relationship to the Authority’s Board 
 

The Board has delegated to the governance committee the responsibility to review, develop, draft, revise or 
oversee policies and practices for which the governance committee has specific expertise, as follows: 

 
• Develop the Authority’s governance practices as necessary.  These practices should address 

transparency, independence, accountability, fiduciary responsibilities, and management oversight. 
• Develop the competencies and personal attributes required of members to assist the Livingston 

County Board of Supervisors in identifying qualified individuals. 
 

In addition, the governance committee shall: 
 

• Recommend to the Board the number and structure of committees to be created by the Board. 
• Develop and provide recommendations to the Board regarding board member education, including 

new member orientation and regularly scheduled board member training to be obtained from state-
approved trainers. 

• Develop and provide recommendations to the Board on performance evaluation, including 
coordination and oversight of such evaluation of the Board, its committees and senior management 
in the Authority’s governance process. 

  

 



        
 
 

 

 

  Edited 03/02/2023 
                                                                                                   

A-004 
Governance 

Committee Charter 

VII. Evaluation of the Authority’s Policies  
The governance committee shall:: 

 
• Develop, review on a regular basis, and update as necessary the Authority’s code of ethics and 

written policies regarding conflicts of interest. Such code of ethics and policies shall be at least as 
stringent as the laws, rules, regulations and policies applicable to state officers and employees. 

• Develop and recommend to the Board any required revisions to the Authority’s written policies 
regarding the protection of whistleblowers from retaliation. 

• Develop and recommend to the Board any required revisions to the Authority’s equal opportunity 
and affirmative action policies. 

• Develop and recommend to the Board any required updates on the Authority’s written policies 
regarding procurement of goods and services, including policies relating to the disclosure of persons 
who attempt to influence the Authority’s procurement process. 

• Develop and recommend to the Board any required updates on the authority’s written policies 
regarding the disposition of real and personal property. 

• Develop and recommend to the Board any other policies or documents relating to the governance of 
the Authority, including rules and procedures for conducting the business of the Authority’s Board, 
such as the Authority’s by-laws. The governance committee will oversee the implementation and 
effectiveness of the by-laws and other governance documents and recommend modifications as 
needed. 

VIII. Other Responsibilities 
The governance committee shall: 

 
• Review on an annual basis the compensation and benefits for the Executive Director and other senior 

Authority officials. 
• Annually review, assess and make necessary changes to the governance committee charter and 

provide a self-evaluation of the governance committee. 
 
 

 
 
 

 



 
 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-10 

 
 

RESOLUTION ADOPTING ADMINISTRATIVE POLICIES A-001 – A-004 
 

WHEREAS, The Livingston County Water and Sewer Authority (the “Authority”) currently has 
the following Administrative Policies:  

 
A001-000 Public Authority Law 
A01-002 Ethics and Disclosure Law 1995 
A01-003 Public Authority Law 1995 
A01-004 Livingston County Resolution requestion creation of LCWSA 
A01-005 NYS Public Service Law - Water  
A02-001 NYS Enabling Legislation 
A02-002 LCWSA Mission 
A02-002.2 Mission Statement & Performance Measurements 
A02-003 Policies to be filed at the County Clerk’s Office 
A02-004 Annual Internal Control Assessment 
A05-001 By-laws 
A05-002 Code of Ethics 
A05-005 Summary of Filing Requirements 
A10-001 Privileges of the Floor 
A10-100 NYS Open Meeting Law Opinions 
 
WHEREAS, Authority staff, including the Authority’s Attorney, have analyzed and reviewed the 

current Administrative Policies; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Governance Committee has reviewed and recommends the Administrative 
Policies attached hereto, to be utilized as the official policies for the Authority, and now therefore be it, 
 

RESOLVED, the Livingston County Water and Sewer Authority Board hereby adopts the 
Administrative Policies, attached hereto, as the official policies for the Authority Board, and be it 
further, 

 
RESOLVED, that effective immediately, the Administrative Policies: 
 
A-001 Livingston County Water and Sewer Authority Mission 
A-002 By-Laws of the Livingston County Water and Sewer Authority 
A-003 Code of Ethics 
A-004 Governance Committee Charter 
 

shall replace existing Administrative Policies: 
 

A001-000 Public Authority Law 
A01-002 Ethics and Disclosure Law 1995 
A01-003 Public Authority Law 1995 



A01-004 Livingston County Resolution requestion creation of LCWSA 
A01-005 NYS Public Service Law - Water  
A02-001 NYS Enabling Legislation 
A02-002 LCWSA Mission 
A02-002.2 Mission Statement & Performance Measurements 
A02-003 Policies to be filed at the County Clerk’s Office 
A02-004 Annual Internal Control Assessment 
A05-001 By-laws 
A05-002 Code of Ethics 
A05-005 Summary of Filing Requirements 
A10-001 Privileges of the Floor 
A10-100 NYS Open Meeting Law Opinions 
 

and said Administrative Policies are hereby null and void, and no longer in use by the Authority. 
 
 
March 15, 2023 
Livingston County Water & Sewer Authority 
Moved By: 
Seconded By: 
AYES: 
NAYS: 
 
 
 



March 8, 2023 

To the Board Members of 
  Livingston County Water and Sewer Authority 

We have audited the financial statements of the Livingston County Water and Sewer 
Authority  (the  Authority)  for  the  year  ended  December  31,  2022.  Professional 
standards  require  that we provide you with  information about our  responsibilities 
under generally accepted auditing  standards and Government Auditing Standards, 
as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. 
We have  communicated  such  information  in our  letter  to  you dated October 27, 
2022. Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following 
information related to our audit. 

SIGNIFICANT AUDIT MATTERS 

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 
Management  is  responsible  for  the  selection  and  use  of  appropriate  accounting 
policies. The significant accounting policies used by  the Authority are described  in 
Note 2 to the financial statements.  

As discussed  in  the  footnotes  to  the  financial statements,  the Authority adopted 
GASB Statement No. 87, Leases.  

We noted no transactions entered into by the Authority during the year for which 
there  is a  lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions 
have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period. 

Accounting estimates are an  integral part of  the  financial  statements prepared by 
management  and  are  based  on management’s  knowledge  and  experience  about 
past and current events and assumptions about  future events. Certain accounting 
estimates  are  particularly  sensitive  because  of  their  significance  to  the  financial 
statements  and  because  of  the  possibility  that  future  events  affecting  them may 
differ significantly from those expected.  The most sensitive estimates affecting the 
financial statements were: 

 The net pension asset and related deferred inflows/outflows of resources,
which are based on actuarial assumptions utilized by an actuary applied to
the pension plan’s census information.

 The Total Other Postemployment Benefits  liability, which  is based on an
actuarial  valuation  and  is  significant  in  the  Authority’s  financial
statements.

We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop these estimates in 
determining that they are reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken 
as a whole. 

1

Draf
t- 

Su
bje

ct
to 

Cha
ng

e



Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial 
statement users.  

The  disclosure  of  the Authority’s  pension  plan  in  the  footnotes  describes  the  plan  and  the  related 
pension asset or liability along with the deferred inflows/outflows of resources that are recognized. 

The disclosure of the Authority’s Total Other Postemployment Benefit liability along with any deferred 
inflows/outflows of resources describes the obligation to the Authority at year end. 

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 
We encountered no  significant difficulties  in dealing with management  in performing and completing 
our audit. 

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 
Professional  standards  require us  to accumulate all known and  likely misstatements  identified during 
the audit, other  than  those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them  to the appropriate  level of 
management. 

The misstatements identified in our audit, and corrected by management, are displayed on Exhibit A.  

Disagreements with Management 
For purposes of  this  letter,  a disagreement with management  is  a  financial  accounting,  reporting, or 
auditing matter, whether or not  resolved  to our satisfaction,  that could be significant  to  the  financial 
statements or the auditor’s report.  

We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit. 

Management Representations 
We have  requested  certain  representations  from management  that are  included  in  the management 
representation letter dated the same date as our Independent Auditor’s Report. 

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 
In  some  cases,  management  may  decide  to  consult  with  other  accountants  about  auditing  and 
accounting matters,  similar  to  obtaining  a  “second  opinion”  on  certain  situations.  If  a  consultation 
involves application of an accounting principle to the Authority’s financial statements or a determination 
of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards 
require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant 
facts.  

To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants. 

Other Audit Findings or Issues 
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the Authority’s auditors.  

However,  these  discussions  occurred  in  the  normal  course  of  our  professional  relationship  and  our 
responses were not a condition to our retention. 

2

Draf
t- 

Su
bje

ct
to 

Cha
ng

e



Other Matters 
We  applied  certain  limited  procedures  to  the  Management’s  Discussion  and  Analysis,  Schedule  of 
Changes in Total Other Postemployment Benefit Liability and Related Ratios, Schedule of Proportionate 
Share  of Net  Pension  Liability  (Asset),  and  the  Schedule  of  Contributions  ‐  Pension  Plans, which  are 
required  supplementary  information  (RSI)  that  supplements  the  basic  financial  statements.  Our 
procedures consisted of  inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the  information 
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial  statements,  and  other  knowledge  we  obtained  during  our  audit  of  the  basic  financial 
statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI. 

We were engaged  to  report on  the  Schedule of Revenue, Expenses, and Change  in Net Position and 
Schedule  of  Operating  Expenses,  which  accompany  the  financial  statements  but  are  not  RSI. With 
respect to this supplementary information, we made certain inquiries of management and evaluated the 
form, content, and methods of preparing the  information to determine that  the  information complies 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the method of preparing 
it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to 
our audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled the supplementary  information to 
the  underlying  accounting  records  used  to  prepare  the  financial  statements  or  to  the  financial 
statements themselves. 

Restriction on Use 
This  information  is  intended  solely  for  the  use  of  the  Audit  Committee,  Board  of  Directors  and 
management of the Authority and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than 
these specified parties. 

3

Draf
t- 

Su
bje

ct
to 

Cha
ng

e



LIVINGSTON COUNTY WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY Exhibit A
(A Discretely Presented Component Unit of the County of Livingston, New York)

Summary of Adjustments
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

Change in net position - unaudited (481,621)$           

Audit adjustments: 
To roll net position 478 
To adjust retirement contributions accrual 35,409                 
To adjust net pension asset 2,000 
To adjust interest expense (6,256) 
To adjust amortization expense due to GASB 87 implementation 2,125 
To adjust lease liability and accrued interest under GASB 87 (5,268) 

Total audit adjustments 28,488                 

Client adjustment:
To adjust grant revenue 46,838                 
To adjust accrual for water and sewer retail fees and sewer debt related fees 
based on actual billing 29,493                 
To adjust expenses 60 

Total client adjustments 76,391                 

Change in net position - audited (376,742)$           

4

Draf
t- 

Su
bje

ct
to 

Cha
ng

e



LIVINGSTON COUNTY WATER AND 
SEWER AUTHORITY

(A Discretely Presented Component Unit of 
the County of Livingston, New York)

Financial Statements As of 
December 31, 2022

Together With Independent 
Auditor's Report

Draf
t- 

Su
bje

ct 
to 

Cha
ng

e



Table of Contents
December 31, 2022

Page

1

4

13

15

16

18

46

47

48

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 49

Schedule of Operating Expenses 50

51

Statement of Net Position

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT 
AUDITING STANDARDS

LIVINGSTON COUNTY WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

(A Discretely Presented Component Unit of the County of Livingston, New York)

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:

Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios (Unaudited)

Schedule of Contributions - Pension Plans (Unaudited)

Schedule of Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability (Asset) (Unaudited)

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:

Draf
t- 

Su
bje

ct 
to 

Cha
ng

e



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of the 
Livingston County Water and Sewer Authority

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

Basis For Opinion

Change in Accounting Principle

Responsibilities of Management For the Financial Statements

MONTH XX, 2023

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Livingston County
Water and Sewer Authority (the Authority), a New York Public Benefit Corporation
and discretely presented component unit of the County of Livingston, New York, as
of and for the year ended December 31, 2022, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of the Authority as of December 31, 2022,
and the changes in financial position and its cash flows thereof for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Authority and to
meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical
requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

As described in Note 16 to the financial statements, in 2022, the Authority
adopted new accounting guidance, GASB Statement No. 87, Leases. Our opinion is
not modified with respect to this matter.

1

Draf
t- 

Su
bje

ct 
to 

Cha
ng

e



Auditor’s Responsibilities For the Audit of the Financial Statements

-
-

-

-

- Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered
material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence
the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government 
Auditing Standards,  we:

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Authority’s
ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date,
including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

2

Draf
t- 

Su
bje

ct 
to 

Cha
ng

e



Required Supplementary Information

Supplementary Information

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of
revenues, expenses and changes in net position and schedule of operating expenses are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements
or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of
revenue, expenses and change in net position and schedule of operating expenses are fairly stated, in
all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis, schedule of proportionate share of the net pension liability
(asset), schedule of contributions - pension plans, and schedule of changes in total OPEB liability and
related ratios be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or
provide any assurance.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated Month XX,
2023 on our consideration of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards in considering the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

3

Draf
t- 

Su
bje

ct 
to 

Cha
ng

e



Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

Introduction

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LIVINGSTON COUNTY WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY

The Livingston County Water and Sewer Authority (the Authority) is a public benefit corporation formed in 1995,
created by legislation passed by the State of New York. Livingston County’s (the County) Board of Supervisors
appoints the volunteer members who comprise the Authority’s Board. The NYS Authority Budget Office provides
oversight of operations and practices of all public authorities in New York. The Authority also is required to meet
the requirements of Federal, State, and County water pollution control and safe drinking water laws, thereby
helping to protect the health of citizens, improving drinking water quality, and protecting the environment.

(A Discretely Presented Component Unit of the County of Livingston, New York)

The Authority functions with required fair bidding laws, prevailing wage rates and financial safeguards. It is
required to report as an Enterprise Fund similar to private business. Financial statements are prepared on the
accrual basis in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles set forth by the Government
Accounting Standards Board (GASB). Within these principles, revenues are recognized when earned, not
received. Expenses are recognized when incurred, not when they are paid. The Authority is self-supporting and
does not receive Federal, State or County appropriations for operating expenses or issuance of debt.

The Authority leased most of its workforce from the County’s Public Works Department through December 31,
2018. Up until this time, employee related services, such as payroll, personnel, etc. were provided by the
County. The County then billed the Authority annually for a share of the related indirect expenses. Payroll and
health care costs were reimbursed monthly by the Authority. Beginning January 1, 2019, the Authority began
employing these individuals directly and is no longer utilizing the County Department of Public Works. 

The Authority has an overall staff of 18 full-time employees, which includes: One (1) Executive Director (who is
the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Fiscal Officer of the Authority), One (1) Director of Operations, One (1)
Deputy Director, One (1) Principal Account Clerk, Four (4) Office Staff, Seven (7) Water/Wastewater Maintenance
Persons, and One (1) Building Maintenance Person, Two (2) Senior Wastewater Treatment Plant Operators.

The discussion and analysis of the Authority’s financial performance provides highlights of the Authority’s major
activities that had an effect on the operations of the Authority for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022 with
comparative data for 2021. This report should be used and considered in conjunction with the 2022 audited
financial statements, which follows this report.

The statement of net position and the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position report
information about the Authority as a whole and about its activities. These statements include all assets and
liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by most private-sector
companies. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is
received or paid.

4

Draf
t- 

Su
bje

ct 
to 

Cha
ng

e



Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

LIVINGSTON COUNTY WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY
(A Discretely Presented Component Unit of the County of Livingston, New York)

Financial Highlights

•

•

•

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION 

2022 Operating Expenses increased over 2021 by $529,077, or 11.5%.

Net Position decreased from 2021 by $376,742, resulting in total 2022 net position of $31,130,931. This
was also the result of a prior period adjustment related to the implementation of GASB 87, Leases, which 
reduced opening net position by $92,495.

2022 Operating Revenues increased over 2021 by $369,966, or 9.6%.

The condensed Statements of Net Position that follow provides information about the nature and amounts of
resources (assets) and the obligations to the Authority’s creditors (liabilities). The difference between the assets
and liabilities is reported as net position. The following is a summary of the Authority’s net position as of
December 31 (in thousands):

These two statements report the Authority’s net position and changes in them from one year to the next. The
Authority’s net position, the difference between assets and liabilities, is one way to measure the Authority’s
financial health, or financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the Authority’s net position are one
indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. Consideration should also be given to
other factors, such as changes in the Authority’s operating revenue and the fluctuation of the Authority’s
expenses, to assess the overall health of the Authority.

The financial statements also include notes that explain the information in the financial statements. They are
essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the financial statements.

The remainder of this report contains a series of financial information and tables disclosing the basis for the
above financial highlights and the operations of the Authority.   

5

Draf
t- 

Su
bje

ct 
to 

Cha
ng

e



Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

LIVINGSTON COUNTY WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY
(A Discretely Presented Component Unit of the County of Livingston, New York)

2022  2021 

4,384$         $        5,399 
41,979                 38,138 

46,363        43,537        

905                        1,160 

3,285                     2,032 
12,159                 10,301 

15,444        12,333        

694                           764 

29,046                 29,705 
375                           119 

1,709                     1,776 

31,130$      31,600$      

Total liabilities show the total funds the Authority borrowed to improve infrastructure either with debt or other
current year payables, as well as liabilities related to future retirement benefits of Authority employees. Total
liabilities increased approximately $3,094,000 from 2021 to 2022. This was the result of an increase in short-
term and long-term debt of approximately $3.7 million as the Authority drew down on the EFC loan, completing
work on the Waste Water Treatment Plant project.

Current and other assets reflect the value of all cash accounts, accounts receivable, inventory, capital
contribution receivables, prepaid expenses and funds held for others. These funds are the total customer
payments and other operating deposits less the Authority’s operating and repair expense payments. The
balance of current and other assets decreased approximately $1,015,000 from 2021 to 2022. This decrease is
mainly related to a decrease in amounts due from New York State of approximately $1,059,000, which was
related to the NYS EFC grant funding earned in 2021.

Net investment in capital assets

Total net position

Restricted

Deferred inflows of resources

Unrestricted

Net Position:

Table 1 - Summary Statements of Net Position (in thousands)

Total liabilities

Assets:

Long-term liabilities

Deferred outflows of resources

Current and other assets
Capital assets, net

Total assets

Liabilities:
Current liabilities

6

Draf
t- 

Su
bje

ct 
to 

Cha
ng

e



Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

LIVINGSTON COUNTY WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY
(A Discretely Presented Component Unit of the County of Livingston, New York)

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGE IN NET POSITION

 2022  2021  2022  2021 
Operating revenue:
Service fees 2,012$        1,878$        1,931$        1,652$        
O&M service fees 15                15                -                   85                
Permit fees 44                34                78                107             
Other income 33                37                113             47                
    Total operating revenues 2,104          1,964          2,122          1,891          

Operating expenses:
Wages, salaries, and benefits 997             755             645             587             
Professional services 213             -                   141             -                   
Utilities 232             277             133             128             
Vehicle expense -                   177             22                132             
Purchased water and sewer 63                88                578             123             
Equipment maintenance 42                16                32                16                
Building maintenance 334             63                298             580             
Other 33                161             40                127             
Easements and Judgements -                   854             -                   444             
Depreciation 872             28                437             27                
    Total operating expenses 2,786          2,419          2,326          2,164          

    Total operating income (loss) (682)            (455)            (204)            (273)            

Non-operating revenue (expense):
Developers and customers -                   -                   260             21                
Interest revenue 11                4                  27                24                
Interest expense (47)              (64)              (5)                 -                   
Gain (loss) on sale of assets -                   (32)              -                   90                
Grant revenue 281             556             (8)                 1,500          
Debt fees (9)                 -                   -                   -                   
Total non-operating revenue (expense) 236             464             274             1,635          

Change in net position (446)$          9$                70$             1,362$        

Sewer Water 

Table 2 - Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position (in thousands)

Net position changes as a result of operating activities over a period of one year (revenues earned, and expenses
incurred). The following Statements of Revenue, Expenses, and Change in Net Position provide information on
the Authority’s operations for the years ended December 31 (in thousands):

7

Draf
t- 

Su
bje

ct 
to 

Cha
ng

e



Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

LIVINGSTON COUNTY WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY
(A Discretely Presented Component Unit of the County of Livingston, New York)

12/31/2022 12/31/2021

Land 150$           150$           
Construction work-in-progress 1,457          5,039          
Leased right-to-use assets 259             259             
Buildings 5,702          5,702          
Water distribution system 20,709        16,855        
Sewer collection system 30,137        25,367        
Machinery and equipment 4,859          4,663          
Leasehold improvements 871             871             
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization (22,165)       (20,855)       

Total capital assets, net 41,979$      38,051$      

Table 3 - Capital Assets at Year End (in thousands)

The Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position (Table 2) show a total decrease in net
position in 2022 of approximately $376,000 and an increase of approximately $1,371,000 in 2021. Operating
revenue is income earned by the Authority from normal operations. Total operating revenue increased
approximately $371,000 in 2022 from 2021.

Non-operating revenue decreased approximately $1,589,000 in 2022 compared to 2021. Approximately
$1,500,000 of this decrease was related to Water Infrastructure Improvement Act (WIIA) grant funding earned
during 2021. In 2022, more of the project spending was funded by the loan portion of the agreements with NYS
EFC rather than through grants.

Operating expense reflects the expenses incurred by the Authority during the execution of normal operating
procedures. These normal operating costs include: personnel, professional, utilities, vehicle, equipment,
building, permit, supply, and depreciation on capital assets. The Authority has Administrative, Treatment and
Transmission/Collection Departments. The workforce performs work for both the water and sewer areas. All
direct costs are applied directly to the applicable water/sewer service area. All indirect costs (costs applicable to
both water and sewer, such as administrative salaries) are applied according to the number of service units
within each service area.  Operating expenses increased approximately $529,000, in 2022 from 2021. 

8

Draf
t- 

Su
bje

ct 
to 

Cha
ng

e



Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

LIVINGSTON COUNTY WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY
(A Discretely Presented Component Unit of the County of Livingston, New York)

12/31/2022 12/31/2021

Sewer Installment Bond 1,880$        1,970$        
Drinking Water Installment Bond (2011) 571             603             
Clean Water Installment Bond 970             1,005          
Drinking Water Installment Bond (2023) 6,686          -                   

Total bonds payable 10,107$      3,578$        

FUTURE FACTORS

Table 4 - Long-Term Debt Outstanding at Year End (in thousands)

As of December 31, 2022, the Authority had $10,107,000 in outstanding bonds payable. In 2008, the Authority
entered into a Trust Indenture under which debt is issued. The Authority covenants in its indenture that it will
establish water and sewer rates sufficient to cover the sum of: (1) 105% times debt service, (2) operating
revenues exceed operating expenses as defined by the covenant, and (3) any additional amounts required to
restore the debt service reserve fund to the debt service reserve requirement. As of December 31, 2022 and
2021, there were no covenant violations with any outstanding debt issues for the Authority.

On July 21, 2021, the Authority and the Village of Livonia (the Village) entered into an agreement in which the
Village leases its water distribution system to the Authority so that the Authority can operate and maintain such
improvements and provide water delivery services for the benefit of Village residents. The Authority
implemented GASB 87, Leases, in the current year, which restated the beginning balance of the right-to-use
asset and lease liability associated with this lease, as well as beginning net position. The Authority's lease liability
as of December 31, 2022 was approximately $223,000.

As shown in Table 3 above, the Authority's capital assets increased approximately $3,928,000 in 2022. This is the
result of various upgrade projects in work in progress. These increases were offset by depreciation expense. 

Leicester/York Regional Water Supply Expansion Project 
The project is intended to achieve the County’s interest in providing enhanced public drinking water
infrastructure for the Towns of Leicester and York, as well as supporting regional interests of providing greater
access to affordable safe drinking water for all participating municipalities. The Authority has received $5M from
the WIIA program as well as qualifying for hardship financing. 2023 will include finalizing and gaining consensus
on the preferred distribution and water supply sources along with municipal partner commitment.  Following 
municipal partner commitment, preliminary and final design can begin.  (Ongoing).

9

Draf
t- 

Su
bje

ct 
to 

Cha
ng

e



Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

LIVINGSTON COUNTY WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY
(A Discretely Presented Component Unit of the County of Livingston, New York)

They Authority has been awarded $1.75M through the WIIA program to replace 26 pump stations around
Conesus Lake and make needed SCADA upgrades. Total project cost is estimated to be $5M. The Authority has
received a $1.75M grant provided by the NYS Environmental Facilities Corporation WIIA program and a 30-year
$3.75M low interest loan to complete the project. Success: Design, bid and build project by the end of 2025.
(December 2025).

Project includes smoke testing and manhole inspections for sewer collection system around Conesus Lake. Will
involve resident communications and inspections of properties and possible notice of violations for illegal
connections. Final report will involve testing results and recommended capital improvements. Success:  
Completion of project on-time and within budget. (September 2023).

Lakeville Wastewater Treatment Plant Phosphorus Removal 
The Authority has been awarded $198,055 through the DEC QWIP (Quality Water Improvement Program) to
install year-round phosphorus removal at the Lakeville wastewater treatment facility. This project will reduce the
amount of phosphorus entering the Genesee River. Total project estimated $390,000; local share $192,000.
Success: Design, bid and build project by the end of 2023. (December 2023).

Phase 2 started June 2021 and is expected to end spring 2023. This is a $5.5M project which includes upgrades
to the Lakeville WWTP, including the construction of a UV treatment building and covered sludge storage
building. Success: Completion of project within revised timeline and within budget. Additional items to
consider, painting of sludge storage tank and digester cover inspection depending on funding availability. (May
2023).

I/I Study – Phase 3 

Include Countywide improvements: Disinfection system upgrades, THM tank removal systems, installation of
new water meters for LCWSA customers throughout the consolidated water district, distribution improvements
to the Pine Tree and Lake Forest Mobile Parks water systems, Stone Hill service transfers and Conesus Outlet Re-
Connection. Total project cost for this work is $3.25M. Success: Completion of all aspects of this project on-time
and within budget. (December 2023).

Lakeville WWTP Upgrades – Phase 2 

Countywide Water System Improvements 

SCADA System Wide Improvements – Phase 1 
Project includes designing SCADA system improvements and bidding work for competitive pricing. Once design
is completed and cost estimates provided, decision can be made regarding phased implementation approach.
First phase of construction estimated $1.5M.  Success:  SCADA analysis and final design complete. (June 2023).

Groveland Wastewater Treatment Plant Disinfection Project 
The Authority has been awarded $367,576 through the DEC QWIP (Quality Water Improvement Program) to
install ultraviolet effluent disinfection at the Groveland Station Wastewater Treatment Facility. This project will
improve water quality by reducing pathogens in the treatment plant's discharge. Total project estimated
$680,000; local share $312,500. Success: Design, bid and build project. Design (May 2022), Construction starts
(May 2023) and Operational (May 2024). 

Conesus Lake Pump Station Improvements Project 

10

Draf
t- 

Su
bje

ct 
to 

Cha
ng

e



Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

LIVINGSTON COUNTY WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY
(A Discretely Presented Component Unit of the County of Livingston, New York)

Greater Tompkins County Municipal Health Insurance Consortium 

Complete Income Survey 

Develop Water Loss Management Strategy 

Space Needs Assessment 

Improve Financial and Capital Planning 
Review current budget worksheet and spreadsheet processes and improve budget development and documents.
Incorporate more long-term financial planning and rate structure projections along with capital planning and
debt management strategy. Asset Management Program should also include Equipment Replacement Program
(ERP). Success: Update budget document, prepare ERP and develop debt management strategy for presentation
with 2024 budget.  (September 2023).

The current administration building was originally built as a chemical storage building. It was retrofitted over 25
years ago to accommodate LCWSA office staff. With the addition of administrative staff in 2022, office and shop
space needs to be evaluated to consider future growth. This assessment will evaluate current and future space
needs based on prospective growth. Success: Completion of Space Needs Assessment. Develop strategy to fund
long-term office and facility needs.  (September 2023).

Review current policies and make recommendations to Authority Board for policy changes consistent with
Authority practices and direction. Utilize Governance Committee for review process. Success: Put internal team
together to review policies.  Priority will be procurement and design standard policies.  (Ongoing).

Policy Review & Update 

The Health Consortium launched in 2009 in Tompkins County includes sixteen contiguous counties in upstate NY
with 53 municipal partners. The goal of the Health Consortium is to provide competitive health insurance
premiums to its members. The Health Consortium has a NYS Insurance Article 47 certificate and operates with
state oversight to ensure financial stability. In 2022 the Municipal Cooperative Agreement was amended to
include Madison and Livingston Counties. The New York State Department of Financial Services is currently
reviewing the request to amend the Certificate of Coverage. If expanded, the Authority would have the ability to
apply for membership. Savings Estimate: $40,000 annually, based on current Authority health insurance costs.
Success: Acceptance into the Consortium to achieve a reduction in healthcare costs with same coverage for
2024.  (December 2024).

Current income data published in the American Community Survey’s five-year estimates determining Median
Household Income in the Lakeville sewer system is not reflective of the population in the service. As a result, the
Board has approved an income survey of the Lakeville service area with the intent that the results of the survey
would be used by EFC for determining hardship financing and additional subsidy eligibility, as well as qualifying
for Community Development Block Grant (“CDBG”) program funding. This would allow survey results to be used
not only for future sewer projects but also water projects within that same service. Success: Completion of the
income survey in time for incorporation to CFA and EFC applications.  (May 2023).

Currently LCWSA has limited tracking and systems in place to monitor water loss. Researching industry best
practices will help develop a more comprehensive water loss management strategy to reduce the amount of
revenue lost and identify infrastructure weaknesses. Success: Review industry best practices and establish a
water loss strategy for tracking water loss and making improvements to LCWSA water systems. (December
2023).

11

Draf
t- 

Su
bje

ct 
to 

Cha
ng

e



Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

LIVINGSTON COUNTY WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY
(A Discretely Presented Component Unit of the County of Livingston, New York)

Develop an Infiltration & Inflow (I/I) Program 

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Authority’s finances and to show the
Authority’s accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional
information, contact the Executive Director, LCWSA, P.O. Box 396, Lakeville, New York, 14480; or call 585-346-
3523.

As required NYS DEC consent order, LCWSA will need to create an I/I program. Over the next year LCWSA will
need to re-establish residential and commercial inspections and put forth a corrective action plan for non-
compliant property owners. Lastly a long-term and sustainable strategy needs to be developed for monitoring
I/I. Establish procedures for system inspections, property inspections and compliance follow up. Develop a
process for monitoring sewer flow levels throughout the system before and after recommendations are
implemented. (October 2023) .

12

Draf
t- 

Su
bje

ct 
to 

Cha
ng

e



2022
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents 2,035,301$           
Accounts receivable 1,113,036             
Current portion of capital contributions receivable 57,289                   
Inventory 9,774                     
Prepaid expenses 158,995                 
Funds held for others 42,300                   

Total current assets 3,416,695             

NONCURRENT ASSETS:
Restricted cash 11,298                   
Funds held by trustee 364,072                 
Net pension asset 175,240                 
Capital contributions receivable, net of current portion 416,817                 
Capital assets, nondepreciable 1,607,698
Capital assets, net 40,371,272           

Total noncurrent assets 42,946,397           

Total assets 46,363,092           

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension related 501,901                 
Total other postemployment benefits related 403,469                 

Total deferred outflows of resources 905,370                 

LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable 1,112,704             
Current portion of bonds payable 416,805                 
Current portion of lease liability 35,226                   
Accrued interest 7,972                     
Other current liabilities 54,640                   
Funds held for others 42,300                   
Bond anticipation note payable 1,615,438             

Total current liabilities 3,285,085             

LIVINGSTON COUNTY WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY
(A Discretely Presented Component Unit of the County of Livingston, New York)

Statements of Net Position
December 31, 2022

(Continued)

13

Draf
t- 

Su
bje

ct 
to 

Cha
ng

e



2022

LIVINGSTON COUNTY WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY
(A Discretely Presented Component Unit of the County of Livingston, New York)

Statements of Net Position
December 31, 2022

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:
Bonds payable, net of current portion 9,690,661             
Lease liability, net of current portion 187,771                 
Compensated absences 56,622                   
Total other postemployment benefits liability 2,222,978             

Total noncurrent liabilities 12,158,032           

Total liabilities 15,443,117           

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension related 604,288                 
Total other postemployment benefits related 90,126                   

Total deferred inflows of resources 694,414                 

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 29,046,173           
Restricted 375,370
Unrestricted 1,709,388             

Total net position 31,130,931$         

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.

14

Draf
t- 

Su
bje

ct 
to 

Cha
ng

e



LIVINGSTON COUNTY WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY
(A Discretely Presented Component Unit of the County of Livingston, New York)

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

2022
OPERATING REVENUE:

Service fees 3,941,575$            
Operation and maintenance service fees 15,000 
Permit fees 122,422 
Other income 145,775 

Total operating revenue 4,224,772              

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Wages, salaries, and benefits 1,642,075              
Professional services 353,711 
Utilities 364,586 
Vehicle expense 21,830 
Purchased water and sewer 641,743 
Equipment maintenance 74,646 
Building maintenance 631,486 
Other 72,238 
Depreciation and amortization 1,309,769              

Total operating expenses 5,112,084              

Total operating income (loss) (887,312)                

NON-OPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSE):
Interest revenue 38,839 
Interest expense (52,702) 
Gain on sale of capital assets - 
Grant revenue 273,369 
Debt issuance costs (8,936) 

Total non-operating revenue (expense) 250,570 

(636,742) 

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS:
Contributed funds from Livingston County 260,000 

Total capital contributions 260,000 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION (376,742)                

NET POSITION - beginning of year, as previously reported 31,600,168            

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT (See Note 16) (92,495) 

NET POSITION- beginning of year, as restated 31,507,673            

NET POSITION - end of year 31,130,931$         

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

GAIN (LOSS) BEFORE CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.

15

Draf
t- 

Su
bje

ct 
to 

Cha
ng

e



2022
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Revenues -
Receipts from service fees 3,749,315$            
Receipts from permit fees 122,422                  
Service fees collected for other governments 674,463                  
Other operating receipts 145,775                  

Expenses -
Payments to vendors and suppliers for goods and services (3,696,778)             
Payments to employees for wages and benefits (1,470,424)             
Service fees remitted to other governments (674,463)                

Net cash flow from operating activities (1,149,690)             

CASH FLOW FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
Purchases of capital assets (4,258,645)             
Proceeds on disposal of capital assets -                               
Cash received for capital contributions 316,412                  
Grants received for capital assets 1,332,721              
Proceeds from bond anticipation note payable 3,770,370              
Withdrawals from (deposits into) funds held with trustee (256,723)                
Principal payments made on bond anticipation note (70,000)                  
Repayments of bond payable (156,725)                
Interest on capital debt (65,706)                  
Lease principal and interest payments made (36,312)                  
Debt issuance costs (8,936)                     

Net cash flow from capital and related financing activities 566,456                  

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest received 38,839                    

Net cash flow from investing activities 38,839                    

CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (544,395)                

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - beginning of year 2,590,994              

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - end of year 2,046,599$            

CLASSIFIED AS:
Cash and cash equivalents 2,035,301$            
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 11,298                    

Total cash and cash equivalents 2,046,599$            

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

(Continued)

LIVINGSTON COUNTY WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY
(A Discretely Presented Component Unit of the County of Livingston, New York)

Statements of Cash Flows

16

Draf
t- 

Su
bje

ct 
to 

Cha
ng

e



2022

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating income (loss) (887,312)$              

Depreciation and amortization 1,309,769              
Change in:

Accounts receivable (207,260)                
Inventory 32,101                    
Prepaid expenses (31,671)                  
Accounts payable (1,536,968)             
Compensated absences 19,227                    
Pension items - ERS (41,116)                  
Other postemployment benefit items 176,645                 
Other current liabilities 16,895                    

Net cash flow from operating activities (1,149,690)$           

NON-CASH CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITY:
978,924$               

6,686,416              

Total non-cash capital and related financing activity 7,665,340$            

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.

Bond anticipation note converted to bond payable
Capital assets purchased but not yet paid in cash

LIVINGSTON COUNTY WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY
(A Discretely Presented Component Unit of the County of Livingston, New York)

Statements of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash flow from operating activities:

17

Draf
t- 

Su
bje

ct 
to 

Cha
ng

e



LIVINGSTON COUNTY WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY
(A Discretely Presented Component Unit of the County of Livingston, New York)

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

1.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Accounting 

Basis of Presentation

•

•

•

Net investment in capital assets - This component of net position consists of capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation and amortization, reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds,
mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or
improvement of those assets. If there are significant unspent capital-related debt proceeds at year-end,
the portion of the debt attributable to the unspent proceeds is not included in the calculation of net
investment in capital assets. Rather, that portion of the debt is included in the same net position
component as the unspent proceeds.  

Restricted Net Position - This component of net position consists of amounts which have external
constraints placed on its use imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors,
contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or constraints imposed by law through
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.  

Unrestricted Net Position - This component consists of net position that does not meet the definition of
“net investment in capital assets", or "restricted".

ORGANIZATION AND REPORTING ENTITY

The Livingston County Water and Sewer Authority (the Authority) is a public benefit corporation organized
under the Public Authorities Law of the State of New York. The Authority was created to finance, construct,
operate and maintain water and sewage facilities for the benefit of the residents of the County of Livingston,
New York (the County).

The Authority was created by special New York State legislation on July 26, 1995 and commenced operations
with the appointment of its officers on August 23, 1995 and September 13, 1995.

The Authority’s financial statements are prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States as set forth by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) for
proprietary funds.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Authority’s policy to use
restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Members of the Authority’s governing board are appointed by the County’s Board of Supervisors; however,
the Board of Supervisors exercises no oversight responsibility for management of the Authority, or
accountability for fiscal matters. The County is not liable for any Authority indebtedness. The Authority is
considered a component unit of the County and is included as such within the County’s basic financial
statements as a discretely presented component unit.

GASB requires the classification of net position into three components, as defined below:

18

Draf
t- 

Su
bje

ct 
to 

Cha
ng

e



LIVINGSTON COUNTY WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY
(A Discretely Presented Component Unit of the County of Livingston, New York)

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Accounts Receivable

Due From Other Governments

Capital Contributions Receivable

Inventory 

Capital contributions receivable represents contractual agreements with a village and two farms to repay the
Authority for capital improvements that were made to system infrastructure to benefit the village’s water
system, and to provide additional system capacity to meet the farms’ anticipated water demands. In
addition, interest is charged by the Authority for amounts expended during project completion at rates
equivalent to borrowings incurred by the Authority during that time and are recorded as interest income in
the accompanying statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position.  

Inventory of meters and supplies is stated at the lower of cost determined on the first-in, first-out method or
market.

Certain assets are classified on the balance sheet as restricted because their use is limited. The proceeds of
bond sales can only be used for the stated purpose of the borrowing and; therefore, any remaining proceeds
are restricted. Also, certain assets were restricted to fund development and repairs associated with specific
service areas.

For purposes of presenting the statement of cash flows, the Authority considers all highly liquid short-term
investments with a maturity of three months or less from year end to be cash or cash equivalents.

Accounts receivable consist of fees for services for sewer and water charges due from individuals and other
governments. Accounts receivable are carried on the statement of net position at net realizable value. The
Authority has elected to record bad debts using the direct write-off method. Generally accepted accounting
principles require the allowance method to be used to recognize bad debts; however, the effect of using the
direct write-off method is not materially different from the results that would have been obtained under the
allowance method.  

The Authority’s cash and cash equivalents consists of cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term
investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition. Cash and cash
equivalents are carried at cost plus accrued interest, which approximates fair value.

Due from other governments consists of amounts due from various local governments related to services
provided by the Authority.  Management expects this amounts to be fully collectible. 

19

Draf
t- 

Su
bje

ct 
to 

Cha
ng

e



LIVINGSTON COUNTY WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY
(A Discretely Presented Component Unit of the County of Livingston, New York)

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

Capital Assets

5 - 10 years
20 - 40 years
30 - 50 years
20 - 50 years

40 years

Funds Held by Trustee

Revenue Recognition 

Capital Contributions 

Operating and Non-Operating Revenues and Expenses

Unearned Revenue

Capital assets also include leased assets with a term greater than one year. The Authority does not
implement a capitalization threshold for leased assets. Leased assets are amortized on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease.

Capital assets, including distribution/collection systems, are stated at cost. Depreciation is provided using
the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Operating revenue consists of water and sewer service fees and other related revenue. The Authority
defines non-operating revenue as grant revenues, interest earnings on investment assets, and gains or losses
on the sales of assets.  Non-operating expenses consist of interest expense.

Improvements, renewals and significant repairs that do not extend the life of the asset are expensed as
incurred. When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, the related asset and accumulated depreciation
are written off and any related gains or losses are recorded. Capital assets also include leased right-to-use
assets with a term greater than one year. The Authority does not implement a capitalization threshold for
leased assets. Leased assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Funds held by M&T Bank (the Trustee) consist of fixed income United States Government securities. The
Authority reports these items at reported values by the trustee. In 2022, this represents debt service funds
required under the debt service reserve requirement.

Machinery and equipment
Buildings
Water distribution system
Sewer collection system

Revenues from water and sewer sales are recognized at the time of service delivery based on actual or
estimated water meter readings and actual sewer units.  

Capital contributions represent amounts that developers, customers and governments have contributed for
betterments or additions to capital assets. These contributions are received in cash or in the form of non-
cash contributions of capital items and are recorded at market value on the date of donation. 

Unearned revenue also arises when resources are received by the Authority before it has a legal claim to
them, as when grant monies are received prior to the incurrence of qualifying expenditures. In subsequent
periods, when both recognition criteria are met, or when the Authority has legal claim to resources, the
liability for unearned revenue is removed and revenue is recognized.

Leasehold improvements

20

Draf
t- 

Su
bje

ct 
to 

Cha
ng

e



LIVINGSTON COUNTY WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY
(A Discretely Presented Component Unit of the County of Livingston, New York)

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

Compensated Absences

Total Other Postemployment Benefits

Pensions

Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources

Income Taxes

Budget

Estimates 

In addition to assets and liabilities, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section
for deferred outflows/inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of
resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be
recognized as an outflow of resources (expense) until then. The separate financial statement element,
deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and
so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until then.  

As a public benefit corporation, the Authority is exempt from federal and state income taxes, as well as state
and local property and sales taxes.

Authority employees earn vacation time based on length of employment and employee contracts. Upon
termination, employees are paid full value for any accrued unused vacation time. The Authority records this
as a long-term liability.

The Authority administers a single-employer defined benefit Other Postemployment Benefit (OPEB) Plan
(the Plan). The only employees eligible for the health care benefits through the Plan are the four employees
previously employed by the County who were transferred to the Authority without a break in service on
January 1, 2019. Those County employees who worked for the Authority but retired prior to the employee
lease termination with the County will receive retiree health care benefits through the County, but these
costs will be reimbursed by the Authority. Employees hired by the Authority after January 1, 2019 are not
eligible for retiree health insurance. The total other postemployment benefit liability is actuarially
determined and presented as a long-term liability.

The Authority participates in the New York State Employees' Retirement System.

The Authority is not required to have a legally adopted budget. However, under the New York State Public
Authorities Law, the Authority board must approve and issue a budget on an annual basis representing the
Authority’s objectives and priorities for the year.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in
the financial statements and accompanying notes.  Actual results could differ from those estimates.

21

Draf
t- 

Su
bje

ct 
to 

Cha
ng

e



LIVINGSTON COUNTY WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY
(A Discretely Presented Component Unit of the County of Livingston, New York)

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

3. DEPOSITS WITH FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

• Interest rate risk

• Credit risk

o   Interest bearing demand accounts.

o    Certificates of deposit.

o    Obligations of the United States Treasury and United States agencies.

o    Obligations of New York State and its localities.

• Custodial credit risk

o    

o    Obligations issued or fully insured or guaranteed by New York State and its localities.

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a failure of a depository financial institution, the
reporting entity may not recover its deposits. In accordance with the Authority’s investment and deposit
policy, all deposits of the Authority including interest bearing demand accounts and certificates of
deposit, in excess of the amount insured under the provisions of the Federal Deposit Insurance Act (FDIA)
shall be secured by a pledge of securities with an aggregate value equal to 100% of the aggregate amount 
of deposits. The Authority’s investment and deposit policy authorizes the reporting entity to purchase
the following types of investments:

Obligations issued, fully insured or guaranteed as to the payment of principal and interest, by the
United States Treasury and United States agencies.

The Authority’s investment policy requires its deposits and investments to be 100% collateralized through
federal deposit insurance or other obligations. Obligations that may be pledged as collateral are obligations
of, or guaranteed by, the United States or the State of New York. Collateral must be delivered to the
Authority or an authorized custodial bank. In addition, the Authority’s investment policy includes the
following provisions for interest rate risk, credit risk and custodial credit risk (as defined below):

The guidelines established by the Authority permit the investment of funds held by the Authority to be
invested in accordance with New York State Public Authorities Law. Investments must be in the form of
obligations of the State of New York, or in general obligations of its political subdivisions; obligations of the
United States.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of investments will be affected by changing interest rates.
The Authority’s investment policy does not limit investment maturities as a means of managing its
exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.

The Authority’s policy is to minimize the risk of loss due to failure of an issuer or other counterparty to an
investment to fulfill its obligations. The Authority’s investment and deposit policy authorizes the
reporting entity to purchase the following types of investments:

22

Draf
t- 

Su
bje

ct 
to 

Cha
ng

e



LIVINGSTON COUNTY WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY
(A Discretely Presented Component Unit of the County of Livingston, New York)

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

4. RESTRICTED CASH 

The Authority’s cash is restricted for the following purposes as of December 31:

 2022 

 $          11,298 

5. FUNDS HELD BY TRUSTEE 

At December 31, 2022, the reported amount of the Authority's deposits, including funds held for others, was
$2,088,899 and the bank balance was $2,154,044. Of the bank balance, $250,000 was covered by federal
depository insurance, with the remaining amount covered by collateral held in the pledging bank's trust
department in the Authority's name.

At December 31, 2022, cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash held by the Authority in financial
institutions (not including funds held for others or funds held by trustee) were $2,320,394. At December 31,
2022, cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash consisted of bank demand deposit and money market
accounts, which are not subject to investment risk relating to changing interest rates. The Authority’s
deposits and investments are required to be collateralized in the event of loss due to the failure of the issuer
or counterparty to its investments.

Fair value measurements of the Authority’s investments at December 31, 2022 were comprised of U.S.
Treasury Bonds valued at $90,277 based on quoted market prices (Level 1 inputs). On the Statements of Net
Position, these investments are included in funds held with trustee.

Funds held by trustee refers to cash held by a third party for the benefit of the Authority. The funds held by
trustee are not subject to the Authority’s Investment and Deposit Policy or collateralization requirements.
As of December 31, 2022, this amount was $364,072. In 2022, the funds held by trustee were for debt
service required by the Authority's Trust Indenture. As mentioned in footnote 3, the debt service funds held
by trustee include U.S. Treasury Bonds which are stated at market value. The remaining balance in funds
held with trustee is comprised of cash and cash equivalents.

The Authority categorizes the fair value measurements of its investments based on the hierarchy established
by generally accepted accounting principles. The fair value hierarchy, which has three levels, is based on the
valuation inputs used to measure an asset’s fair value: Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant
unobservable inputs. The Authority did not have any investments that are measured using Level 2 or Level 3
inputs.

Capital development and repairs 

23

Draf
t- 

Su
bje

ct 
to 

Cha
ng

e



LIVINGSTON COUNTY WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY
(A Discretely Presented Component Unit of the County of Livingston, New York)

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

6. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 

 2022 

 $        777,644 
           335,392 

 $    1,113,036 

7. CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS RECEIVABLE

Capital contributions receivable at December 31 are as follows:

 2022 

 $        200,166 
           136,971 
           136,969 

 $        474,106 

Future scheduled principal payments of capital contributions are as follows at December 31:

57,289$          
59,779            
62,383            
65,096            
24,075            
81,482            
96,996            
27,006            

474,106$        

Water and sewer service fees
Due from local governments

Village of Geneseo 
Sparta Farms, LP
Dairy Knoll Farms, LLC

2023

2028-2032
2033-2037
2038-2041

2026
2027

2024
2025

The Authority’s accounts receivable as of December 31 are as follows:

Accounts receivable:

24

Draf
t- 

Su
bje

ct 
to 

Cha
ng

e



LIVINGSTON COUNTY WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY
(A Discretely Presented Component Unit of the County of Livingston, New York)

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

8. CAPITAL ASSETS 

The Authority’s capital assets for 2022 are as follows:

Balance 
January 1 
(Restated) Increases Transfers Decreases

Balance 
December 31

Land 150,285$         -$                      -$                       $                      - 150,285$         

5,038,373       5,042,302       (8,623,262)                               - 1,457,413       

5,188,658       5,042,302       (8,623,262)      -                         1,607,698       

5,701,696       -                         -                                                  - 5,701,696       
16,854,599     -                         3,854,060                                - 20,708,659     
25,366,844     -                         4,769,202                                - 30,136,046     

4,663,495       195,267           -                                                  - 4,858,762       
871,377           -                         -                                                  - 871,377           

53,458,011     195,267           8,623,262       -                         62,276,540     

Less: Accumulated depreciation
(2,733,246)      (154,719)          -                                                  - (2,887,965)      
(4,649,690)      (350,039)          -                                                  - (4,999,729)      

(10,923,431)    (581,890)          -                                                  - (11,505,321)    
(2,504,873)      (194,799)          -                                                  - (2,699,672)      

(43,568)            (21,785)            -                                                  - (65,353)            

(20,854,808)    (1,303,232)      -                         -                         (22,158,040)    

32,603,203     (1,107,965)      8,623,262       -                         40,118,500     

259,309           -                         -                                                  - 259,309           

Less: Accumulated amortization
-                         (6,537)              -                                                  - (6,537)              

259,309           (6,537)              -                         -                         252,772           

38,051,170$   3,927,800$     -$                      -$                      41,978,970$   

Water distribution system
Sewer collection system

Machinery and equipment

Net depreciable assets

Total capital assets, net

Buildings

Water distribution system

Leasehold improvements

Water distribution system

Water distribution system

Total non-depreciable 
assets

Total accumulated 
depreciation

Leasehold improvements
Machinery and equipment

Total depreciable assets

Buildings

Construction work-in-progress

Leased right-to-use assets

Sewer collection system

Net leased assets

25

Draf
t- 

Su
bje

ct 
to 

Cha
ng

e



LIVINGSTON COUNTY WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY
(A Discretely Presented Component Unit of the County of Livingston, New York)

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

9. BOND ANTICIPATION NOTE

 2022 
Balance - January 1  $    4,601,484 
Borrowings        3,770,370 
Repayments (70,000)           
Conversion to long-term debt (6,686,416)      
Balance - December 31  $    1,615,438 

On November 4, 2021, the Authority issued a Bond Anticipation Note (BAN) through the Environmental
Facilities Corporation (EFC) for a maximum amount of $4,000,000 for the Water System Improvements
Project. This BAN includes a interest free sum of $1,333,333 and a market rate sum of $2,666,667 at a
market rate of 0.33% under a NYS EFC short-term financing program, which is considered a direct borrowing.
The BAN has a maturity date of November 4, 2026. At that time, the Authority can convert the BAN to long-
term financing if all conditions are met and if such financing is made available by EFC. The Authority drew
down $1,615,438 on this BAN in 2022. The following is a summary of changes in short-term debt:

In 2022, the Authority drew down $3,770,370, which increased the total BAN outstanding as of year end. As
of December 31, 2022, this balance is intended to be refinanced on a long-term basis as demonstrated by
the issuance of a long-term obligation after year end. On January 5, 2023 the Authority issued long-term
debt in the amount of $7,652,105. This amount represents the total project cost agreed to by EFC and the
Authority. The December 31, 2022 balance of $6,686,416 only represents the amount that has been spent
and reimbursed by EFC to date. The actual project spending is finishing up in the first quarter of 2023, for a
total project cost equal to $7,652,105. 

On February 1, 2018, the Authority issued a Bond Anticipation Note (BAN) Series 2018 through the
Environmental Facilities Corporation (EFC) for a maximum amount of $4,306,960 for the Lakeville
wastewater treatment plant upgrades. This BAN included an initial rate of 0.00% under a NYS EFC short-term
financing program, which is considered a direct borrowing. On September 23, 2020, the Authority adopted a
resolution authorizing a new EFC Clean Water Facility note to increase the financing from EFC from
$4,303,960 to $7,603,105. The new EFC BAN was dated August 5, 2021 in the amount of $7,603,105, also
with an initial interest rate of 0.00%. This BAN replaces the original 2018 BAN in the amount of $4,306,960
and has a maturity date of February 1, 2023. At that time, the Authority can convert the BAN to long-term
financing if all conditions are met and if such financing is made available by EFC. For 2022, principal
payments of $70,000 were required to be made based on actual total draws made on the BAN. 

26

Draf
t- 

Su
bje

ct 
to 

Cha
ng

e



LIVINGSTON COUNTY WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY
(A Discretely Presented Component Unit of the County of Livingston, New York)

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

10. FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS

The Authority had the following debt outstanding as of December 31, 2022:

Balance 
January 1 Increases Decreases

Due Within 
One Year

Due After    
One Year

 $    1,970,000  $                     -  $        (90,000)  $        (95,000)  $    1,785,000 

           602,775                         -            (31,725)            (31,725)            539,325 

       1,005,000                         -            (35,000)            (35,000)            935,000 

On August 27, 2009, the 
Authority issued a $2,921,000 
Sewer Installment Bond with 
the NYS Environmental 
Facilities Corporation to fund 
the cost of various sewer 
projects.  The bond has an 
interest rate of 4.27% and will 
mature on August 1, 2039.

On February 7, 2011 the 
Authority issued a $951,750 
Drinking Water Installment 
Bond with the NYS 
Environmental Facilities 
Corporation to fund the cost 
of the Groveland Station 
water project.  The note has 
an interest rate of 0% and will 
mature on August 31, 2040.

On May 1, 2012, the 
Authority was a part of  a 
$1,322,692 offering of the 
NYS EFC Revenue Bonds to 
fund the cost of various 
sewer projects.  The bond has 
an interest rate of 3.74% and 
will mature on May 1, 2042.

Direct Borrowings

27

Draf
t- 

Su
bje

ct 
to 

Cha
ng

e



LIVINGSTON COUNTY WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY
(A Discretely Presented Component Unit of the County of Livingston, New York)

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

Balance 
January 1 Increases Decreases

Due Within 
One Year

Due After    
One Year

                        -        6,686,416                         -          (255,080)        6,431,336 

 $    3,577,775  $    6,686,416  $      (156,725)  $      (416,805)  $    9,690,661 

Principal Interest Total
416,805$        60,241$          477,046$        
416,805          57,744            474,549          
416,805          55,205            472,010          
426,510          52,593            479,103          
426,805          49,805            476,610          

2,179,025       205,611          2,384,636       
2,259,025       125,552          2,384,577       
1,980,575       38,810            2,019,385       

2043-2047 1,275,400       -                       1,275,400       
2048-2052 309,711          -                       309,711          

10,107,466$  645,560$        10,753,026$  

2025
2026
2027
2028-2032
2033-2037
2038-2042

2023

As of December 31, 2022, the 
Authority owed $6,686,416 
on the EFC BAN described in 
footnote 9, which funded the 
cost of the Lakeville 
Wastewater Treatment Plant 
upgrades. The balance is 
intended to be refinanced on 
a long-term basis, as 
demonstrated by the 
issuance of a long-term 
obligation after year end. As 
such, it is reported as long-
term debt as of year end. The 
long-term debt was issued on 
January 5, 2023 and is a 
$7,652,105 Clean Water 
Installment Bond with NYS 
EFC.  The note has an interest 
rate of 0% and will mature on 
January 5, 2052. 

2024

The Authority receives an interest subsidy from NYS Environmental Facilities Corporation each year on the
2009 and 2012 issuances. The subsidy is reflected in the payout schedule below. Future scheduled principal
and interest payments on bonds from direct borrowings are as follows at December 31:

Direct Borrowings 
(Continued)

28

Draf
t- 

Su
bje

ct 
to 

Cha
ng

e



LIVINGSTON COUNTY WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY
(A Discretely Presented Component Unit of the County of Livingston, New York)

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

Interest on all long-term debt, including the lease liability, for the year was composed of:

65,706$          
7,972               

(20,976)           

52,702$          

Less:  Interest accrued in the prior year

In 2008, the Authority entered into a Trust Indenture under which debt is issued. The Trust Indenture
pledges all revenues and other income collected by the Authority for payment of principal and interest on
the bonds. The Trust Indenture also generally requires establishment of certain trust funds, for which M&T
Bank acts as a trustee, into which monies are to be deposited. The Authority is required to maintain on
deposit amounts sufficient to cover the annual debt service (as defined in the Trust Indenture) of its bonds.
The Authority covenants in its indenture that it will establish water and sewer rates sufficient to cover the
sum of: (1) 105% times debt service, (2) operating revenues exceed operating expenses as defined by the
covenant, and (3) any additional amounts required to restore the debt service reserve fund to the debt
service reserve requirement. As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, there were no covenant violations with
any outstanding debt issues for the Authority. The Authority includes in their customer billings an amount
designated for debt service. The intention by the Board, related to the use of these revenues, is to satisfy
debt service requirements.

Interest paid
Plus:  Interest accrued in the current year

Should an event of default occur on any of the bonds under the general revenue bond resolution, the
Trustee may declare the principal of all bonds outstanding to be due and payable immediately.

Total interest expense

29

Draf
t- 

Su
bje

ct 
to 

Cha
ng

e



LIVINGSTON COUNTY WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY
(A Discretely Presented Component Unit of the County of Livingston, New York)

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

11.

 2022 
259,309$        

(6,537)             

 $        252,772 

Beginning 
Balance 

(restated) Increases Decreases
Due Within 
One Year

Due After One 
Year

Lease liability 259,309$        -$                     (36,312)$         (35,226)$         187,771$        

Year Ending December 31: Principal Interest
Total 

Payments
35,226$          4,774$            40,000$          
35,980            4,020               40,000            
36,751            3,249               40,000            
37,537            2,463               40,000            
38,341            1,659               40,000            

2028-2032 39,162            838                  40,000            
Total future lease payments 222,997$        17,003$          240,000$        

2024
2025

Annual requirements to amortize long-term obligations and related interest are as follows:

2026
2027

2023

LEASES

On July 21, 2021, the Authority and the Village of Livonia (the Village) entered into an agreement in which
the Village leases its water distribution system to the Authority so that the Authority can operate and
maintain such improvements and provide water delivery services for the benefit of Village residents. The
term of this agreement is 40 years. In accordance with this agreement, the Authority shall make annual
payments of $40,000 to the Village, with an additional one-time payment which was made in the first year
(2021) of $52,495. The lease does not contain a renewal option. The Authority's incremental borrowing rate
of 2.12% was used in calculating the lease liability.

The related water distribution system is recorded as an asset that is amortized over the term of the lease, or
40 years. The lease obligation is shown as a liability at year-end. The amortization on the related right-to-
use asset will be included as an operating expense. The Authority implemented GASB Statement No. 87,
Leases , as of January 1, 2022, and as such, the beginning balances of the right-to-use asset and lease liability
were restated. See footnote 16.

Water facilities under leases that are included within capital assets as of December 31 are as follows:

Right-to-use asset
Less:  Accumulated amortization 

Long-term lease activity for the year ended December 31, 2022 was as follows:

30

Draf
t- 

Su
bje

ct 
to 

Cha
ng

e



LIVINGSTON COUNTY WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY
(A Discretely Presented Component Unit of the County of Livingston, New York)

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

12.

NYSERS

2022 113,546$        
2021 97,052$          
2020 28,775$          

New York State and Local Employees’ Retirement System Plan Description
The Authority participates in the New York State Employees’ Retirement System (NYSERS) also referred to as
New York State and Local Retirement System (the System). This is a cost-sharing, multiple employer public
employee retirement system, providing retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits. The net
position of the System is held in the New York State Common Retirement Fund (the Fund), established to
hold all net position and record changes in plan net position allocated to the System. System benefits are
established under the provisions of the New York State Retirement and Social Security Law (NYS RSSL). Once
an employer elects to participate in the System, the election is irrevocable. The New York State Constitution
provides that pension membership is a contractual relationship and plan benefits cannot be diminished or
impaired. Benefits can be changed for future members only by enactment of a State statute. The Authority
also participates in the Public Employees’ Group Life Insurance Plan (GLIP), which provides death benefits in
the form of life insurance. The System is included in the State’s financial report as a pension trust fund.
That report, including information with regard to benefits provided, may be found at
www.osc.state.ny.us/retire/publications/index.php or obtained by writing to the New York State and Local
Retirement System, 110 State Street, Albany, New York 12244.

The System is noncontributory for the employees who joined prior to July 27, 1976. For employees who
joined the System after July 27, 1976, and prior to January 1, 2010, employees contribute 3% of their salary,
except that employees in the System more than ten years are no longer required to contribute. For
employees who joined after January 1, 2010 and prior to April 1, 2012, employees in NYSERS contribute 3%
of their salary throughout their active membership. For employees who joined after April 1, 2012,
employees contribute 3% of their salary until April 1, 2013 and then contribute 3% to 6% of their salary
throughout their active membership. The Comptroller annually certifies the actuarially determined rates
expressly used in computing the employers’ contributions based on salaries paid during the System’s fiscal
year ending March 31. Contributions for the current year and two preceding years were equal to 100
percent of contributions required, and were as follows: 

Of the cash paid for NYSERS during 2022, $21,458 represents amounts owed for the period of January 1 -
March 31, 2023 and is shown in prepaid expenses on the accompanying statement of net position.

PENSION PLAN

31

Draf
t- 

Su
bje

ct 
to 

Cha
ng

e



LIVINGSTON COUNTY WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY
(A Discretely Presented Component Unit of the County of Livingston, New York)

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources

13,271$          17,214$          
292,457          4,935               

-                       573,839          

131,530          8,300               
64,643            -                       

501,901$        604,288$        

2022
2023 (637)$              
2024 (22,534)           
2025 (114,217)         
2026 (29,642)           

(167,030)$       

At December 31, 2022, the Authority reported a net pension asset of $175,240 for its proportionate share of
the NYS ERS net pension asset. The net pension asset was measured as of March 31, 2022, and the total
pension asset used to calculate the net pension asset was determined by the actuarial valuation as of that
date. The Authority’s proportion of the net pension asset was based on a projection of the Authority’s long-
term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating
members, actuarially determined.

At December 31, 2022, the Authority’s proportionate share was .0021437%, which was a decrease from its
proportionate share of .0022341% measured at December 31, 2021.

For the year ended December 31, 2022, the Authority recognized pension expense of $51,855. At December
31, 2022, the Authority reported deferred outflows/inflows of resources related to pensions from the
following sources:

Plan's Year Ended March 31:

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

Differences between expected and actual experience 
Changes in assumptions

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions
will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

The Authority recognized $64,643 as a deferred outflow of resources related to pensions resulting from
contributions made subsequent to the measurement date of March 31, 2022, which will be recognized as a
reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended December 31, 2023.

Changes in proportion and differences between the 
Authority's contributions and proportionate share of 
contributions 
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date

Total

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 
pension plan investments

32

Draf
t- 

Su
bje

ct 
to 

Cha
ng

e



LIVINGSTON COUNTY WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY
(A Discretely Presented Component Unit of the County of Livingston, New York)

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

  
Allocations in 

% 
Domestic Equity 32                    
International Equity 15                    
Private Equity 10                    
Real Estate 9                      
Opportunistic/Absolute Return Strategies 3                      
Credit 4                      
Real Assets 3                      
Fixed Income 23                    
Cash 1                      

100%

2022

4.10
3.78
5.58
0.00
-1.00

The target allocations and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class
included in the target asset allocation as of March 31, 2022 are summarized below:

Decrements

In 2022, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected return, net of
investment expenses and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to
produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the
target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.

Based on Plan's experience from April 1, 2015 through March 
31, 2020

Mortality improvement
Investment Rate of Return 6.8% compounded annually, net of investment expense, 

including inflation

1.30%

Actuarial cost method Aggregate Cost Method

Cost-of-living adjustments

Society of Actuaries Scale MP-2019

Actuarial Assumptions
The total pension asset at March 31, 2022 was determined by using an actuarial valuation as of April 1, 2021,
with update procedures used to roll forward the total pension liability to March 31, 2022.

The actuarial valuation used the following actuarial assumptions:

Inflation 2.50%
Salary scale 4.50%

Asset Type 
 Long-Term Expected Real 

Rate of Return in % 
3.30
5.85
6.50
5.00

33

Draf
t- 

Su
bje

ct 
to 

Cha
ng

e



LIVINGSTON COUNTY WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY
(A Discretely Presented Component Unit of the County of Livingston, New York)

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

December 31, 2022

 1% Decrease 

4.9% 

 Current 

Discount 

5.9% 

 1% Increase 

6.9% 

451,067$         (175,240)$        (699,116)$       

2022

 $223,874,888 
   232,049,473 

 $   (8,174,585)

103.65%

Net pension liability (asset)

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position (000’s)

The discount rate used to calculate the total pension liability in 2022 was 5.9%. The projection of cash flows

used to determine the discount rate assumes that contributions from plan members will be made at the

current contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be made at statutorily required rates,

actuarially. Based upon the assumptions, the Plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to

make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long term expected

rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to

determine the total pension liability.

ERS net position as a percentage of total pension liability 

Discount Rate 

The components of the current‐year net pension liability (asset) of the employers as of March 31, 2022 and

2021 were as follows:

Total pension liability 

Net position

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) to the Discount Rate Assumption 

The following presents the Authority’s proportionate share of the net pension asset for 2022 calculated

using the discount rate of 5.9%, as well as what the Authority’s proportionate share of the net pension asset

would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1% lower (4.9%) or 1% higher (6.9%) than the

current rate:

Proportionate Share of Net Pension liability (asset)

34

Draf
t- 

Su
bje

ct 
to 

Cha
ng

e



LIVINGSTON COUNTY WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY
(A Discretely Presented Component Unit of the County of Livingston, New York)

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

13.

4                      
4                      

Active employees

Total OPEB Liability

POSTEMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS

Plan Description
The Authority provides certain health care benefits for retired employees.  The Authority administers a single-
employer defined benefit Other Postemployment Benefit (OPEB) Plan (the Plan). The only employees
eligible for the health care benefits through the Plan are the four employees previously employed by the
County who were transferred to the Authority without a break in service on January 1, 2019. Those County
employees who worked for the Authority but retired prior to the employee lease termination with the
County will receive retiree health care benefits through the County, but these costs will be reimbursed by
the Authority. Employees hired by the Authority after January 1, 2019 shall not be eligible for retiree health
insurance.

The obligations of the Plan are established by action of the Authority pursuant to applicable collective
bargaining and employment agreements. The Authority will pay its portion of the premium for the retiree
and spouse for the lifetime of the retiree. The costs of administering the Plan are paid by the Authority. The
Authority currently contributes enough money to the Plan to satisfy current obligations on a pay-as-you-go
basis to cover annual premiums. No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4
of Statement 75.

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms
At December 31, 2022, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

Total participants

The Authority’s total OPEB liability of $2,222,978 reported at December 31, 2022 was measured as of
January 1, 2022 and was determined by an actuarial valuation as of January 1, 2022.

35

Draf
t- 

Su
bje

ct 
to 

Cha
ng

e



LIVINGSTON COUNTY WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY
(A Discretely Presented Component Unit of the County of Livingston, New York)

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

2.2%

To Fiscal Year 
Ending Post-65
2022 6.50%
2023 6.00%
2024 6.00%
2025 5.50%
2026 5.45%
2031 5.18%
2036 5.18%
2041 5.18%
2051 5.18%
2061 4.86%
2071 4.45%
2081 4.04%
2091 4.04%

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal Level - Level Percent of Pay
Mortality - Actives The RPH-2014 Mortality Table for employees, sex distinct, with generational

mortality adjusted to 2006 using scale MP-2014, and projected forward with
scale MP-2020.

The total OPEB liability in the actuarial valuation prepared for December 31, 2022 reporting date were
determined using the following actuarial assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods included in the
measurement, unless otherwise specified:

Actuarial Methods and Other Inputs

Inflation

Rates of decrement due to retirement based on the experience under the
New York State & Local Retirement System as prepared by the Department of
Civil Service’s actuarial consultant in the report titled, Development of
Recommended Actuarial Assumptions for New York State/SUNY GASB 75
Valuation (June 2019).

3%
Discount Rate 2.06 % as of January 1, 2022

Medical Trend Fiscal Year Ending 2022

Salary Scale

Mortality - Retirees The RPH-2014 Mortality Table for Healthy Annuitants, sex distinct, with
generational mortality adjusted to 2006 using scale MP-2014, and projected
forward with scale MP-2020.

Turnover Rates of decrement due to turnover based on the experience under the New
York State & Local Retirement System as prepared by the Department of Civil
Service’s actuarial consultant in the report titled, Development of
Recommended Actuarial Assumptions for New York State/SUNY GASB 75
Valuation (June 2019).

Retirement Incidence

36

Draf
t- 

Su
bje

ct 
to 

Cha
ng

e



LIVINGSTON COUNTY WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY
(A Discretely Presented Component Unit of the County of Livingston, New York)

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

Age Male Female
40-44 0.805 1.229
45-49 1.016 1.349
50-54 1.339 1.587
55-59 1.74 1.835
60-64 2.233 2.184
65-69 0.933 0.886
70-74 1.025 0.973
75-79 1.089 1.040
80-84 1.111 1.071
85-89 1.073 1.044
90-94 1.004 0.958
95+ 0.931 0.827

Fiscal Years Ending 2022
% Electing Coverage

Retiree
Retiree's Spouse

Marriage Rate

Election Percentage
Participant Group

80%
100%Surviving Spouse

100%

Fiscal Years Ending 2022

For fiscal year 2022, it is assumed that 70% of retirees will be married at the
time of their retirement, with the male spouse assumed to be approximately
3 years older than the female.

Morbidity To reflect the differences in covered health care expenses due to aging, the
premiums are adjusted by age and gender using the following age-sex factors:

37

Draf
t- 

Su
bje

ct 
to 

Cha
ng

e



LIVINGSTON COUNTY WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY
(A Discretely Presented Component Unit of the County of Livingston, New York)

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

Age Male Female
40-44  $            6,491  $            9,906 
45-49                8,196              10,881 
50-54              10,794              12,800 
55-59              14,033              14,798 
60-64              18,088              17,609 
65-69                4,834                4,591 
70-74                5,311                5,042 
75-79                5,643                5,389 
80-84                5,757                5,550 
85-89                5,560                5,410 
90-94                5,202                4,964 
95+                4,824                4,285 

It has been assumed for this valuation that all future retirees enrolling in post-
65 medical coverage will enroll in the same Medicare Advantage plan
provided by Livingston County to its post-65 retirees.
The Authority provides pre-65 medical coverage to all actives and eligible
future retirees through the SimplyBlue Plus Platinum 2 plan, a community
rated plan provided through Excellus. For post-65 medical coverage is
provided through Medicare Advantage plan (Medicare Blue Choice 1 Copay
Plan). This plan is rated solely on the experience of post-65 retirees.

The following table presents per capita costs of the plan, including
administrative fees, which was used to calculate the actuarial accrued
liability, separated by male and female:

Per Capita Costs

Post-65 Medical Coverage

Fiscal Year Ending 2022

38

Draf
t- 

Su
bje

ct 
to 

Cha
ng

e



LIVINGSTON COUNTY WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY
(A Discretely Presented Component Unit of the County of Livingston, New York)

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

2022
2,094,564$     

Service cost 59,198            
Interest cost 45,660            

-                       
23,556            

2,222,978$     

 1% Decrease 
1.06% 

 Current 
Discount 

2.06% 
 1% Increase 

3.06% 

Total OPEB Liability 2,672,286$     2,222,978$     1,871,616$     

Balance at January 1, 

Balance at December 31, 

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the Authority, as well as what the Authority’s total OPEB
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage
point higher than the current discount rate for the year ending December 31, 2022:

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

Changes in assumptions and other inputs

Changes in the Total OPEB Liability

Difference between expected and actual experience

39

Draf
t- 

Su
bje

ct 
to 

Cha
ng

e



LIVINGSTON COUNTY WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY
(A Discretely Presented Component Unit of the County of Livingston, New York)

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

 1% Decrease 
 Current Trend 

Rates  1% Increase 

1,827,915$     2,222,978$     2,732,890$     

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience -$                     90,126$          
Changes of assumptions 401,237          -                       
Employer contributions subsequent to measurement date 2,232               -                       

Total 403,469$        90,126$          

Amount
74,019$          
74,019            
74,019            
69,584            
19,470            

-                       

311,111$        

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates
The following presents the total OPEB liability of the Authority, as well as what the Authority’s total OPEB
liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1 percentage point lower or
1 percentage point higher than the current healthcare cost trend rate for the year ending December 31,
2022:

Total OPEB Liability

2027
Thereafter

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will
be recognized in OPEB expense as follows: 

For the year ended December 31, 2022, the Authority recognized OPEB expense of $178,877. As of
December 31, 2022, the Authority reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

Fiscal Year Ending 
2023
2024
2025
2026

40

Draf
t- 

Su
bje

ct 
to 

Cha
ng

e



LIVINGSTON COUNTY WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY
(A Discretely Presented Component Unit of the County of Livingston, New York)

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

14. FUNDS HELD FOR OTHERS

 2022 

22,415$          
19,885            

42,300$          

15. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Contingencies

Lakeville Wastewater Treatment Plant Upgrades Project

Water System Improvement Project
On November 4, 2021, the Authority entered into a short-term Drinking Water State Revolving Fund
financing agreement with New York State Environmental Facilities Corporation for a total project cost of
$7,000,000. The project is financed with $4,000,000 of debt ($1,333,333 at a long term interest rate of 0%
and $2,666,667 at a long term rate of 0.33%) along with a WIIA grant in the amount of $3,000,000. In
January of 2022, the Board increased the total borrowing to $5,500,000 bringing the total project financing
to $8,500,000. It is anticipated that the project will close by the end of 2024.

On February 1, 2018, the Authority entered into a short-term Clean Water State Revolving Fund financing
agreement with the New York State Environmental Facilities Corporation for a total project cost of
$5,716,460. The budget was amended in 2020 to a total project cost of $9,877,366 to finance additional
improvements at the WWTP. The project is financed with $7,707,606 of debt (0% long term interest rate)
along with a WIIA grant in the amount of $1,412,500 and a WQIP grant in the amount of $767,250. It is
anticipated that the project will close by the end of 2023.

At December 31, the Authority maintained funds for other unrelated governments related to capital projects
and collections for customer charges billed by the Authority, as follows:

The Authority has various insurance policies with third-party carriers related to property protection and
casualty.

The Authority is subject to litigation in the ordinary conduct of its affairs. Management does not believe;
however, that such litigation, individually or in the aggregate, is likely to have a material adverse effect on
the financial condition of the Authority.

Compact of towns (flood gates)
Collections

41

Draf
t- 

Su
bje

ct 
to 

Cha
ng

e



LIVINGSTON COUNTY WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY
(A Discretely Presented Component Unit of the County of Livingston, New York)

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2022

Leicester-York Regional Water Supply Expansion Project

16. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

Right-To-Use 
Asset Lease Liability Net Position

346,471$        (253,976)$       (31,600,168)$ 

(87,162)           (5,333)             92,495            

259,309$        (259,309)$       (31,507,673)$ 

On February 2022 the Livingston County Board of Supervisors engaged with the Authority to lead a water
project intended to achieve the County’s interest in providing enhanced public drinking water infrastructure
for the Towns of Leicester and York, as well as supporting regional interests of providing greater access to
affordable safe drinking water for all participating municipalities. On November 9, 2022 the Authority was
awarded $5,000,0000 from NYS Water Infrastructure Improvement (WIIA) program for the Leicester-York
Regional Water Supply Expansion Project. This project is coupled with the commitment from Livingston
County to commit up to $17,000,000 of Akzo Settlement funds to support the project. 2023 will include
finalizing and gaining consensus on the preferred distribution and water supply sources along with municipal
partner commitments. Following municipal partner commitment, preliminary and final design can begin. It
is anticipated that the project will be completed by the end of 2025.

Balance at December 31, 2021, as previously stated

Restatement of beginning balance- Adoption of GASB 
Statement No. 87

Balance at December 31, 2021, as restated

The Authority has adopted GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, during the year ended December 31, 2022.
GASB Statement No. 87 enhances the relevance and consistency of information of the government's leasing
activities. It establishes requirements for lease accounting based on the principle that leases are financings
of the right to use an underlying asset. A lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible
right-to-use lease asset. The implementation date of this standard for the Authority was January 1, 2022. As
such, the present value of the future minimum lease payments was calculated at the implementation date.
As a result, the Authority's right-to-use asset, lease liability, and beginning net position were restated, as
shown below.

42

Draf
t- 

Su
bje

ct 
to 

Cha
ng

e



LIVINGSTON COUNTY WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY
(A Discretely Presented Component Unit of the County of Livingston, New York)

Schedule of Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability (Asset) (Unaudited)
For the Year Ended December 31: 

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

0.0021437% 0.0022341% 0.0007925% 0.0001872%

(175,240)$       2,225$          209,871$      13,264$        
700,362$        689,904$      219,459$      52,308$        

-25.02% 0.32% 95.63% 25.36%

103.65% 99.95% 86.39% 96.27%

Plan fiduciary net position as a 
percentage of the total pension 
liability (asset)

 Last 10 Fiscal Years
NEW YORK STATE EMPLOYEES' 
RETIREMENT SYSTEM PLAN

Proportion of the net pension 
liability (asset)
Proportionate share of the net 
pension liability (asset) 
Covered-employee payroll

Proportionate share of the net 
pension liability (asset) as a 
percentage of its covered-
employee payroll

43Draf
t- 

Su
bje

ct 
to 

Cha
ng

e



LIVINGSTON COUNTY WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY
(A Discretely Presented Component Unit of the County of Livingston, New York)

Schedule of Contributions - Pension Plans (Unaudited)
For the Year Ended December 31: 

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

113,546$       97,052$        28,775$        4,772$           

113,546          97,052           28,775           4,772             

-$                     -$                    -$                    -$                    

700,362$       689,904$      219,459$      52,308$        

16.21% 14.07% 13.11% 9.12%
Contributions as a percentage 
of covered-employee payroll

 Last 10 Fiscal Years
NEW YORK STATE 
EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT 
SYSTEM PLAN

Contractually required 
contribution
Contributions in relation to 
the contractually required 
contribution
Contribution deficiency 
(excess)

Covered-employee payroll

44Draf
t- 

Su
bje

ct 
to 

Cha
ng

e



LIVINGSTON COUNTY WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY
(A Discretely Presented Component Unit of the County of Livingston, New York)

Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios (Unaudited)
For the Year Ended December 31: 

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

Total OPEB Liability -
Service cost 59,198$        51,388$        31,936$        -$                    
Interest 45,660           54,111           59,058           -                      
Changes of benefit terms -                      -                      -                      -                      

-                      (139,918)       -                      -                      
Changes in assumptions 23,556           205,503        423,975        -                      
Benefit payments -                      -                      -                      -                      

-                      -                      -                      1,408,511     

128,414        171,084        514,969        1,408,511     
2,094,564     1,923,480     1,408,511     -                      

Total OPEB liability - ending 2,222,978$   2,094,564$   1,923,480$   1,408,511$   

Covered-employee payroll 204,961$      284,875$      279,865$      259,234$      

1085% 735% 687% 543%

          Notes to schedule:

2.06% 2.12% 2.74% 4.10%

          Plan Assets.   No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in GASB 75, paragraph 4, to pay related benefits:
                - Contributions from the employer and any nonemployer contributing entities, and earnings thereon, must be irrevocable.
                - Plan assets must be dedicated to providing OPEB to Plan members in accordance with the benefit terms.
                - Plan assets must be legally protected from the creditors of the employer, nonemployer contributing entities, the Plan administrator, and Plan members.

Transfer of Total OPEB Liability 
from the County

 Last 10 Fiscal Years

Differences between expected 
and actual experience

Total change in total OPEB 
liability
Total OPEB liability - beginning

Total OPEB liability as a 
percentage of covered-
employee payroll

Changes of assumptions.  Changes in assumptions and other inputs reflect the effects of changes in the discount rate each period.  The discount rate in effect at the 
measurement date each year was as follows:

45Draf
t- 

Su
bje

ct 
to 

Cha
ng

e



LIVINGSTON COUNTY WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY Schedule I

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

Sewer Water Total
OPERATING REVENUE:

Service fees 2,010,942$       1,930,633$       3,941,575$       
O&M service fees 15,000 -                          15,000               
Permit fees 44,306               78,116               122,422             
Other income 33,252               112,523             145,775             

Total operating revenue 2,103,500         2,121,272         4,224,772         

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Wages, salaries, and benefits 996,940             645,135             1,642,075         
Professional services 212,871             140,840             353,711             
Utilities 231,628             132,958             364,586             
Vehicle expense 170                     21,660               21,830               
Purchased water and sewer 63,459               578,284             641,743             
Equipment maintenance 42,430               32,216               74,646               
Building maintenance 333,751             297,735             631,486             
Other 32,655               39,583               72,238               
Depreciation and amortization 872,358             437,411             1,309,769         

Total operating expenses 2,786,262         2,325,822         5,112,084         

Total operating income (loss) (682,762)           (204,550)           (887,312)           

NON-OPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSE):
Interest revenue 11,415               27,424               38,839               
Interest expense (47,434)              (5,268)                (52,702)              
Grant revenue 281,321             (7,952)                273,369             
Debt issuance costs (8,936)                -                          (8,936)                

236,366             14,204               250,570             

(446,396)           (190,346)           (636,742)           

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS:
Contributed funds from Livingston County -                          260,000             260,000             

Total capital contributions -                          260,000             260,000             

CHANGE IN NET POSITION (446,396)$         69,654$             (376,742)           

NET POSITION - beginning of year, as previously reported 31,600,168       

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT (See Note 16) (92,495)              

NET POSITION - beginning of year, as restated 31,507,673       

NET POSITION - end of year 31,130,931$     

GAIN (LOSS) BEFORE CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS

(A Discretely Presented Component Unit of the County of Livingston, New York)

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes In Net Position

2022

Total non-operating revenue (expense)

46

Draf
t- 

Su
bje

ct 
to 

Cha
ng

e



LIVINGSTON COUNTY WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY Schedule II

Sewer Water Total
OPERATING EXPENSES:

Administrative -
Wages, salaries, and benefits 294,290$             255,040$             549,330$             
Professional services 128,687               107,506               236,193               
Utilities 2,084                    1,994                    4,078                    
Vehicle expense 170                       165                       335                       
Equipment maintenance 5,019                    4,880                    9,899                    
Building maintenance 12,084                  13,334                  25,418                  
Other 19,251                  22,130                  41,381                  

Total administrative 461,585               405,049               866,634               

Treatment -
Wages, salaries, and benefits 275,388               21,642                  297,030               
Professional services 20,115                  -                             20,115                  
Utilities 74,731                  131                       74,862                  

63,459                  579,910               643,369               
Equipment maintenance 2,431                    -                             2,431                    
Building maintenance 118,660               5                            118,665               
Other 8,709                    -                             8,709                    

Total treatment 563,493               601,688               1,165,181            

Transmission/collection -
Wages, salaries, and benefits 427,262               368,453               795,715               
Professional services 64,069                  33,334                  97,403                  
Utilities 154,813               130,833               285,646               
Vehicle expense -                             21,495                  21,495                  

-                             (1,626)                   (1,626)                   
Equipment maintenance 34,980                  27,336                  62,316                  
Building maintenance 203,007               284,396               487,403               
Other 4,695                    17,453                  22,148                  

888,826               881,674               1,770,500            

Depreciation 872,358               437,411               1,309,769            

Total operating expenses 2,786,262$          2,325,822$          5,112,084$          

Purchased water and sewer

Total transmission/collection

(A Discretely Presented Component Unit of the County of Livingston, New York)

Schedule of Operating Expenses
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

2022

Purchased water and sewer

47

Draf
t- 

Su
bje

ct 
to 

Cha
ng

e



Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT 
AUDITING STANDARDS

MONTH XX, 2023

To the Board of Directors of

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Authority’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing
our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a
timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented or detected
and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material
weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Livingston County Water and Sewer Authority

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Governmental Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States, the financial statements of the Livingston County Water and
Sewer Authority (the Authority), a public benefit corporation of the State of New
York and a discretely presented component unit of the County of Livingston, New
York, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2022, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial
statements and have issued our report thereon dated MONTH XX, 2022.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in
internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given
these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.

48

Draf
t- 

Su
bje

ct 
to 

Cha
ng

e



Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority’s financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

49

Draf
t- 

Su
bje

ct 
to 

Cha
ng

e



 
 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-11 

 
RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE 2022 ANNUAL AUDIT 

 
WHEREAS, New York Public Authorities Law requires all Public Authorities to conduct an 

annual financial audit, and the Livingston County Water & Sewer Authority’s (“Authority”) has an 
existing auditing services contract with Bonadio & Co., LLP, and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority Audit and Finance Committee met on March 8, 2023 to review the 

draft financial statements, communication letter and management letter, and, now, therefore be it, 
 

RESOLVED, that the Livingston County Water & Sewer Authority accepts the annual audit as 
presented by the Audit and Finance Committee and direct staff to file the report as necessary, per 
Livingston County Water & Sewer Authority enabling legislation.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
March 15, 2023 
Livingston County Water & Sewer Authority 
Moved By: 
Seconded By: 
AYES: 
NAYS: 
 

 



 
 
 
 

 

Livingston County Water & Sewer Authority 
PO Box 396, 1997 D’Angelo Drive, Lakeville, NY 14480 

(585) 346-3523 
www.lcwsa.us  

 
 
 

 

Executive Director 
Jason Molino 

 
Deputy Director 

Lauren Monaghan 

 
 

Current Policies 
 

 
 
 
 

 

http://www.lcwsa.us/


A1.001 
Public Authorities Law 

Public Authority Accountability Act of 2005 
1. Role & Responsibilities of Board Members (Act §18, amends Public Authorities Law 

[“PAL] §2824) 
 
 A.   Authority Board Member Responsibilities are defined to include: 
 

1. Executing direct oversight of authority’s chief executive & other senior 
management in the effective & ethical management. 

 
2. Understanding, reviewing & monitoring implementation of fundamental 

financial & management controls & operational decisions. 
 
3. Establishing policies regarding payment of salary, compensation & 

reimbursements to, & establishing rules for time & attendance of, chief 
executive officer & senior management. 

 
4. Adopting a code of ethics applicable to each officer, director & employee that, 

at a minimum, included standards established in Section 74 of the Public 
Officers Law. 

 
5. Establishing written policies & procedures on personnel including policies 

protecting employees from retaliation for disclosing information concerning 
acts of wrongdoing, misconduct, malfeasance, or other inappropriate behavior 
by an employee or board member, investments, travel, acquisition of real 
property & disposition of real & personal property & procurement of goods & 
services. 

 
6. Adopting a defense & indemnification policy & disclosing such plan to any & 

all prospective board members. 
 
 B. Training 

 
1. Board members must participate in state approved training regarding their 

legal, fiduciary, financial & ethical responsibilities as directors within 1 year 
of appointment to the board. 

 
2. Board members must participate in continuing training as may be required to 

remain informed of best practices, regulatory & statutory changes relating to 
effective oversight of management & financial activities of authorities. 

 
 C. Separation of Board & Management 

No board member can serve as an authority’s CEO, executive director, CFO, 
comptroller, or hold any other equivalent position while also serving as a board 
member. 
 

 D. Extension of Credit 
The board is prohibited from extending or maintaining credit, arranging for the 
extension of credit, or renew an extension of credit, in the form of a personal loan to 
or for any officer, board member or employee. 



 
 E. Establishment of Committees 

1. Audit Committee:  Each public authority must establish an audit committee 
comprised of “independent” members.  To the extent practicable, members of 
the audit committee should be familiar with corporate financial accounting 
practices.  This committee must recommend to the board the hiring pf a CPA 
firm, establish compensation to be paid to the CPA firm 7 provide direct 
oversight of the performance of the independent annual audit performed by 
the CPA firm.   

 
2. Governance Committee:  Each public authority must establish a governance 

committee to be comprised of “independent” members.  This committee must 
keep the board informed of current best governance practices, review 
corporate governance trends, update the authority’s governance principles, & 
advise appointing authorities on the skills & experiences required of potential 
board members. 

 
2. Board Member Independence & Financial Disclosure (Act §19) 
 
 A.  Independent Member Requirements 
 Except for board members who serve as members by virtue of holding a civil office of 

the state, the majority of the remaining members who are appointed on or after 1/13/06 
must be independent.  An independent member is one who: 

 
1.   Is not, & in the past 2 years has not been, employed by the public authority or 

an affiliate in an executive capacity; 
2.   Is not, & in the past 2 years has not been, employed by an entity tat received 

remuneration valued at more than $15,000 for goods & services provided to 
the public authority or received any other financial assistance valued at more 
than $15,000 from the authority. 

3. Is not a relative of an executive officer or employee in an executive position 
of the authority or an affiliate. 

4. Is not, & in the past 2 years has not been, a lobbyist registered under a state or 
local law & paid by a client to influence the management decisions, contract 
awards, rate determinations or any other similar actions of the public authority 
or an affiliate.  

 
 B.  Financial Disclosure Requipments 

Board members, officers & employees are required to file annual financial disclosure 
statements.  Board members of local authorities must file with the county board of ethics 
for the county in which the local public authority has its primary office pursuant to 
Article 18 of the General Municipal Law. 

  
3. Annual Report (Act § 15) 
 
 A.  Annual Report Contents 

The authority must submit reports to the chief executive officer, chief fiscal officer, 
chairperson of the legislative body of the local government(s), and the Authority Budget 
Office. 
 

  1.  Operations & Accomplishments during the year 



  2. Receipts (revenues) & disbursements (expenses) during the year 
3. Assets & Liabilities at the end of the year including the status of reserve, 

depreciation, special or other funds & including the receipts & payments of 
these funds. 

4. Schedule of its bonds/notes outstanding at the end of the year, together with a 
statement of the amounts redeemed & incurred during the year as a part of a 
schedule of debt issuance. 

5. A compensation schedule salary, compensation, allowance and/or benefits 
provided to any officer, director or employee in a decision making or 
managerial position of such authority whose salary is in excess of $100,000. 

  6. Projects undertaken by the authority during the year. 
7. Listing of all real property of the authority in excess of $15,000 fair market 

value that the authority intends to dispose of:  (ii) all such property held by the 
authority at the end of the period covered by the report, and (iii) all such 
property disposed of during such period. 

8. Authority’s code of ethics; and an assessment of the effectiveness of its 
internal control structure & procedures. 

 
 B.  Certification of Financial Reports 

Every financial report submitted in the annual report must be approved by the board 
& must be certified in writing by the CEO & the CFO of such authority. 
 

 C.  Web Sites 
As practicable, the authority must post its mission, current activities, most recent 
annual financial report, current year budget & its most recent independent audit report 
on its web site. 

  
4. Budget Report (Act §16) 

The Authority must submit (at least 60 days before the start of the fiscal year) to the chief 
executive officer, chief fiscal officer, chairperson of the legislative body of the local 
government(s), & the Authority Budget Office a budget report containing, for operations & 
capital construction: 
 

actual receipts & expenditures of last completed fiscal year  
estimated receipts & expenditures for the next fiscal year  
estimated receipts & expenditures for the current year. 
 

5. Independent Audit & Audit Report (Act §17) 
 
 A.  The Independent Audit Report 

The Authority must submit a copy of the annual independent audit report (performed by a 
CPA firm in accordance with generally accepted government auditing standards), a 
management letter, & any other external examination of the books & accounts of the 
authority, other than examinations made my the State Comptroller to the chief executive 
officer, chief fiscal officer, chairperson of the legislative body of the local government(s), 
& the Authority Budget Office.  An Authority may exempt information from disclosure if 
it may be exempted pursuant to “FOIL”. 
 
Independent Auditor must report to the Audit Committee: 
a. All critical accounting policies & practices to be used; 



b.   All alternative treatments of financial information within GAAP that have been 
discussed with management officials, ramification of the use of such alternative 
disclosures & treatments, & the treatment preferred by the CPA. 

c.   Other material written communications between CPA & management, such as the 
management letter along with management’s response or plan of corrective action, 
material corrections identified or schedule of unadjusted differences, where 
applicable. 

 
6. Property Disposition (Act §20) 
 
 A.  Property Disposal Guidelines 

Adopt comprehensive guidelines which detail policies regarding property disposal 
contracts & appoint a Contracting Officer to be responsible for compliance & 
enforcement of such guidelines.  Guidelines should be reviewed annually by the board & 
filed with the Comptroller & posted on the authority web site. 

 
 B.  Property Reports 

Every year the authority must publish a list of real & personal property & provide a 
description of the property disposed of during the year. 
 

7. Investment Guidelines (Act §21) 
 

Authority must adopt & review comprehensive investment guidelines which detail the 
authority’s operative policy & instruction to officers & staff regarding the investing, 
monitoring & reporting of funds of the corporation.  These guidelines must be reviewed 
annually. 

 
 

 



A1-002 

Updated 11/2006 

Livingston County Water & Sewer Authority 

Code of Ethics 

 

Definition 

Authority employee:  shall mean any member, officer or employee of the Authority. 

 

Conflicts of Interest 

No Authority employee should have any interest, financial or otherwise, direct of 

indirect, or engage in any business or transaction or professional activity or incur any 

obligation of any nature, which is in substantial conflict with the property discharge of 

his/her duties in the public interest.  

 

No Authority employee employed on a full-time basis nor any firm or association of 

which such an employee is a member nor corporation a substantial portion of the stock of 

which is owned or controlled directly or indirectly by such employee, should sell goods 

or services to nay person, firm, corporation ar association that is licensed or whose rates 

are fixed by the Authority in which such employee services or is employed.  

 

If any Authority employee shall have a financial interest, direct or indirect having a value 

of ten thousand dollars or more in any activity which is subject to the jurisdiction of a 

regulatory agency, he or she should file with the secretary of state a written statement that 

he or she has such a financial interest in such activity which statement shall be open to 

public inspection. 

 

Standards 

Authority employees should not: 

 

1. Accept other employment that will impair his/her independence of judgment in 

the exercise of his/her official duties. 

 

2. Accept employment or engage in any business or professional activity which will 

require him to disclose confidential information which he has gained by reason of 

his official position or duty. 

 

3. Disclose confidential information acquired in the course of his/her official duties 

nor use such information to further his/her personal interests. 

 

4. Use or attempt to use his/her official position to secure unwarranted privileges or 

exemptions for him/herself or others. 

 

5. Engage in any transaction as representative or agent of the Authority with any 

business entity in which he/she has a direct or indirect financial interest that might 

reasonably tend to conflict with the proper discharge of his/her duties. 

 



6. By his/her conduct give reasonable basis for the impression that any person can 

improperly influence such employee or unduly enjoy his/her favor in performance 

of his/her official duties or that he/she is affected by the kinship, rank, position or 

influence of any party or person.  

 

7. Abstain from making personal investments in enterprises that he/she has reason to 

believe may be directly involved in decisions to be made by the employee or that 

will otherwise create substantial conflict between his/her duty in the public 

interest and his/her private interest. 

 

8. Pursue a course of conduct that will raise suspicion among the public that he/she 

is likely to be engaged in acts that are in violation of his/her trust. 

 

Violations 

In addition to any penalty contained in any other provision of law any officer, member or 

employee who knowingly & intentionally violates any of the provisions of the Code of 

Ethics may be fined, suspended or removed from office or employment in the manner 

provide by law. 

 

Livingston County Disclosure 

It is expected that Authority employees also behave according to the Livingston County 

Ethics and Disclosure Law. 

 

 

 

 







H:\MINUTES WASA\Governance Committee\2023\A01-003 Public Authorities Law-
title 8-linked.doc 

                               TITLE 8-G* 
               LIVINGSTON COUNTY WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY 
Section 1199-aaaa*.  Definitions. 
        1199-bbbb*.  Livingston county water and sewer authority district. 
        1199-cccc*.   Livingston county water and sewer authority. 
        1199-dddd*.  Powers of the authority. 
        1199-eeee*.   Advances on behalf of the authority; acquisition of 
                               property by county for authority. 
        1199-ffff*.     Transfer of officers and employees. 
        1199-gggg*.  Bonds of the authority. 
        1199-hhhh*.  Remedies of bondholders. 
        1199-iiii*.      State and municipalities not  liable  on  authority 
                               bonds. 
        1199-jjjj*.      Moneys of the authority. 
        1199-kkkk*.  Bonds legal investments for fiduciaries. 
        1199-llll*.      Agreement with the state. 
        1199-mmmm*.  Exemption from taxes, assessments and certain fees; 
                                   payments in lieu of taxes. 
        1199-nnnn*.  Actions against the authority. 
        1199-pppp*.  Construction and purchase contracts. 
        1199-qqqq*.  Code of ethics. 
        1199-rrrr*.     Equal employment opportunity. 
        1199-ssss*.    Audit and annual report. 
        1199-tttt*.     Environmental  applications, proceedings, approvals 
                              and permits. 
        1199-uuuu*.  Limited liability. 
        1199-vvvv*.  Governmental  capacity   of   the   authority   and 
                              municipalities. 
        1199-wwww*.  Separability clause. 
        1199-xxxx*.  Effect of inconsistent provisions. 
 
  S 1199-aaaa*. Definitions. As used or referred to in this title, 
unless a different meaning clearly appears from the context: 
  1. "Authority" shall mean the corporation created by section one 
thousand one hundred ninety-nine-cccc of this title. 
  2. "Board" shall mean the members of the authority constituting and 
acting as the governing board of the authority. 
  3. "Board of supervisors" shall mean the board of supervisors of 
Livingston county. 
  4. "Bonds" shall mean the bonds, notes or other evidences of 
indebtedness issued by the authority pursuant to this title, and the 
provisions of this title relating to bonds and bondholders shall apply 
with equal force and effect to notes and noteholders, respectively, 
unless the context otherwise clearly requires. 
  5. "Civil service commission" shall mean the personnel officer of the 
county of Livingston or any other person or entity acting as the civil 



H:\MINUTES WASA\Governance Committee\2023\A01-003 Public Authorities Law-
title 8-linked.doc 

service commission of the county of Livingston. 
  6. "Comptroller" shall mean the comptroller of the state of New York. 
  7. "Construction" shall mean the negotiation, acquisition, erection, 
building, alteration, improvement, testing, increase, enlargement, 
extension, reconstruction, interconnection, renovation or rehabilitation 
of a water, sewerage or water and sewerage facility, as the case may be; 
the inspection and supervision thereof; and the engineering, 
architectural, legal, appraisal, fiscal, economic and environmental 
investigations, services and studies, surveys, designs, plans, working 
drawings, specifications, procedures and other actions preliminary or 
incidental thereto. 
  8. "Costs", as applied to any project, shall include the cost of 
construction, the cost of the acquisition of all property, including 
both real, personal and mixed, the cost of demolishing, removing or 
relocating any buildings or structures on lands so acquired, including 
the cost of acquiring any land to which such buildings or structures may 
be moved or relocated, the cost of all systems, facilities, machinery, 
apparatus and equipment, financing charges, interest prior to, during 
and after construction to the extent not paid or provided for from 
revenues or other sources, the cost of engineering and architectural 
surveys, plans and specifications, the cost of consultant and legal 
services, the cost of lease guarantee or bond insurance or other credit 
enhancement associated with bonds of the authority (including notes) and 
the cost of other expenses necessary or incidental to the construction 
of such project and the financing of the construction thereof, including 
the amount authorized in the resolution of the authority providing for 
the issuance of bonds to be paid into any reserve or other special fund 
from the proceeds of such bonds and the financing of the placing of any 
project in operation, including the reimbursement to the county, or any 
municipality, state agency, the state, the United states government, or 
any other person for expenditures made by them that would be costs of 
the project hereunder. 
  9. "County" shall mean the county of Livingston. 
  10. "Distribution system" shall mean the water facility or facilities 
employed to deliver water from a transmission facility, or where there 
is no transmission facility, from a supply facility, to the ultimate 
consumers of water. 
  11. "District" shall mean the Livingston county water and sewer 
authority district created by section eleven hundred ninety-nine-bbbb of 
this title. 
  12. "Governing body" shall mean: 
  (a) In the case of a city, county, town or village or district 
corporation the finance board as such term is defined in the local 
finance law; 
  (b) In the case of a public benefit corporation, the members thereof. 
  13. "Members" shall mean the members of the board. 



H:\MINUTES WASA\Governance Committee\2023\A01-003 Public Authorities Law-
title 8-linked.doc 

  14. "Municipality" shall mean any county, city, town, village, 
improvement district under the county or town law, any other such 
instrumentality, including any agency or public corporation of the 
state, or any of the foregoing or any combination thereof. 
  15. "Person" shall mean any natural person, partnership, association, 
joint venture or corporation, exclusive of a public corporation as 
defined pursuant to article two-A of the general construction law. 
  16. "Real property" shall mean lands, structures, franchises, rights 
and interests in land, waters, lands underwater, groundwater, riparian 
rights and air rights and any and all things and rights included within 
said term "real property" and includes not only fee simple absolute, but 
also any and all lesser interests including, but not limited to, 
easements, rights-of-way, uses, leases, licenses and all other 
incorporeal hereditaments and every estate, interest or right, legal or 
equitable, including terms for years and liens thereon by way of 
judgments, mortgages or otherwise. 
  17. "State sanitary code" shall mean regulations adopted pursuant to 
section two hundred twenty-five of the public health law. 
  18. "Sewage" means the water-carried human or animal wastes from 
residences, buildings, industrial establishments or other places, 
together with such groundwater infiltration and surface water as may be 
present. The admixture with sewage of industrial or other waste also 
shall be considered "sewage" within the meaning of this title. 
  19. "Sewerage facility" or "sewerage facilities" means any plants, 
structures and other real and personal property acquired, rehabilitated 
or constructed or planned for the purpose of collecting, conveying, 
pumping, treating, neutralizing, storing and disposing of sewage, 
including but not limited to main, trunk, intercepting, connecting, 
lateral, outlet or other sewers, outfalls, pumping stations, treatment 
and disposal plants, ground water recharge basins, back-flow prevention 
devices, sludge dewatering or disposal equipment and facilities, 
clarifiers, filters, phosphorus removal equipment and other plants, 
works, structures, equipment, vehicles, conveyances, contract rights, 
franchises, approaches, connections, permits, real or personal property 
or rights therein and appurtenances thereto necessary or useful and 
convenient for the collection, conveyance, pumping, treatment, 
neutralizing, storing and disposing of sewage. 
  20. "State" shall mean the state of New York. 
  21. "State agency" shall mean any state office, public benefit 
corporation, department, board, commission, bureau or division, or other 
agency or instrumentality of the state. 
  22. "Supply facility" shall mean a water facility employed to make 
groundwater or surface water available for delivery into a transmission 
facility or distribution system. 
  23. "System revenues" shall mean all rates, rents, fees, charges, 
payments and other income and receipts derived by the authority 



H:\MINUTES WASA\Governance Committee\2023\A01-003 Public Authorities Law-
title 8-linked.doc 

including, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, investment 
proceeds and proceeds of insurance, condemnation, sales or other 
dispositions of assets, together with all federal, state or municipal 
aid as well as any other income derived from the operation of the water 
facility of the authority. 
  24. "Transmission facility" shall mean a water facility used to carry 
water from a supply facility to a distribution system. 
  25. "Treasurer" shall mean the treasurer of the authority. 
  26. "Water facility" or "water facilities" shall mean any plants, 
structures or other real and personal property acquired, rehabilitated 
or constructed or planned for the purpose of accumulating, supplying, 
transmitting, distributing or treating water, including but not limited 
to surface or groundwater reservoirs, basins, dams, canals, aqueducts, 
standpipes, conduits, pipelines, mains, pumping stations, pumps, water 
distribution systems, compensating reservoirs, intake stations, 
waterworks or sources of water supply, wells, purification or filtration 
plants or other treatment plants and works, approaches, connections, 
water meters, rights of flowage or diversion and other plants, 
structures, equipment, vehicles, towers, conveyances, real or personal 
property or rights therein and appurtenances thereto necessary or useful 
and convenient for the accumulation, supply, transmission, treatment or 
distribution of water. 
  27. "Water project" shall mean any sewerage facility, water facility 
or water and sewerage facility, as the case may be, including the 
planning, development, financing or construction thereof. 
  28. "Watershed rules" shall mean the rules and regulations made by the 
department of health pursuant to section eleven hundred of the public 
health law. 
 
  S 1199-bbbb*. Livingston county water and sewer authority district. 
There is hereby defined and established a district to be known as the 
"Livingston county water and sewer authority district" which shall 
embrace all of the territory located within the county of Livingston. 
 
  S 1199-cccc*. Livingston county water and sewer authority. 1. A public 
corporation known as the "Livingston county water and sewer authority" 
is hereby created for the public purposes and charged with the duties 
and having the powers provided in this title. The authority shall be a 
corporate governmental agency constituting a public benefit corporation 
and shall be a "public district" for the purposes of section 
eighty-nine-1 of the public service law. The authority shall be governed 
by a board consisting of seven members, who shall be residents of the 
county and be appointed by resolution of the board of supervisors. The 
first members appointed shall be appointed for the following terms: two 
for a term ending on December thirty-first of the year following the 
year in which this title shall have become law; two for a term ending on 



H:\MINUTES WASA\Governance Committee\2023\A01-003 Public Authorities Law-
title 8-linked.doc 

December thirty-first of the second year following the year in which 
this title shall have become law; and three for a term ending on 
December thirty-first of the third year following the year in which this 
title shall have become law. Subsequent appointment of members shall be 
made in the same manner and for terms of three years ending in each case 
on December thirty-first of the last year of such term. All members 
shall continue to hold office until their successors are appointed and 
have qualified. Vacancies shall be filled in the manner provided for 
original appointment. Vacancies occurring otherwise than by expiration 
of terms of office, shall be filled by appointment for the unexpired 
terms. Members may be removed from office for the same reasons and in 
the same manner as may be provided by law for the removal of officers of 
the county. In addition, members may be removed from office by the board 
of supervisors for inefficiency, neglect of duty or misconduct in 
office, after the board of supervisors has given such member a copy of 
the charges against him and opportunity to be heard in person or by 
counsel in his defense, upon not less than ten days notice. If a member 
fails to attend three consecutive regular meetings of the authority, 
unless such absence is for good cause and is excused by the chairperson 
of the authority or other presiding officers, or in the case of the 
chairperson of the authority, by the chairman of the board of 
supervisors, the office may be deemed vacant for purposes of the 
nomination and appointment of a successor. The officers of the authority 
shall receive from the authority such salary, if any, as shall be 
determined from time to time by the board of supervisors. In addition, 
members and officers shall be entitled to reimbursement of their actual 
and necessary expenses, including travel expenses, incurred in the 
discharge of their duties. 
  2. The powers of the authority shall be vested in and shall be 
exercised by the board at a meeting duly called and held where a quorum 
of four members is present. No action shall be taken by the authority 
except pursuant to the favorable vote of at least four members. The 
board may delegate to one or more of its members, or to one or more of 
the officers, agents or employees of the authority, such powers and 
duties as it may deem proper. 
  3. The officers of the authority shall consist of a chairperson, vice 
chairperson, and treasurer who shall be members of the board and a 
secretary who need not be a member of the board. The officers of the 
authority shall be appointed by the board and shall serve in such 
capacities at the pleasure of the board. In addition, the board may 
appoint and at its pleasure remove such additional officers and 
employees as it may determine necessary for the performance of the 
powers and duties of the authority and fix and determine the 
qualifications, duties and compensation of such additional officers and 
employees, subject to the provisions of the civil service law of the 
state and such rules as the civil service commission may adopt and make 



H:\MINUTES WASA\Governance Committee\2023\A01-003 Public Authorities Law-
title 8-linked.doc 

applicable to the authority. The authority may also from time to time 
contract for expert professional services. The treasurer shall execute a 
bond, conditioned upon the faithful performance of the duties of his or 
her office, the amount and sufficiency of which shall be approved by the 
board, and the premium therefor shall be paid by the authority. 
  4. Notwithstanding any inconsistent provision of any general, special 
or local law, ordinance, resolution or charter, no officer, member or 
employee of the state, any municipality, or any public benefit 
corporation, shall forfeit his or her office or employment by reason of 
his or her acceptance of appointment as a member, officer, agent or 
employee of the authority, nor shall service as such member, officer, 
agent or employee be deemed incompatible or in conflict with such 
office, membership or employment, and one or more members of the board 
of supervisors may be appointed to serve as a member of the authority. 
  5. (a) The chairman of the board of supervisors shall file within one 
year after the effective date of this title, in the office of the 
secretary of state, a certificate signed by the chairman of the board of 
supervisors setting forth: (i) the name of the authority; (ii) the names 
of the initial members of the board and their terms of office; and (iii) 
the effective date of this title. If such certificate is not filed with 
the secretary of state on or before such date, then the corporate 
existence of the authority shall thereupon terminate and it shall 
thereupon be deemed to be and shall be dissolved. 
  (b) Except as provided in paragraph (a) of this subdivision, the 
authority and its corporate existence shall continue until terminated by 
law, provided, however, that no such law shall take effect so long as 
the authority shall have bonds or other obligations outstanding unless 
adequate provision has been made for the payment or satisfaction 
thereof. Upon termination of the existence of the authority, all of the 
rights and properties of the authority then remaining shall pass to and 
vest in the county. 
  6. Neither the public service commission nor any other board or 
commission of like character, shall have jurisdiction over the authority 
in the management and control of its properties or operations of any 
power over the regulation of rates fixed or charges collected by the 
authority. 
  7. It is hereby determined and declared that the authority and the 
carrying out of its powers, purposes and duties are in all respects for 
the benefit of the people of the county and the state, for the 
improvement of their health, welfare and prosperity and that such 
purposes are public purposes and that the authority is and will be 
performing an essential governmental function in the exercise of the 
powers conferred upon it by this title. 
  8. Nothing in this title shall be construed to obligate the state in 
any way in connection with the operations or obligations of the 
authority. 



H:\MINUTES WASA\Governance Committee\2023\A01-003 Public Authorities Law-
title 8-linked.doc 

 
  S 1199-dddd*. Powers of the authority. Except as otherwise limited by 
this title, the authority shall have the power: 
  1. To sue and be sued; 
  2. To have a seal and alter the same at pleasure; 
  3. To borrow money and issue negotiable notes, bonds, or other 
obligations and to provide for the rights of the holders thereof; 
  4. To enter into contracts and execute all instruments necessary or 
convenient or desirable for the purposes of the authority to carry out 
any powers expressly given it in this title; 
  5. To acquire, by purchase, gift, grant, transfer, contract or lease 
or by condemnation pursuant to the eminent domain procedure law within 
the district, lease as lessee, hold and use and to sell, lease as 
lessor, transfer or otherwise dispose of, any real or personal property 
or any interest therein, within or without the district, as the 
authority may deem necessary, convenient or desirable to carry out the 
purpose of this title and to pay the costs thereof; provided, however, 
that the authority may not condemn real property of a municipality 
without the consent of the governing body of such municipality; 
  6. To purchase or refuse to purchase in the name of the authority, any 
water or sewerage facility, including plants, works, instrumentalities 
or parts thereof and appurtenances thereto, lands, easements, rights in 
land and water rights, rights-of-way, contract rights, franchises, 
permits, approaches, connections, dams, wells, pumps, reservoirs, water 
or sewer mains and pipe lines, pumping stations, treatment facilities, 
meters, equipment and inventory, or any other property incidental to and 
included in such system or part thereof, and any improvements, 
extensions and betterments, situated wholly within the district and to 
pay the costs thereof; provided, however that prior to the acquisition 
of any existing water or sewer district, the authority shall discuss and 
consider the status of current employees of the water or sewer district; 
and further provided, however, that the authority shall have the power 
to purchase any source of supply, supply facility, water supply system, 
or transmission facility or any part thereof situated wholly or partly 
without the territorial limits of the district, provided same shall be 
necessary in order to supply water within the district; and in 
connection with the purchase of such properties the authority may assume 
any obligations of the owner of such properties and, to the extent 
required by the terms of any indentures or other instruments under which 
such obligations were issued, the authority may assume and agree to 
perform covenants and observe the restrictions contained in such 
instruments; and furthermore the owner of any properties, which the 
authority is authorized to acquire, is hereby authorized to sell or 
otherwise transfer the same to the authority, whereupon the authority 
shall become charged with the performance of all public duties with 
respect to such properties with which such owner was charged and such 



H:\MINUTES WASA\Governance Committee\2023\A01-003 Public Authorities Law-
title 8-linked.doc 

owner shall become discharged from the performance thereof, and as a 
means of so acquiring for such purpose, the authority may purchase all 
of the stock or any existing privately owned water corporation or 
company and in the case of a sale or other transfer of properties of a 
public utility corporation pursuant to this provision, upon the purchase 
of the stock of such corporation or company it shall be lawful to 
dissolve such corporation within a reasonable time; 
  7. To construct, improve, maintain, develop, expand or rehabilitate 
water or sewerage facilities and to pay the costs thereof; 
  8. To operate and manage and to contract for the operation and 
management of facilities of the authority; 
  9. To enter into contracts, and carry out the terms thereof, for the 
wholesale provision of water produced by supply facilities constructed, 
owned or operated by the authority, to municipalities and private water 
companies and to carry out the terms thereof, for the transmission of 
water from new or existing supply facilities; 
  10. To enter into contracts with municipalities or other persons for 
the collection, treatment and disposal of sewage; 
  11. To apply to the appropriate agencies and officials of the federal, 
state and local governments for such licenses, permits or approvals of 
its plans or projects as it may deem necessary or advisable, and upon 
such terms and conditions as it may deem appropriate, to accept, in its 
discretion, such licenses, permits or approvals as may be tendered to it 
by such agencies and officials; 
  12. To take all necessary and reasonable actions within the district 
to conserve, preserve and protect the water supply to the district, 
including the making of plans and studies, the adoption of watershed 
rules and regulations, the enforcing of compliance with all current and 
future rules and regulations of the state sanitary code with regard to 
water supply and usage, the requiring of cross-connection controls, the 
providing of educational material and programs to the public, and the 
cooperating with water suppliers outside the district to conserve, 
preserve and protect the entire water reserve as it is affected within 
and outside the authority`s supply area; 
  13. To appoint such officers and employees as are required for the 
performance of its duties, to fix and determine their qualifications, 
duties and compensation, and to retain or employ counsel, auditors, 
engineers, and private consultants on a contract basis or otherwise for 
rendering professional or technical services and advice; 
  14. With the consent of the governing body of a municipality, to use 
officers and employees of such municipality and to pay a proper 
proportion of the compensation or costs for the services for such 
officers or employees; 
  15. To make plans and studies necessary, convenient or desirable for 
the effectuation of the purposes and powers of the authority and to 
prepare recommendations in regard thereto; 



H:\MINUTES WASA\Governance Committee\2023\A01-003 Public Authorities Law-
title 8-linked.doc 

  16. To prepare a water supply emergency plan which may include, but 
not be limited to, the following: 
  (a) establishment of criteria and procedures to determine critical 
water levels or safe yield of system; 
  (b) identification of existing and future sources of water under 
normal conditions and emergency conditions; 
  (c) system capacity and ability to meet peak demand and fire flows 
concurrently; 
  (d) storage capacities; 
  (e) current condition of present interconnections and identification 
of additional interconnections to meet a water supply emergency; 
  (f) specific action plan to be followed during a water supply 
emergency including a phased implementation of the plan; 
  (g) general water conservation programs and water use reduction 
strategies for water supply users; 
  (h) prioritization of water users; 
  (i) identification and availability of emergency equipment needed 
during a water supply emergency; and 
  (j) public notification program coordinated with the phased 
implementation schedule; 
  Such plan shall not be adopted until a public hearing on such plan 
shall have been held, upon not less than fourteen days` notice thereof 
to each customer, either by mail or by publication once in a newspaper 
having general circulation within the district; every five years, such 
plan shall be reviewed and revised if necessary after a public hearing, 
with notice to each customer as aforesaid; 
  17. To enter upon such lands, waters, or premises as in the judgment 
of the authority shall be necessary for the purpose of making surveys, 
soundings, borings and examinations to accomplish any purpose authorized 
by this title, the authority being liable only for actual damage done; 
  18. To apply for and to accept any gifts or grants or loans of funds 
or property or financial or other aid in any form from the federal 
government or any agency or instrumentality thereof, or from the state 
or any agency or instrumentality thereof, or from any other source, for 
any or all of the purposes specified in this title, and to comply, 
subject to the provisions of this title, with the terms and conditions 
thereof; 
  19. To supply and sell water for domestic, commercial and public 
purposes at retail to individual consumers within the district or to 
collect, treat or discharge sewage produced within the district; 
  20. To purchase water in bulk from any person, private or public 
benefit corporation or municipality when necessary or convenient for the 
operation of such water system; 
  21. To produce, develop, distribute and sell water or sewerage 
services within or without the territorial limits of the district; and 
to purchase water from any municipality, town water district, person, 



H:\MINUTES WASA\Governance Committee\2023\A01-003 Public Authorities Law-
title 8-linked.doc 

association or corporation, provided, however, that water or sewerage 
services may be sold at retail to individual consumers only within the 
district and further provided that in exercising the powers granted by 
this title, the authority shall not sell water in any area which is 
served by a water system or sewerage services in any area which is 
served by a sewerage system owned or operated by a municipality or 
special improvement district unless the governing body of such 
municipality or district shall adopt a resolution requesting the 
authority to sell water or sewerage services, as the case may be, in 
such served areas; 
  22. To make bylaws for the management and regulation of its affairs 
and rules and regulations for the conservation, preservation and 
protection of the authority`s water supply and, subject to agreements 
with bondholders, rules for the sale of water or collection of sewage 
and the collection of rents and charges therefor. A copy of such rules, 
regulations and bylaws and any rules and regulations adopted pursuant to 
subdivision eleven of this section, and all amendments thereto, duly 
certified by the secretary of the authority shall be filed in the office 
of the county clerk of the county. In addition, the board of supervisors 
by local law shall have power to prescribe that violation of specific 
bylaws, rules, or rules and regulations of the authority, published once 
in a newspaper having general circulation within the county, shall be 
punishable by fine, not exceeding fifty dollars per violation; 
  23. To fix rates and collect charges for the use of the facilities of, 
or services rendered by, or any commodities furnished by the authority 
such as to provide revenues sufficient at all times to pay, as the same 
shall become due, the principal of and interest on the bonds, notes, or 
other obligations of the authority together with the maintenance of 
proper reserves therefor, in addition to paying as the same shall become 
due, the expense of operating and maintaining the properties of the 
authority together with proper maintenance reserves, capital reserves, 
repair reserves, tax stabilization reserves and other contingency 
reserves, and all other obligations and indebtedness of the authority; 
provided however, no such rates or charges shall be changed until a 
public hearing on such changes shall have been held upon not less than 
fourteen days notice thereof to each customer, either by mail or by 
publication once in a newspaper having general circulation within the 
bounds of the authority; 
  24. To enter into cooperative agreements with other authorities, 
municipalities, counties, cities, towns, villages, water districts, 
utility companies, individuals, firms or corporations, within or without 
the territorial limits of the district for the interconnection of 
facilities, the provision, exchange or interchange of services and 
commodities, the conservation, preservation and protection of the 
authority`s water reserve as it is affected within and outside the 
authority`s supply area, and, within the territorial limits of the 



H:\MINUTES WASA\Governance Committee\2023\A01-003 Public Authorities Law-
title 8-linked.doc 

district, to enter into a contract for the construction, operation and 
maintenance of a water supply and distribution system by the authority 
for any municipality having power to construct and develop a water 
supply and distribution system or sewerage system or facilities, upon 
such terms and conditions as shall be determined to be reasonable 
including, but not limited to, the reimbursement of all costs of such 
construction, or for any other lawful purposes necessary or desirable to 
effect the purposes of this title, including the investment of funds; 
  25. To provide for the discontinuance or disconnection of the supply 
of water or sewerage service, or both, as the case may be, for 
nonpayment of fees, rates, rents or other charges therefor imposed by 
the authority, provided such discontinuance or disconnection of any 
water or sewerage service, or both, as the case may be, shall not be 
carried out except in the manner and upon the notice as is required of a 
waterworks corporation pursuant to subdivisions three-a, three-b and 
three-c of section eighty-nine-b and section one hundred sixteen of the 
public service law; 
  26. To act as a county water agency in accordance with the provisions 
of article five-A of the county law; 
  27. For the purposes of article fifteen-A of the executive law only, 
the authority shall be deemed a state agency as that term is defined in 
such article and its contracts for procurement, design, construction, 
services and materials shall be deemed state contracts within the 
meaning of that term as set forth in such article; and 
  28. To do all things necessary, convenient or desirable to carry out 
its purposes and for all exercise of the powers granted in this title. 
 
  S 1199-eeee*. Advances on behalf of the authority; acquisition of 
property by county for authority. 1. In addition to any powers granted 
to it by law, the county from time to time may appropriate sums of 
money, after approval by the board of supervisors, to or on behalf of 
the authority to defray project costs or any other costs and expenses of 
the authority. Subject to the rights of bondholders, the county at the 
time of the appropriation shall determine if the moneys so appropriated 
shall be subject to repayment by the authority to the county and, in 
such event, the manner and time or times for such repayment. 
  2. The county or any other municipality may give, grant, sell, convey, 
loan, license the use of or lease to the authority any property or 
facility which is useful to the authority in order to carry out its 
powers under this title. Any such transfer of property shall be upon 
such terms and conditions, subject to the rights of the holders of any 
bonds, as the authority and the county or other municipality may agree. 
  3. The county may acquire by purchase or by exercise of the power of 
eminent domain real property in the name of the county for any corporate 
purpose of the authority. 
  4. Notwithstanding the provisions of any other law, general, special 



H:\MINUTES WASA\Governance Committee\2023\A01-003 Public Authorities Law-
title 8-linked.doc 

or local to the contrary, real property acquired by the authority or the 
county from the state may be used for any corporate purpose of the 
authority. 
 
  S 1199-ffff*. Transfer of officers and employees.  1. In accordance 
with the provisions of section seventy of the civil service law, any 
officer or employee of the county, may, at the request of the authority 
and with the consent of the board of supervisors, be transferred to the 
authority and shall be eligible for such transfer and appointment, 
without further examination, to applicable offices, positions and 
employment under the authority. Any such officers or employees so 
transferred to the authority pursuant to this section, who are members 
of or benefit under any existing pension or retirement fund or system, 
shall continue to have all rights, privileges, obligations and status 
with respect to such fund or system as are now prescribed by law, but 
during the period of their employment by the authority, all 
contributions to such funds or systems to be paid by the employer on 
account of such officers or employees shall be paid by the authority. 
  2. A transferred employee shall remain in the same collective 
bargaining unit as was the case prior to his or her transfer; successor 
employees to the positions held by such transferred employees shall, 
consistent with the provisions of article fourteen of the civil service 
law, be included in the same unit as their predecessors. Employees 
serving in positions in newly created titles shall be assigned to the 
same collective bargaining unit as they would have been assigned to such 
unit were such titles created prior to the establishment of the 
authority. Nothing contained in this title shall be construed (a) to 
diminish the rights of employees pursuant to a collective bargaining 
agreement or (b) to affect existing law with respect to an application 
to the public employment relations board seeking a designation by the 
board that certain persons are managerial or confidential. 
 
  S 1199-gggg*. Bonds of the authority. 1. The authority shall have the 
power and is hereby authorized from time to time to issue bonds, notes 
or other obligations to pay the cost of any project or for any other 
corporate purpose, including the establishment of reserves to secure the 
bonds, the payment of principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the 
bonds and the payment of incidental expenses in connection therewith. 
The aggregate principal amount of such bonds, notes or other obligations 
shall not exceed forty-two million dollars ($42,000,000), excluding 
bonds, notes or other obligations issued to refund or otherwise repay 
bonds, notes or other obligations theretofore issued for such purposes 
provided, however, that upon any such refunding or repayment the total 
aggregate principal amount of outstanding bonds, notes or other 
obligations may be greater than forty-two million dollars ($42,000,000) 
only if the present value of the aggregate debt service of the refunding 



H:\MINUTES WASA\Governance Committee\2023\A01-003 Public Authorities Law-
title 8-linked.doc 

or repayment bonds, notes or other obligations to be issued shall not 
exceed the present value of the aggregate debt service of the bonds, 
notes or other obligations so to be refunded or repaid. For purposes 
hereof, the present values of the aggregate debt service of the 
refunding or repayment bonds, notes or other obligations and of the 
aggregate debt service of the bonds, notes or other obligations and of 
the aggregate debt service of the bonds, notes or other obligations so 
refunded or repaid, shall be calculated by utilizing the effective 
interest rate of the refunding or repayment bonds, notes or other 
obligations, which shall be that rate arrived at by doubling the 
semi-annual interest rate (compounded semi-annually) necessary to 
discount the debt service payments on the refunding or repayment bonds, 
notes or other obligations from the payment dates thereof to the date of 
issue of the refunding or repayment bonds, notes or other obligations 
and to the price bid including estimated accrued interest or proceeds 
received by the authority including estimated accrued interest from the 
sale thereof.  The authority shall have the power and is hereby 
authorized to enter into such agreements and perform such acts as may be 
required under any applicable federal legislation to secure a federal 
guarantee of any bonds. 
  2. The authority shall have power from time to time to renew bonds or 
to issue renewal bonds for such purpose, to issue bonds to pay bonds, 
and, whenever it deems refunding expedient, to refund any bond by the 
issuance of new bonds, whether the bonds to be refunded have or have not 
matured, and may issue bonds partly to refund bonds then outstanding and 
partly for any other corporate purpose of the authority. Bonds (other 
than notes or other evidence of indebtedness) issued for refunding 
purposes, which have a final maturity date longer than the maturity of 
the bonds being refunded, shall be approved by a resolution of the board 
of supervisors adopted by a majority vote and approved by the county 
treasurer. Bonds issued for refunding purposes shall be sold and the 
proceeds applied to the purchase, redemption or payment of the bonds or 
notes to be refunded. 
  3. Bonds issued by the authority may be general obligations secured by 
the faith and credit of the authority or may be special obligations 
payable solely out of particular revenues or other moneys as may be 
designated in the proceedings of the authority under which the bonds 
shall be authorized to be issued, subject as to priority only to any 
agreements with the holders of outstanding bonds pledging any particular 
property, revenues or moneys. The authority may also enter into loan 
agreements, lines of credit and other security agreements and obtain for 
or on its behalf letters of credit, insurance, guarantees or other 
credit enhancements to the extent not or hereafter available, in each 
case for securing its bonds or to provided direct payment of any costs 
which the authority is authorized to pay. 
  4. Bonds shall be authorized by resolution of the authority, be in 



H:\MINUTES WASA\Governance Committee\2023\A01-003 Public Authorities Law-
title 8-linked.doc 

such denominations and bear such date or dates and mature at such time 
or times, as such resolution may provide, provided that bonds and 
renewals thereof shall mature within forty years from the date of 
original issuance of any such bonds. 
  Bonds shall be subject to such terms of redemption, bear interest at 
such rate or rates, be payable at such times, be in such form, either 
coupon or registered, carry such registration privileges, be executed in 
such manner, be payable in such medium of payment at such place or 
places, and be subject to such terms and conditions as such resolution 
may provide. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the bonds of 
the authority issued pursuant to this section shall be sold to the 
bidder offering the lowest true interest cost, taking into consideration 
any premium or discount not less than four nor more than fifteen days, 
Sundays excepted, after a notice of such sale has been published at 
least once in a newspaper of general circulation in the area served by 
the authority, which shall state the terms of the sale.  The terms of 
the sale may not change unless notice of such change is published in 
such newspaper at least one day prior to the date of the sale as set 
forth in the original notice of sale. Advertisements shall contain a 
provision to the effect that the authority, in its discretion, may 
reject any or all bids made in pursuance of such advertisements, and in 
the event of such rejection, the authority is authorized to negotiate a 
private or public sale or readvertise for bids in the form and manner 
above described as many times as, in its judgment, may be necessary to 
effect satisfactory sale. 
  Notwithstanding the provisions of the preceding paragraph, whenever in 
the judgment of the authority the interests of the authority will be 
served thereby, the members of the authority, on the written 
recommendation of the chairperson, may authorize the sale of such bonds 
at private or public sale on a negotiated basis or on either a 
competitive or negotiated basis. The authority shall set guidelines 
governing the terms and conditions of any such private or public sales. 
The private or public bond sale guidelines set by the authority shall 
include, but not be limited to, a requirement that where the interests 
of the authority will be served by a private or public sale of bonds, 
the authority shall select underwriters for each private or public bond 
sale conducted pursuant to a request for proposal process and 
consideration of proposals from qualified underwriters taking into 
account, among other things, qualifications of underwriters as to 
experience, their ability to structure and sell authority bond issues, 
anticipated costs to the authority, the prior experience of the 
authority with the firm, if any, the capitalization of such firms, 
participation of qualified minority and women-owned business enterprise 
firms in such private or public sales of bonds of the authority and the 
experience and ability of firms under consideration to work with 
minority and women-owned business enterprises so as to promote and 



H:\MINUTES WASA\Governance Committee\2023\A01-003 Public Authorities Law-
title 8-linked.doc 

assist participation by such enterprises. 
  The authority shall have the power from time to time to amend such 
private bond sale guidelines in accordance with the provisions of this 
subdivision. 
  No private or public bond sale on a negotiated basis shall be 
conducted by the authority without prior approval of the state 
comptroller. The authority shall annually prepare and approve a bond 
sale report which shall include the private or public bond sale 
guidelines as specified in this subdivision, amendments to such 
guidelines since the last private or public bond sale report, an 
explanation of the bond sale guidelines and amendments, and the results 
of any sale of bonds conducted during the fiscal year. Such bond sale 
report may be a part of any other annual report that the authority is 
required to make. 
  The authority shall annually submit its bond sale report to the state 
comptroller and copies thereof to the senate finance committee and the 
assembly ways and means committee. 
  The authority shall make available to the public copies of its bond 
sale report upon reasonable request thereof. 
  Nothing contained in this subdivision shall be deemed to alter, affect 
the validity of, modify the terms of or impair any contract or agreement 
made or entered into in violation of, or without compliance with, the 
provisions of this subdivision. 
  5. Any resolution or resolutions authorizing bonds or any issue of 
bonds by the authority may contain provisions which may be part of the 
contract with the holders of the bonds thereby authorized as to: 
  (a) pledging all or part of its revenues, together with any other 
moneys, or property of the authority, to secure the payment of the bonds 
or any costs of issuance thereof, including but not limited to any 
contracts, earnings or proceeds of any grant to the authority received 
from any private or public source, subject to such agreements with 
bondholders as may then exist; 
  (b) the rates, rentals, fees and other charges to be fixed and 
collected by the authority and the amounts to be raised in each year 
thereby, and the use and disposition of revenues; 
  (c) the setting aside of reserves and the creation of sinking funds 
and the regulation and disposition thereof; 
  (d) limitations on the purpose to which the proceeds from the sale of 
bonds may be applied; 
  (e) limitations on the right of the authority to restrict and regulate 
the use of any water project or part thereof in connection with which 
bonds are issued; 
  (f) limitations on the issuance of additional bonds, the terms upon 
which additional bonds may be issued and secured and the refunding of 
outstanding or other bonds; 
  (g) the procedure, if any, by which the terms of any contract with 



H:\MINUTES WASA\Governance Committee\2023\A01-003 Public Authorities Law-
title 8-linked.doc 

bondholders may be amended or abrogated, including the proportion of 
bondholders which must consent thereto, and the manner in which such 
consent may be given; 
  (h) the creation of special funds into which any revenues or other 
moneys may be deposited; 
  (i) the terms and provisions of any trust, deed, mortgage or indenture 
securing the bonds under which the bonds may be issued; 
  (j) vesting in a trustee or trustees such properties, rights, powers 
and duties in trust as the authority may determine, which may include 
any or all of the rights, powers and duties of the trustee appointed by 
the bondholders pursuant to section eleven hundred ninety-nine-hhhh of 
this title or limiting the rights, duties and powers of such trustee; 
  (k) defining the acts or omissions to act which may constitute a 
default in the obligations and duties of the authority to the 
bondholders and providing for the rights and remedies of the bondholders 
in the event of such default, including as a matter of right the 
appointment of a receiver, provided, however, that such rights and 
remedies shall not be inconsistent with the general laws of the state 
and other provisions of this title; 
  (l) limitations on the power of the authority to sell or otherwise 
dispose of any water facility or any part thereof or other property; 
  (m) limitations on the amount of revenues and other moneys to be 
expended for operating, administrative or other expenses of the 
authority; 
  (n) the payment of the proceeds of bonds, revenues and other moneys to 
a trustee or other depository, and for the method of disbursement 
thereof with such safeguards and restrictions as the authority may 
determine; and 
  (o) any other matters of like or different character which in any way 
affect the security or protection of the bonds or the rights and 
remedies of bondholders. 
  6. In addition to the powers herein conferred upon the authority to 
secure its bonds, the authority shall have power in connection with the 
issuance of bonds to adopt resolutions and enter into trust indentures, 
agreements, or other instruments as the authority may deem necessary, 
convenient or desirable concerning the use or disposition of its 
revenues or other moneys or property, including the mortgaging of any 
property and the entrusting, pledging or creation of any other security 
interest in any such revenues, moneys, or property and the doing of any 
act, including refraining from doing any act, which the authority would 
have the right to do in the absence of such agreements. The authority 
shall have power to enter into amendments of any such agreements within 
the powers granted to the authority by this title and to perform such 
agreements. The provisions of any such agreements may be made a part of 
the contract with the holders of bonds of the authority. 
  7. Any provision of the uniform commercial code to the contrary 



H:\MINUTES WASA\Governance Committee\2023\A01-003 Public Authorities Law-
title 8-linked.doc 

notwithstanding, any pledge of or other security interest in revenues, 
moneys, accounts, contract rights, general intangibles or other personal 
property made or created by the authority shall be valid, binding and 
perfected from the time when such pledge is made or other security 
interest attaches without any physical delivery of the collateral or 
further act, and the lien of any such pledge or other security interest 
shall be valid, binding and perfected against all parties having claims 
of any kind in tort, contract or otherwise against the authority 
irrespective of whether or not such parties have notice thereof. No 
instrument by which such a pledge or security interest is created nor 
any financing statement need be recorded or filed. 
  8. Whether or not the bonds of the authority are of such form and 
character as to be negotiable instruments under the terms of the uniform 
commercial code, the bonds are hereby made negotiable instruments within 
the meaning of and for all purposes of the uniform commercial code, 
subject only to the provisions of the bonds for registration. 
  9. Neither the members nor the officers of the authority nor any 
person executing bonds shall be liable personally thereon or be subject 
to any personal liability or accountability by reason of the issuance 
thereof. 
  10. The authority, subject to such agreements with bondholders as then 
may exist, shall have power out of any moneys available therefor to 
purchase bonds of the authority in lieu of redemption, at a price not 
exceeding: 
  (a) if the bonds are then redeemable, the redemption price then 
applicable, plus accrued interest to the next interest payment date; 
  (b) if the bonds are not then redeemable, the redemption price then 
applicable on the first date after such purchase upon which the bonds 
become subject to redemption plus accrued interest to the next interest 
payment date. Bonds so purchased shall thereupon be cancelled. 11. The 
authority shall have power and is hereby authorized to issue negotiable 
bond anticipation notes in conformity with applicable provisions of the 
uniform commercial code and may renew the same from time to time but the 
maximum maturity of any such note, including renewals thereof, shall not 
exceed five years from the date of issue of such original note. 
 
  S 1199-hhhh*. Remedies of bondholders. Subject to any resolution or 
resolutions adopted pursuant to paragraph (j) of subdivision five of 
section eleven hundred ninety-nine-gggg of this title: 
  1. In the event that the authority shall default in the payment of 
principal of or interest on any issue of the bonds after the same shall 
become due whether at maturity or upon call for redemption, and such 
default shall continue for a period of thirty days, or in the event that 
the authority shall fail or refuse to comply with the provisions of this 
title, or shall default in any agreement made with the holders of any 
issue of the bonds, the holders of twenty-five per centum in aggregate 



H:\MINUTES WASA\Governance Committee\2023\A01-003 Public Authorities Law-
title 8-linked.doc 

principal amount of the bonds of such issue then outstanding, by 
instrument or instruments filed in the office of the clerk of the county 
and proved or acknowledged in the same manner as a deed to be recorded, 
may appoint a trustee to represent the holders of such bonds for the 
purposes herein provided. 
  2. Such trustee may, and upon written request of the holders of 
twenty-five per centum in principal amount of such bonds outstanding 
shall, in its own name: 
  (a) by action or proceeding in accordance with the civil practice law 
and rules, enforce all rights of the bondholders including the right to 
require the authority to collect rents, rates, fees, and charges 
adequate to carry out any agreement as to, or pledge of, such rents, 
rates and charges, and to require the authority to carry out any other 
agreements with the holders of such bonds and to perform its duties 
under this title; 
  (b) bring an action or proceeding upon such bonds; 
  (c) by action or proceeding, require the authority to account as if it 
were the trustee of an express trust for the holders of such bonds; 
  (d) by action or proceeding, enjoin any acts or things which may be 
unlawful or in violation of the rights of the holders of such bonds; and 
  (e) declare all such bonds due and payable, and if all defaults shall 
be made good, then with the consent of the holders of twenty-five per 
centum of the principal amount of such bonds then outstanding, annul 
such declaration and its consequences. 
  3. Such trustee shall in addition to the foregoing have and possess 
all of the powers necessary or appropriate for the exercise of any 
functions specifically set forth herein or incidental to the general 
representation of bondholders in the enforcement and protection of their 
rights. 
  4. The state supreme court shall have jurisdiction of any action or 
proceeding by the trustee on behalf of such bondholders. Venue of any 
such action or proceeding shall be laid in the county. 
  5. Any such trustee, whether or not the issue of bonds represented by 
such trustee has been declared due and payable, shall be entitled as of 
right to the appointment of a receiver of any part or parts of the 
properties the revenues of which are pledged for the security of the 
bonds of such issue, and, subject to any pledge or agreement with 
holders of such bonds, such receiver may enter and take possession of 
such part or parts of the properties and shall take possession of all 
moneys and other property derived from such part or parts of such 
properties and proceed with any construction thereon or the acquisition 
of any property, real or personal, in connection therewith which the 
authority is under obligation to do, and to operate, maintain and 
reconstruct such part or parts of the properties and collect and receive 
all revenues there after arising therefrom subject to any pledge thereof 
or agreement with bondholders relating thereto and perform the public 



H:\MINUTES WASA\Governance Committee\2023\A01-003 Public Authorities Law-
title 8-linked.doc 

duties and carry out the agreements and obligations of the authority 
under the direction of the court. In any suit, action or proceeding by 
the trustee, the fees, counsel fees and expenses of the trustee and of 
the receiver, if any, shall constitute taxable disbursements and all 
costs and disbursements allowed by the court shall be a first charge on 
any revenues derived from the properties. 
  6. Before declaring the principal of bonds due and payable, the 
trustee shall first give thirty days` notice in writing to the 
authority. 
 
  S 1199-iiii*. State and municipalities not liable on authority bonds. 
Neither the state nor any municipality shall be liable on the bonds of 
the authority and such bonds shall not be a debt of the state or of any 
municipality, and such bonds shall contain on the face thereof a 
statement to such effect. 
 
  S 1199-jjjj*. Moneys of the authority. All monies of the authority 
from whatever source derived shall be paid to the treasurer of the 
authority and shall be deposited forthwith in a bank or banks designated 
by the authority. The monies in such accounts shall be paid out on check 
of the treasurer upon requisition by such person or persons as the 
authority may authorize to make such requisitions. All deposits of such 
monies shall be secured by obligations of the United States or of the 
state or of any municipality of a market value equal at all times to the 
amount on deposit and all banks and trust companies are authorized to 
give such security for such deposits. To the extent practicable, 
consistent with the cash requirements of the authority, all such monies 
shall be deposited in interest bearing accounts. The authority shall 
have power, notwithstanding the provisions of this section, to contract 
with the holders of any bonds as to the custody, collection, security, 
investment and payment of any monies of the authority or any monies held 
in trust or otherwise for the payment of bonds or any way to secure 
bonds, and carry out any such contract notwithstanding that such 
contract may be inconsistent with the provisions of this section. Monies 
held in trust or otherwise for the payment of bonds or in any way to 
secure bonds and deposits of such monies may be secured in the same 
manner as monies of the authority and all banks and trust companies are 
authorized to give such security for such deposits. Any monies of the 
authority not required for immediate use or disbursement may, at the 
discretion of the authority, be invested in those obligations specified 
pursuant to the provision of section ninety-eight-a of the state finance 
law. Subject to the provisions of any contract with bond holders and 
with the approval of the state comptroller, the authority shall 
prescribe a system of accounts. 
 
  S 1199-kkkk*. Bonds legal investments for fiduciaries. The bonds of 



H:\MINUTES WASA\Governance Committee\2023\A01-003 Public Authorities Law-
title 8-linked.doc 

the authority are hereby made securities in which all public officials 
and bodies of the state and all municipalities, all insurance companies 
and associations and other persons carrying on an insurance business, 
all banks, bankers, trust companies, savings banks and savings 
associations, including savings and loan associations, investment 
companies and other persons carrying on a banking business, and 
administrators, guardians, executors, trustees and other fiduciaries and 
all other persons whatsoever, who are now or may hereafter be authorized 
to invest in bonds or other obligations of the state, may properly and 
legally invest funds including capital in their control or belonging to 
them.  The bonds are also hereby made securities which may be deposited 
with and may be received by all public officers and bodies of the state 
all municipalities for any purposes for which the deposit of bonds or 
other obligations of the state is now or hereafter may be authorized. 
 
  S 1199-llll*. Agreement with the state. The state does hereby pledge 
to and agree with the holders of any bonds issued by the authority 
pursuant to this title that the state will not alter or limit the rights 
hereby vested in the authority to purchase, construct, maintain, 
operate, repair, improve, increase, enlarge, extend, reconstruct, 
renovate, rehabilitate or dispose of any water or sewer project, or any 
part or parts thereof, for which bonds of the authority shall have been 
issued, to establish and collect rates, rents, fees and other charges 
referred to in this title and to fulfill the terms of any agreement made 
with or for the benefit of the holders of the bonds or with any public 
corporation or person with reference to such project or part thereof, or 
in any way impair the rights and remedies of the bondholders, until the 
bonds, together with the interest thereon, including interest on any 
unpaid installments of interest, and all costs and expenses in 
connection with any action or proceeding by or on behalf of such 
holders, are fully met and discharged. The authority is authorized to 
include this pledge and agreement of the state in any agreement with 
bondholders. 
 
  S 1199-mmmm*. Exemption from taxes, assessments and certain fees; 
payments in lieu of taxes. 1. It is hereby determined that the creation 
of the authority and the carrying out of its corporate purposes is in 
all respects for the benefit of the people of the county and the state 
and is a public purpose, and the authority shall be regarded as 
performing a governmental function in the exercise of the powers 
conferred upon it by this title and shall not be required to pay any 
taxes, special ad valorem levies or special assessments upon any real 
property owned by it or any filing, recording or transfer fees or taxes 
in relation to instruments filed, recorded or transferred by it or on 
its behalf provided, however, that any real property owned or acquired 
by the authority outside of the district shall be exempt from real 



H:\MINUTES WASA\Governance Committee\2023\A01-003 Public Authorities Law-
title 8-linked.doc 

property taxes, ad valorem levies or special assessments only pursuant 
to and to the extent provided by an agreement with the governing body of 
the municipality in which such real property is located. 
  2. The authority may pay, or may enter into agreements with any 
municipality not located within the county to pay, a sum or sums 
annually or otherwise or to provide other considerations to such 
municipality with respect to real property owned by the authority 
located within such municipality and constituting a part of its water 
system. 
  3. Any bonds issued pursuant to this title together with the income 
therefrom shall be exempt from taxation except for transfer and estate 
taxes. The revenues, moneys and all other property and all activities of 
the authority shall be exempt from all taxes and governmental fees or 
charges, whether imposed by the state or any municipality, including 
without limitation real estate taxes, franchise taxes, sales taxes or 
other excise taxes. 
  4. The state hereby covenants with the purchasers and with all 
subsequent holders and transferees of bonds issued by the authority 
pursuant to this title, in consideration of the acceptance of and 
payment for the bonds, that the bonds of the authority issued pursuant 
to this title and the income therefrom shall be exempt from taxation as 
aforestated in subdivision three of this section, and that all revenues, 
moneys, and other property pledged to secure the payment of such bonds 
shall at all times be free from taxation as aforestated in such 
subdivision. 
 
  S 1199-nnnn*. Actions against the authority. 1. Except in an action 
for wrongful death, no action or special proceeding shall be prosecuted 
or maintained against the authority for personal injury or damage to 
real or personal property alleged to have been sustained by reason of 
the negligence or wrongful act of the authority or any member, officer, 
agent or employee thereof, unless: 
  (a) a notice of claim shall have been made and served upon the 
authority within the time limit prescribed by and in compliance with 
section fifty-e of the general municipal law; 
  (b) it shall appear by and as an allegation in the complaint or moving 
papers that at least thirty days have elapsed since the service of such 
notice and that adjustment or payment thereof has been neglected or 
refused; and 
  (c) the action or special proceeding shall be commenced within one 
year and ninety days after the happening of the event upon which the 
claim is based. 
  An action for wrongful death against the authority shall be commenced 
in accordance with the notice of claim and time limitation provisions of 
title eleven of article nine of this chapter. 
  2. Wherever a notice of claim is served upon the authority, it shall 



H:\MINUTES WASA\Governance Committee\2023\A01-003 Public Authorities Law-
title 8-linked.doc 

have the right to demand an examination of the claimant relative to the 
occurrence and extent of the injuries or damages for which claim is 
made, in accordance with the provisions of section fifty-h of the 
general municipal law. 
  3. The authority may require any person presenting for settlement an 
account or claim for any cause whatever against the authority to be 
sworn before a member, counsel, or an attorney, officer or employee 
thereof designated for such purpose, concerning such account or claim 
and when so sworn, to answer orally as to any facts relative to such 
account or claim. The authority shall have power to settle or adjust all 
claims in favor of or against the authority. 
  4. Any action or proceeding to which the authority or the people of 
the state may be parties, in which any question arises as to the 
validity of this title, shall be preferred over all other civil causes 
of action or cases, except election causes of action or cases, in all 
courts of the state and shall be heard and determined in preference to 
all other civil business pending therein except election causes, 
irrespective of position on the calendar. The same preference shall be 
granted upon application of the authority or its counsel in any action 
or proceeding questioning the validity of this title in which the 
authority may be allowed to intervene. The venue of any such action or 
proceeding shall be laid in the supreme court of the county. 
  5. The rate of interest to be paid by the authority upon any judgment 
for which it is liable, other than a judgment against the authority on 
bonds, shall be the rate prescribed by section five thousand four of the 
civil practice law and rules. Interest on payments of principal or 
interest on any bonds in default shall accrue at the rate or rates set 
forth in such bonds from the due date thereof until paid or otherwise 
satisfied. 
 
  S 1199-pppp*. Construction and purchase contracts. The authority shall 
let contracts for construction or purchase of supplies, materials, or 
equipment pursuant to sections one hundred one and one hundred three of 
the general municipal law and shall be let in accordance with the 
provisions of state law pertaining to prevailing wages, labor standards, 
and working hours. Nothing in this section shall be construed to limit 
the power of the authority to do any construction directly by the 
officers, agents and employees of the authority. 
 
  S 1199-qqqq*. Code of ethics. 1. Definition. As used in this section 
the term "authority employee" shall mean any member, officer or employee 
of the authority. 
  2. Rule with respect to conflicts of interest. No authority employee 
should have any interest, financial or otherwise, direct or indirect, or 
engage in any business or transaction or professional activity or incur 
any obligation of any nature, which is in substantial conflict with the 



H:\MINUTES WASA\Governance Committee\2023\A01-003 Public Authorities Law-
title 8-linked.doc 

proper discharge of his or her duties in the public interest. 
  3. Standards. (a) No authority employee should accept other employment 
which will impair his or her independence of judgment in the exercise of 
his or her official duties. 
  (b) No authority employee should accept employment or engage in any 
business or professional activity which will require the employee to 
disclose confidential information which he or she has gained by reason 
of his or her official position or authority. 
  (c) No authority employee should disclose confidential information 
acquired by the employee in the course of his or her official duties nor 
use such information to further his or her personal interests. 
  (d) No authority employee should use or attempt to use his or her 
official position to secure unwarranted privileges or exemptions for 
himself or herself or others. 
  (e) No authority employee should engage in any transaction as 
representative or agent of the authority with any business entity in 
which he or she has a direct or indirect financial interest that might 
reasonably tend to conflict with the proper discharge of his or her 
official duties. 
  (f) An authority employee should not by his or her conduct give 
reasonable basis for the impression that any person can improperly 
influence such employee or unduly enjoy his or her favor in the 
performance of his or her official duties, or that he or she is affected 
by the kinship, rank, position or influence of any party or person. 
  (g) An authority employee should abstain from making personal 
investments in enterprises which he or she has reason to believe may be 
directly involved in decisions to be made by the employee or which will 
otherwise create substantial conflict between his or her duty in the 
public interest and his or her private interest. 
  (h) An authority employee should endeavor to pursue a course of 
conduct which will not raise suspicion among the public that he or she 
is likely to be engaged in acts that are in violation of his or her 
trust. 
  (i) No authority employee employed on a full-time basis nor any firm 
or association of which such an employee is a member nor corporation a 
substantial portion of the stock of which is owned or controlled 
directly or indirectly by such employee, should sell goods or services 
to any person, firm, corporation or association which is licensed or 
whose rates are fixed by the authority in which such employee services 
or is employed. 
  (j) If any authority employee shall have a financial interest, direct 
or indirect, having a value of ten thousand dollars or more in any 
activity which is subject to the jurisdiction of a regulatory agency, he 
or she should file with the secretary of state a written statement that 
he or she has such a financial interest in such activity which statement 
shall be open to public inspection. 



H:\MINUTES WASA\Governance Committee\2023\A01-003 Public Authorities Law-
title 8-linked.doc 

  4. Violations. In addition to any penalty contained in any other 
provision of law any such authority employee who shall knowingly and 
intentionally violate any of the provisions of this section may be 
fined, suspended or removed from office or employment. 
 
  S 1199-rrrr*. Equal employment opportunity. The authority shall ensure 
that all employees or applicants for employment are afforded equal 
employment opportunity without discrimination. 
 
  S 1199-ssss*. Audit and annual report. In conformity with the 
provisions of section five of article ten of the constitution, the 
accounts of the authority shall be subject to the supervision of the 
state comptroller and an annual audit shall be performed by an 
independent certified accountant. The authority shall annually submit to 
the board of supervisors, county treasurer, governor and the state 
comptroller and to the chairperson of the senate finance committee and 
the chairperson of the assembly ways and means committee a detailed 
report pursuant to the provisions of section two thousand eight hundred 
of this chapter, and a copy of such report shall be filed with the clerk 
of the board of supervisors and the county treasurer. 
 
  S 1199-tttt*. Environmental applications, proceedings, approvals and 
permits. Any application in relation to the purposes of or contemplated 
by this title heretofore filed, or any proceeding heretofore commenced, 
by the county or any agency thereof with the state department of 
environmental conservation, the department of transportation or any 
other state agency or instrumentality or with the United States 
environmental protection agency or any other federal agency or 
instrumentality shall inure to and for the benefit of the authority to 
the same extent and in the same manner as if the authority had been a 
party to such application or proceeding from its inception, and the 
authority shall be deemed a party thereto, to the extent not prohibited 
by any federal law. Any license, approval, permit or decision heretofore 
or hereafter issued or granted pursuant to or as a result of any such 
application or proceeding shall inure to the benefit of and be binding 
upon the authority and shall be assigned and transferred by the county 
or any agency thereof to the authority, unless such assignment and 
transfer is prohibited by federal law. 
 
  S 1199-uuuu*. Limited liability. Neither the members of the authority, 
nor any municipality, officer or employee acting in its behalf, while 
acting within the scope of their authority, shall be subject to any 
personal liability resulting from the construction, maintenance or 
operation of any of the properties of the authority or from carrying out 
any of the powers expressly given in this title; provided, however, that 
this section shall not be held to apply to any independent contractor. 



H:\MINUTES WASA\Governance Committee\2023\A01-003 Public Authorities Law-
title 8-linked.doc 

 
  S 1199-vvvv*. Governmental capacity of the authority and 
municipalities.  The authority, the county and the other municipalities, 
in carrying out their respective powers and duties under this title, 
shall be deemed to be acting in a governmental capacity and in the 
performance of an essential governmental function. 
 
  S 1199-wwww*. Separability clause. If any section, clause or provision 
in this title shall be held by a competent court to be unconstitutional 
or ineffective in whole or in part, to the extent that it is not 
unconstitutional or ineffective, it shall be valid and effective, and no 
other section, clause or provision shall on account thereof be deemed 
invalid or ineffective. 
 
  S 1199-xxxx*. Effect of inconsistent provisions. In so far as the 
provisions of this title are inconsistent with the provisions of any 
other act, general or special, or of any charter, local law, ordinance 
or resolution of any municipality, the provisions of this title shall be 
controlling. Nothing contained in this section shall be held to 
supplement or otherwise expand the powers or duties of the authority 
otherwise set forth in this title. Except as specifically provided for 
in this title, in the performance of any of its functions, powers and 
duties, the authority shall be subject to all applicable general or 
special laws of the state, the county charter, and any local law, 
ordinance or resolution of the county. 
 
* §  1199-yyyy. Charges by the authority; method of collection. 1. The 
  authority may fix and collect, on any equitable basis, rates,  fees  and 
  other  charges  for  the  use of its water or sewer facilities or of the 
  services or commodities provided by the authority. Such rates,  rentals, 
  fees  and  other  charges  may be fixed and collected from any person or 
  corporation to  which  such  facilities,  services  or  commodities  are 
  provided or made available from the authority. Such rates, rentals, fees 
  and  other  charges may be the same or different for each classification 
  of user or service recipient and may, by way  of  example,  reflect  the 
  source  and  composition of the sewage or location of services or system 
  costs and expenses. The authority shall not establish, fix or revise any 
  classification or user or rate, rental or fee or other charge unless and 
  until the authority has  held  a  public  hearing  at  which  interested 
  persons  shall  have  an  opportunity  to  be heard concerning the same. 
  Notice of any such public hearing shall be published at least  ten  days 
  before  the  date  set  therefore,  in at least one newspaper of general 
  circulation in the boundaries of the authority. Such  notice  shall  set 
  forth the date, time and place of such hearing and shall include a brief 
  description  of matters to be considered at such meeting. A copy of such 
  notice shall be available for inspection by  the  public.  At  any  such 
  hearing,  any  interested  persons shall have an opportunity to be heard 
  concerning  the  matters  under  consideration.  Any  decision  by   the 
  authority  at  such  public  hearing  or  relating  to the matters under 
  consideration at such hearing shall be in writing and made available  in 
  the  office  of  the  authority  for  public  inspection  during regular 



H:\MINUTES WASA\Governance Committee\2023\A01-003 Public Authorities Law-
title 8-linked.doc 

  business hours. 
    2. All rates, fees and other charges for the use of the facilities  or 
  services  or commodities provided or made available by the authority and 
  billed directly by the  authority  to  the  user  or  service  recipient 
  pursuant  to  a classification of users or service recipients adopted by 
  the authority as herein provided shall be lien upon  the  real  property 
  upon  which,  or  in connection with which, services are provided or are 
  made available, as and from the first date fixed for a payment  of  such 
  rates,  rentals,  fees  and  other  charges.  Any  such  lien shall take 
  precedent over  all  other  liens,  or  encumbrances,  except  taxes  or 
  assessments.  The  treasurer of the authority shall prepare and transmit 
  to the board of supervisors of the county, on or before the first day of 
  November in each year, a list of those properties using such  facilities 
  or  for  which  such  services  or  commodities  were  provided  or made 
  available and from which the payment of rates, rentals, fees  and  other 
  charges  are  in  arrears  for a period of thirty days or more after the 
  last day fixed for payment  of  such  rates,  rentals,  fees  and  other 
  charges  without  penalty. The list shall contain a brief description of 
  such properties, the names of the persons or corporations liable to  pay 
  for the same, and the amount chargeable to each, including penalties and 
  interest, as applicable, computed to December thirty-first of that year. 
  The  board  of  supervisors  shall levy such sums against the properties 
  liable and shall state the amount thereof in a separate  column  in  the 
  annual  tax  rolls  of  the  county  under the heading "water charge" or 
  "sewer  disposal  charge,"  as  applicable.  Such   amounts,   excluding 
  penalties  and  interest  when  collected  by  the  county  collector or 
  receiver of taxes, shall be paid over to the treasurer of the authority. 
  Penalties and interest shall be retained by the  collector  which  shall 
  become  a part of the general funds of the county. All of the provisions 
  of the tax law of the state  governing  enforcement  and  collection  of 
  unpaid  taxes  or  assessments for special improvements not inconsistent 
  herewith shall apply to the collection of such  unpaid  rates,  rentals, 
  fees and other charges. 



H:\MINUTES WASA\Governance Committee\2023\A01-003 Public Authorities Law-
title 8-linked.doc 

 



H:\MINUTES WASA\Governance Committee\2023\A01-003 Public Authorities Law-
title 8-linked.doc 

    * NB There are 2 § 1199-yyyy's 



H:\MINUTES WASA\Governance Committee\2023\A01-003 Public Authorities Law-
title 8-linked.doc 

 
 
 



PBA Article 5 

PBA - Public Authorities  
Title 8-G* - LIVINGSTON COUNTY WATER AND SEWER AUTHORITY 

1199-AAAA*2 - Definitions. 

1199-BBBB*2 - Livingston county water and sewer authority district. 

1199-CCCC*2 - Livingston county water and sewer authority. 

1199-DDDD*2 - Powers of the authority. 

1199-EEEE*2 - Advances on behalf of the authority; acquisition of property by county for 

authority. 

1199-FFFF*2 - Transfer of officers and employees. 

1199-GGGG*2 - Bonds of the authority. 

1199-HHHH*2 - Remedies of bondholders. 

1199-IIII*2 - State and municipalities not liable on authority bonds. 

1199-JJJJ*2 - Moneys of the authority. 

1199-KKKK*2 - Bonds legal investments for fiduciaries. 

1199-LLLL*2 - Agreement with the state. 

1199-MMMM*2 - Exemption from taxes, assessments and certain fees; payments in lieu of 

taxes. 

1199-NNNN*2 - Actions against the authority. 

1199-PPPP - Construction and purchase contracts. 

1199-QQQQ*2 - Code of ethics. 

1199-RRRR*2 - Equal employment opportunity. 

1199-SSSS*2 - Audit and annual report. 

1199-TTTT*2 - Environmental applications, proceedings, approvals and permits. 

1199-UUUU*2 - Limited liability. 

1199-VVVV*2 - Governmental capacity of the authority and municipalities. 

1199-WWWW*2 - Separability clause. 

1199-XXXX*2 - Effect of inconsistent provisions. 

1199-YYYY*2 - Charges by the authority; method of collection. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
    * §  1199-aaaa.  Definitions.  As  used  or referred to in this title, 

  unless a different meaning clearly appears from the context: 

    1. "Authority" shall mean  the  corporation  created  by  section  one 

  thousand one hundred ninety-nine-cccc of this title. 

    2.  "Board"  shall  mean the members of the authority constituting and 

  acting as the governing board of the authority. 

    3. "Board of supervisors" shall  mean  the  board  of  supervisors  of 

  Livingston county. 

    4.  "Bonds"  shall  mean  the  bonds,  notes  or  other  evidences  of 

  indebtedness issued by the authority pursuant to  this  title,  and  the 

  provisions  of  this title relating to bonds and bondholders shall apply 

  with equal force and effect  to  notes  and  noteholders,  respectively, 

  unless the context otherwise clearly requires. 

    5.  "Civil service commission" shall mean the personnel officer of the 

  county of Livingston or any other person or entity acting as  the  civil 

  service commission of the county of Livingston. 

    6. "Comptroller" shall mean the comptroller of the state of New York. 

    7.  "Construction"  shall mean the negotiation, acquisition, erection, 

  building,  alteration,  improvement,  testing,  increase,   enlargement, 

  extension, reconstruction, interconnection, renovation or rehabilitation 

  of a water, sewerage or water and sewerage facility, as the case may be; 

  the   inspection   and   supervision   thereof;   and  the  engineering, 

  architectural, legal,  appraisal,  fiscal,  economic  and  environmental 

  investigations,  services  and studies, surveys, designs, plans, working 

  drawings, specifications, procedures and other  actions  preliminary  or 

  incidental thereto. 

    8.  "Costs",  as  applied  to  any  project, shall include the cost of 

  construction, the cost of the acquisition  of  all  property,  including 

  both  real,  personal  and  mixed,  the cost of demolishing, removing or 

  relocating any buildings or structures on lands so  acquired,  including 

  the cost of acquiring any land to which such buildings or structures may 

  be  moved  or relocated, the cost of all systems, facilities, machinery, 

  apparatus and equipment, financing charges, interest  prior  to,  during 

  and  after  construction  to  the  extent  not paid or provided for from 

  revenues or other sources, the cost  of  engineering  and  architectural 

  surveys,  plans  and  specifications,  the  cost of consultant and legal 

  services, the cost of lease guarantee or bond insurance or other  credit 

  enhancement associated with bonds of the authority (including notes) and 

  the  cost  of other expenses necessary or incidental to the construction 

  of such project and the financing of the construction thereof, including 

  the amount authorized in the resolution of the authority  providing  for 

  the  issuance of bonds to be paid into any reserve or other special fund 

  from the proceeds of such bonds and the financing of the placing of  any 

  project  in operation, including the reimbursement to the county, or any 

  municipality, state agency, the state, the United states government,  or 

  any  other  person  for expenditures made by them that would be costs of 

  the project hereunder. 

    9. "County" shall mean the county of Livingston. 

    10. "Distribution system" shall mean the water facility or  facilities 

  employed  to  deliver water from a transmission facility, or where there 

  is no transmission facility, from a supply  facility,  to  the  ultimate 

  consumers of water. 

    11.  "District"  shall  mean  the  Livingston  county  water and sewer 

  authority district created by section eleven hundred ninety-nine-bbbb of 

  this title. 



    12. "Governing body" shall mean: 

    (a) In the case of  a  city,  county,  town  or  village  or  district 

  corporation  the  finance  board  as  such  term is defined in the local 

  finance law; 

    (b) In the case of a public benefit corporation, the members thereof. 

    13. "Members" shall mean the members of the board. 

    14.  "Municipality"  shall  mean  any  county,  city,  town,  village, 

  improvement district under the  county  or  town  law,  any  other  such 

  instrumentality,  including  any  agency  or  public  corporation of the 

  state, or any of the foregoing or any combination thereof. 

    15. "Person" shall mean any natural person, partnership,  association, 

  joint  venture  or  corporation,  exclusive  of  a public corporation as 

  defined pursuant to article two-A of the general construction law. 

    16. "Real property" shall mean lands, structures,  franchises,  rights 

  and  interests  in land, waters, lands underwater, groundwater, riparian 

  rights and air rights and any and all things and rights included  within 

  said term "real property" and includes not only fee simple absolute, but 

  also  any  and  all  lesser  interests  including,  but  not limited to, 

  easements,  rights-of-way,  uses,  leases,  licenses   and   all   other 

  incorporeal  hereditaments and every estate, interest or right, legal or 

  equitable, including terms  for  years  and  liens  thereon  by  way  of 

  judgments, mortgages or otherwise. 

    17.  "State  sanitary code" shall mean regulations adopted pursuant to 

  section two hundred twenty-five of the public health law. 

    18. "Sewage" means the  water-carried  human  or  animal  wastes  from 

  residences,   buildings,  industrial  establishments  or  other  places, 

  together with such groundwater infiltration and surface water as may  be 

  present.  The  admixture  with  sewage of industrial or other waste also 

  shall be considered "sewage" within the meaning of this title. 

    19. "Sewerage facility" or "sewerage  facilities"  means  any  plants, 

  structures  and other real and personal property acquired, rehabilitated 

  or constructed or planned for  the  purpose  of  collecting,  conveying, 

  pumping,  treating,  neutralizing,  storing  and  disposing  of  sewage, 

  including but not limited  to  main,  trunk,  intercepting,  connecting, 

  lateral,  outlet  or other sewers, outfalls, pumping stations, treatment 

  and disposal plants, ground water recharge basins, back-flow  prevention 

  devices,   sludge  dewatering  or  disposal  equipment  and  facilities, 

  clarifiers, filters, phosphorus  removal  equipment  and  other  plants, 

  works,  structures,  equipment,  vehicles, conveyances, contract rights, 

  franchises, approaches, connections, permits, real or personal  property 

  or  rights  therein  and  appurtenances  thereto necessary or useful and 

  convenient  for  the   collection,   conveyance,   pumping,   treatment, 

  neutralizing, storing and disposing of sewage. 

    20. "State" shall mean the state of New York. 

    21.  "State  agency"  shall  mean  any  state  office,  public benefit 

  corporation, department, board, commission, bureau or division, or other 

  agency or instrumentality of the state. 

    22. "Supply facility" shall mean a water  facility  employed  to  make 

  groundwater  or surface water available for delivery into a transmission 

  facility or distribution system. 

    23. "System revenues" shall mean  all  rates,  rents,  fees,  charges, 

  payments  and  other  income  and  receipts  derived  by  the  authority 

  including, without limiting the generality of the foregoing,  investment 

  proceeds  and  proceeds  of  insurance,  condemnation,  sales  or  other 

  dispositions of assets, together with all federal,  state  or  municipal 

  aid  as well as any other income derived from the operation of the water 

  facility of the authority. 



    24. "Transmission facility" shall mean a water facility used to  carry 

  water from a supply facility to a distribution system. 

    25. "Treasurer" shall mean the treasurer of the authority. 

    26.  "Water  facility"  or  "water  facilities" shall mean any plants, 

  structures or other real and personal property  acquired,  rehabilitated 

  or  constructed  or  planned for the purpose of accumulating, supplying, 

  transmitting, distributing or treating water, including but not  limited 

  to  surface  or groundwater reservoirs, basins, dams, canals, aqueducts, 

  standpipes, conduits, pipelines, mains, pumping stations,  pumps,  water 

  distribution   systems,   compensating   reservoirs,   intake  stations, 

  waterworks or sources of water supply, wells, purification or filtration 

  plants or other treatment plants  and  works,  approaches,  connections, 

  water   meters,  rights  of  flowage  or  diversion  and  other  plants, 

  structures, equipment, vehicles, towers, conveyances, real  or  personal 

  property or rights therein and appurtenances thereto necessary or useful 

  and  convenient for the accumulation, supply, transmission, treatment or 

  distribution of water. 

    27. "Water project" shall mean any sewerage facility,  water  facility 

  or  water  and  sewerage  facility,  as  the  case may be, including the 

  planning, development, financing or construction thereof. 

    28. "Watershed rules" shall mean the rules and regulations made by the 

  department of health pursuant to section eleven hundred  of  the  public 

  health law. 

    * NB There are 2 § 1199-aaaa's 

 

 
    * §  1199-bbbb.  Livingston county water and sewer authority district. 

  There is hereby defined and established a district to be  known  as  the 

  "Livingston  county  water  and  sewer  authority  district" which shall 

  embrace all of the territory located within the county of Livingston. 

    * NB There are 2 § 1199-bbbb's 

 

 
    * §  1199-cccc.  Livingston  county  water  and  sewer authority. 1. A 

  public corporation known as  the  "Livingston  county  water  and  sewer 

  authority"  is  hereby  created for the public purposes and charged with 

  the duties and having the powers provided in this title.  The  authority 

  shall  be  a corporate governmental agency constituting a public benefit 

  corporation and shall be a "public district" for the purposes of section 

  eighty-nine-l of the public service law. The authority shall be governed 

  by a board consisting of seven members, who shall be  residents  of  the 

  county  and  be appointed by resolution of the board of supervisors. The 

  first members appointed shall be appointed for the following terms:  two 

  for  a  term  ending  on December thirty-first of the year following the 

  year in which this title shall have become law; two for a term ending on 

  December thirty-first of the second year following  the  year  in  which 

  this  title  shall  have  become  law;  and  three  for a term ending on 

  December thirty-first of the third year following the year in which this 

  title shall have become law. Subsequent appointment of members shall  be 

  made in the same manner and for terms of three years ending in each case 

  on  December  thirty-first  of  the  last year of such term. All members 

  shall continue to hold office until their successors are  appointed  and 

  have  qualified.  Vacancies  shall  be filled in the manner provided for 

  original appointment. Vacancies occurring otherwise than  by  expiration 

  of  terms  of  office,  shall be filled by appointment for the unexpired 

  terms. Members may be removed from office for the same  reasons  and  in 



  the same manner as may be provided by law for the removal of officers of 

  the county. In addition, members may be removed from office by the board 

  of  supervisors  for  inefficiency,  neglect  of  duty  or misconduct in 

  office, after the board of supervisors has given such member a  copy  of 

  the  charges  against  him  and  opportunity to be heard in person or by 

  counsel in his defense, upon not less than ten days notice. If a  member 

  fails  to  attend  three  consecutive regular meetings of the authority, 

  unless such absence is for good cause and is excused by the  chairperson 

  of  the  authority  or  other  presiding officers, or in the case of the 

  chairperson  of  the  authority,  by  the  chairman  of  the  board   of 

  supervisors,  the  office  may  be  deemed  vacant  for  purposes of the 

  nomination and appointment of a successor. The officers of the authority 

  shall receive from the authority  such  salary,  if  any,  as  shall  be 

  determined  from  time to time by the board of supervisors. In addition, 

  members and officers shall be entitled to reimbursement of their  actual 

  and  necessary  expenses,  including  travel  expenses,  incurred in the 

  discharge of their duties. 

    2. The powers of the  authority  shall  be  vested  in  and  shall  be 

  exercised  by the board at a meeting duly called and held where a quorum 

  of four members is present. No action shall be taken  by  the  authority 

  except  pursuant  to  the  favorable  vote of at least four members. The 

  board may delegate to one or more of its members, or to one or  more  of 

  the  officers,  agents  or  employees  of the authority, such powers and 

  duties as it may deem proper. 

    3. The officers of the authority shall consist of a chairperson,  vice 

  chairperson,  and  treasurer  who  shall  be  members of the board and a 

  secretary who need not be a member of the board.  The  officers  of  the 

  authority  shall  be  appointed  by  the  board  and shall serve in such 

  capacities at the pleasure of the board.  In  addition,  the  board  may 

  appoint  and  at  its  pleasure  remove  such  additional  officers  and 

  employees as it may determine  necessary  for  the  performance  of  the 

  powers   and   duties  of  the  authority  and  fix  and  determine  the 

  qualifications, duties and compensation of such additional officers  and 

  employees,  subject  to  the  provisions of the civil service law of the 

  state and such rules as the civil service commission may adopt and  make 

  applicable  to  the  authority. The authority may also from time to time 

  contract for expert professional services. The treasurer shall execute a 

  bond, conditioned upon the faithful performance of the duties of his  or 

  her office, the amount and sufficiency of which shall be approved by the 

  board, and the premium therefor shall be paid by the authority. 

    4.  Notwithstanding any inconsistent provision of any general, special 

  or local law, ordinance, resolution or charter, no  officer,  member  or 

  employee   of  the  state,  any  municipality,  or  any  public  benefit 

  corporation, shall forfeit his or her office or employment by reason  of 

  his  or  her  acceptance  of  appointment as a member, officer, agent or 

  employee of the authority, nor shall service as  such  member,  officer, 

  agent  or  employee  be  deemed  incompatible  or  in conflict with such 

  office, membership or employment, and one or more members of  the  board 

  of supervisors may be appointed to serve as a member of the authority. 

    5.  (a) The chairman of the board of supervisors shall file within one 

  year after the effective date of  this  title,  in  the  office  of  the 

  secretary of state, a certificate signed by the chairman of the board of 

  supervisors setting forth: (i) the name of the authority; (ii) the names 

  of the initial members of the board and their terms of office; and (iii) 

  the  effective date of this title. If such certificate is not filed with 

  the secretary of state on  or  before  such  date,  then  the  corporate 

  existence  of  the  authority  shall  thereupon  terminate  and it shall 



  thereupon be deemed to be and shall be dissolved. 

    (b) Except as provided in  paragraph  (a)  of  this  subdivision,  the 

  authority and its corporate existence shall continue until terminated by 

  law,  provided,  however,  that no such law shall take effect so long as 

  the authority shall have bonds or other obligations  outstanding  unless 

  adequate  provision  has  been  made  for  the  payment  or satisfaction 

  thereof. Upon termination of the existence of the authority, all of  the 

  rights  and properties of the authority then remaining shall pass to and 

  vest in the county. 

    6. Neither the public  service  commission  nor  any  other  board  or 

  commission of like character, shall have jurisdiction over the authority 

  in  the  management  and  control of its properties or operations of any 

  power over the regulation of rates fixed or  charges  collected  by  the 

  authority. 

    7.  It  is  hereby  determined and declared that the authority and the 

  carrying out of its powers, purposes and duties are in all respects  for 

  the  benefit  of  the  people  of  the  county  and  the  state, for the 

  improvement of their  health,  welfare  and  prosperity  and  that  such 

  purposes  are  public  purposes  and  that  the authority is and will be 

  performing an essential governmental function in  the  exercise  of  the 

  powers conferred upon it by this title. 

    8.  Nothing  in this title shall be construed to obligate the state in 

  any way  in  connection  with  the  operations  or  obligations  of  the 

  authority. 

    * NB There are 2 § 1199-cccc's 

 

 
    * § 1199-dddd. Powers of the authority. Except as otherwise limited by 

  this title, the authority shall have the power: 

    1. To sue and be sued; 

    2. To have a seal and alter the same at pleasure; 

    3.  To  borrow  money  and  issue  negotiable  notes,  bonds, or other 

  obligations and to provide for the rights of the holders thereof; 

    4. To enter into contracts and execute all  instruments  necessary  or 

  convenient  or  desirable for the purposes of the authority to carry out 

  any powers expressly given it in this title; 

    5. To acquire, by purchase, gift, grant, transfer, contract  or  lease 

  or  by  condemnation pursuant to the eminent domain procedure law within 

  the district, lease as lessee, hold  and  use  and  to  sell,  lease  as 

  lessor,  transfer or otherwise dispose of, any real or personal property 

  or any  interest  therein,  within  or  without  the  district,  as  the 

  authority  may  deem necessary, convenient or desirable to carry out the 

  purpose of this title and to pay the costs thereof;  provided,  however, 

  that  the  authority  may  not  condemn  real property of a municipality 

  without the consent of the governing body of such municipality; 

    6. To purchase or refuse to purchase in the name of the authority, any 

  water or sewerage facility, including plants,  works,  instrumentalities 

  or  parts thereof and appurtenances thereto, lands, easements, rights in 

  land and  water  rights,  rights-of-way,  contract  rights,  franchises, 

  permits,  approaches, connections, dams, wells, pumps, reservoirs, water 

  or sewer mains and pipe lines, pumping stations,  treatment  facilities, 

  meters, equipment and inventory, or any other property incidental to and 

  included   in  such  system  or  part  thereof,  and  any  improvements, 

  extensions and betterments, situated wholly within the district  and  to 

  pay  the  costs thereof; provided, however that prior to the acquisition 

  of any existing water or sewer district, the authority shall discuss and 



  consider the status of current employees of the water or sewer district; 

  and further provided, however, that the authority shall have  the  power 

  to  purchase any source of supply, supply facility, water supply system, 

  or transmission facility or any part thereof situated wholly  or  partly 

  without  the  territorial limits of the district, provided same shall be 

  necessary  in  order  to  supply  water  within  the  district;  and  in 

  connection with the purchase of such properties the authority may assume 

  any  obligations  of  the  owner  of  such properties and, to the extent 

  required by the terms of any indentures or other instruments under which 

  such obligations were issued, the authority  may  assume  and  agree  to 

  perform  covenants  and  observe  the  restrictions  contained  in  such 

  instruments; and furthermore the owner  of  any  properties,  which  the 

  authority  is  authorized  to  acquire,  is hereby authorized to sell or 

  otherwise transfer the same to the authority,  whereupon  the  authority 

  shall  become  charged  with  the  performance of all public duties with 

  respect to such properties with which such owner was  charged  and  such 

  owner  shall  become  discharged  from the performance thereof, and as a 

  means of so acquiring for such purpose, the authority may  purchase  all 

  of  the  stock  or  any  existing  privately  owned water corporation or 

  company and in the case of a sale or other transfer of properties  of  a 

  public utility corporation pursuant to this provision, upon the purchase 

  of  the  stock  of  such  corporation  or  company it shall be lawful to 

  dissolve such corporation within a reasonable time; 

    7. To construct, improve, maintain, develop,  expand  or  rehabilitate 

  water or sewerage facilities and to pay the costs thereof; 

    8.  To  operate  and  manage  and  to  contract  for the operation and 

  management of facilities of the authority; 

    9. To enter into contracts, and carry out the terms thereof,  for  the 

  wholesale  provision of water produced by supply facilities constructed, 

  owned or operated by the authority, to municipalities and private  water 

  companies  and  to  carry out the terms thereof, for the transmission of 

  water from new or existing supply facilities; 

    10.  To  enter into contracts with municipalities or other persons for 

  the collection, treatment and disposal of sewage; 

    11. To apply to the appropriate agencies and officials of the federal, 

  state and local governments for such licenses, permits or  approvals  of 

  its  plans  or  projects as it may deem necessary or advisable, and upon 

  such terms and conditions as it may deem appropriate, to accept, in  its 

  discretion, such licenses, permits or approvals as may be tendered to it 

  by such agencies and officials; 

    12.  To  take all necessary and reasonable actions within the district 

  to conserve, preserve and protect the  water  supply  to  the  district, 

  including  the  making  of  plans and studies, the adoption of watershed 

  rules and regulations, the enforcing of compliance with all current  and 

  future  rules  and regulations of the state sanitary code with regard to 

  water supply and usage, the requiring of cross-connection controls,  the 

  providing  of  educational  material and programs to the public, and the 

  cooperating with water  suppliers  outside  the  district  to  conserve, 

  preserve  and  protect the entire water reserve as it is affected within 

  and outside the authority's supply area; 

    13. To appoint such officers and employees as  are  required  for  the 

  performance  of  its  duties, to fix and determine their qualifications, 

  duties and compensation, and to  retain  or  employ  counsel,  auditors, 

  engineers,  and private consultants on a contract basis or otherwise for 

  rendering professional or technical services and advice; 

    14. With the consent of the governing body of a municipality,  to  use 

  officers  and  employees  of  such  municipality  and  to  pay  a proper 



  proportion of the compensation  or  costs  for  the  services  for  such 

  officers or employees; 

    15.  To  make plans and studies necessary, convenient or desirable for 

  the effectuation of the purposes and powers  of  the  authority  and  to 

  prepare recommendations in regard thereto; 

    16.  To  prepare  a water supply emergency plan which may include, but 

  not be limited to, the following: 

    (a) establishment of criteria and  procedures  to  determine  critical 

  water levels or safe yield of system; 

    (b)  identification  of  existing  and  future  sources of water under 

  normal conditions and emergency conditions; 

    (c) system capacity and ability to meet peak  demand  and  fire  flows 

  concurrently; 

    (d) storage capacities; 

    (e)  current  condition of present interconnections and identification 

  of additional interconnections to meet a water supply emergency; 

    (f) specific  action  plan  to  be  followed  during  a  water  supply 

  emergency including a phased implementation of the plan; 

    (g)  general  water  conservation  programs  and  water  use reduction 

  strategies for water supply users; 

    (h) prioritization of water users; 

    (i) identification and  availability  of  emergency  equipment  needed 

  during a water supply emergency; and 

    (j)   public   notification   program   coordinated  with  the  phased 

  implementation schedule; 

    Such plan shall not be adopted until a public  hearing  on  such  plan 

  shall  have  been held, upon not less than fourteen days' notice thereof 

  to each customer, either by mail or by publication once in  a  newspaper 

  having  general  circulation within the district; every five years, such 

  plan shall be reviewed and revised if necessary after a public  hearing, 

  with notice to each customer as aforesaid; 

    17.  To  enter upon such lands, waters, or premises as in the judgment 

  of the authority shall be necessary for the purpose of  making  surveys, 

  soundings, borings and examinations to accomplish any purpose authorized 

  by this title, the authority being liable only for actual damage done; 

    18.  To  apply for and to accept any gifts or grants or loans of funds 

  or property or financial or other aid  in  any  form  from  the  federal 

  government  or  any agency or instrumentality thereof, or from the state 

  or any agency or instrumentality thereof, or from any other source,  for 

  any  or  all  of  the  purposes  specified in this title, and to comply, 

  subject to the provisions of this title, with the terms  and  conditions 

  thereof; 

    19.  To  supply  and  sell  water  for domestic, commercial and public 

  purposes at retail to individual consumers within  the  district  or  to 

  collect, treat or discharge sewage produced within the district; 

    20.  To  purchase  water  in  bulk  from any person, private or public 

  benefit corporation or municipality when necessary or convenient for the 

  operation of such water system; 

    21. To  produce,  develop,  distribute  and  sell  water  or  sewerage 

  services  within  or without the territorial limits of the district; and 

  to purchase water from any municipality, town  water  district,  person, 

  association  or  corporation,  provided, however, that water or sewerage 

  services may be sold at retail to individual consumers only  within  the 

  district  and  further provided that in exercising the powers granted by 

  this title, the authority shall not sell water  in  any  area  which  is 

  served  by  a  water  system  or  sewerage services in any area which is 

  served by a sewerage system owned  or  operated  by  a  municipality  or 



  special   improvement   district  unless  the  governing  body  of  such 

  municipality  or  district  shall  adopt  a  resolution  requesting  the 

  authority  to  sell  water  or sewerage services, as the case may be, in 

  such served areas; 

    22. To make bylaws for the management and regulation  of  its  affairs 

  and  rules  and  regulations  for  the  conservation,  preservation  and 

  protection of the authority's water supply and,  subject  to  agreements 

  with  bondholders,  rules  for the sale of water or collection of sewage 

  and the collection of rents and charges therefor. A copy of such  rules, 

  regulations and bylaws and any rules and regulations adopted pursuant to 

  subdivision  eleven  of  this  section, and all amendments thereto, duly 

  certified by the secretary of the authority shall be filed in the office 

  of the county clerk of the county. In addition, the board of supervisors 

  by local law shall have power to prescribe that  violation  of  specific 

  bylaws, rules, or rules and regulations of the authority, published once 

  in  a  newspaper  having general circulation within the county, shall be 

  punishable by fine, not exceeding fifty dollars per violation; 

    23. To fix rates and collect charges for the use of the facilities of, 

  or services rendered by, or any commodities furnished by  the  authority 

  such  as to provide revenues sufficient at all times to pay, as the same 

  shall become due, the principal of and interest on the bonds, notes,  or 

  other  obligations  of  the  authority  together with the maintenance of 

  proper reserves therefor, in addition to paying as the same shall become 

  due, the expense of operating and  maintaining  the  properties  of  the 

  authority  together  with proper maintenance reserves, capital reserves, 

  repair  reserves,  tax  stabilization  reserves  and  other  contingency 

  reserves,  and  all other obligations and indebtedness of the authority; 

  provided however, no such rates or charges  shall  be  changed  until  a 

  public  hearing  on such changes shall have been held upon not less than 

  fourteen days notice thereof to each customer,  either  by  mail  or  by 

  publication  once  in  a newspaper having general circulation within the 

  bounds of the authority; 

    24.  To  enter  into  cooperative  agreements  with other authorities, 

  municipalities, counties,  cities,  towns,  villages,  water  districts, 

  utility companies, individuals, firms or corporations, within or without 

  the  territorial  limits  of  the  district  for  the interconnection of 

  facilities, the provision,  exchange  or  interchange  of  services  and 

  commodities,  the  conservation,  preservation  and  protection  of  the 

  authority's water reserve as it  is  affected  within  and  outside  the 

  authority's  supply  area,  and,  within  the  territorial limits of the 

  district, to enter into a contract for the construction,  operation  and 

  maintenance  of  a water supply and distribution system by the authority 

  for any municipality having power  to  construct  and  develop  a  water 

  supply  and  distribution  system or sewerage system or facilities, upon 

  such terms and conditions  as  shall  be  determined  to  be  reasonable 

  including,  but  not  limited to, the reimbursement of all costs of such 

  construction, or for any other lawful purposes necessary or desirable to 

  effect the purposes of this title, including the investment of funds; 

    25. To provide for the discontinuance or disconnection of  the  supply 

  of  water  or  sewerage  service,  or  both,  as  the  case  may be, for 

  nonpayment of fees, rates, rents or other charges  therefor  imposed  by 

  the  authority,  provided  such  discontinuance  or disconnection of any 

  water or sewerage service, or both, as the case may  be,  shall  not  be 

  carried out except in the manner and upon the notice as is required of a 

  waterworks  corporation  pursuant  to  subdivisions three-a, three-b and 

  three-c of section eighty-nine-b and section one hundred sixteen of  the 

  public service law; 



    26.  To act as a county water agency in accordance with the provisions 

  of article five-A of the county law; 

    27. For the purposes of article fifteen-A of the executive  law  only, 

  the  authority shall be deemed a state agency as that term is defined in 

  such article and its contracts for  procurement,  design,  construction, 

  services  and  materials  shall  be  deemed  state  contracts within the 

  meaning of that term as set forth in such article; and 

    28. To do all things necessary, convenient or desirable to  carry  out 

  its purposes and for all exercise of the powers granted in this title. 

    * NB There are 2 § 1199-dddd's 

 

 
    * §  1199-eeee.  Advances  on  behalf of the authority; acquisition of 

  property by county for authority. 1. In addition to any  powers  granted 

  to  it  by  law,  the  county  from time to time may appropriate sums of 

  money, after approval by the board of supervisors, to or  on  behalf  of 

  the authority to defray project costs or any other costs and expenses of 

  the  authority.  Subject to the rights of bondholders, the county at the 

  time of the appropriation shall determine if the moneys so  appropriated 

  shall  be  subject  to  repayment by the authority to the county and, in 

  such event, the manner and time or times for such repayment. 

    2. The county or any other municipality may give, grant, sell, convey, 

  loan, license the use of or lease  to  the  authority  any  property  or 

  facility  which  is  useful  to  the authority in order to carry out its 

  powers under this title. Any such transfer of  property  shall  be  upon 

  such  terms  and conditions, subject to the rights of the holders of any 

  bonds, as the authority and the county or other municipality may agree. 

    3. The county may acquire by purchase or by exercise of the  power  of 

  eminent domain real property in the name of the county for any corporate 

  purpose of the authority. 

    4.  Notwithstanding  the provisions of any other law, general, special 

  or local to the contrary, real property acquired by the authority or the 

  county from the state may be used  for  any  corporate  purpose  of  the 

  authority. 

    * NB There are 2 § 1199-eeee's 

 

 
 

    * §  1199-ffff.  Transfer  of officers and employees. 1. In accordance 

  with the provisions of section seventy of the  civil  service  law,  any 

  officer  or employee of the county, may, at the request of the authority 

  and with the consent of the board of supervisors, be transferred to  the 

  authority  and  shall  be  eligible  for  such transfer and appointment, 

  without  further  examination,  to  applicable  offices,  positions  and 

  employment  under  the  authority.  Any  such  officers  or employees so 

  transferred to the authority pursuant to this section, who  are  members 

  of  or  benefit under any existing pension or retirement fund or system, 

  shall continue to have all rights, privileges,  obligations  and  status 

  with  respect  to  such fund or system as are now prescribed by law, but 

  during  the  period  of  their  employment   by   the   authority,   all 

  contributions  to  such  funds  or systems to be paid by the employer on 

  account of such officers or employees shall be paid by the authority. 

    2.  A  transferred  employee  shall  remain  in  the  same  collective 

  bargaining  unit as was the case prior to his or her transfer; successor 

  employees to the positions held by  such  transferred  employees  shall, 

  consistent  with the provisions of article fourteen of the civil service 



  law, be included in the  same  unit  as  their  predecessors.  Employees 

  serving  in  positions  in newly created titles shall be assigned to the 

  same collective bargaining unit as they would have been assigned to such 

  unit were  such  titles  created  prior  to  the  establishment  of  the 

  authority.    Nothing  contained in this title shall be construed (a) to 

  diminish the rights of employees pursuant  to  a  collective  bargaining 

  agreement  or  (b) to affect existing law with respect to an application 

  to the public employment relations board seeking a  designation  by  the 

  board that certain persons are managerial or confidential. 

    * NB There are 2 § 1199-ffff's 

 

 
    * § 1199-gggg. Bonds of the authority. 1. The authority shall have the 

  power  and  is hereby authorized from time to time to issue bonds, notes 

  or other obligations to pay the cost of any project  or  for  any  other 

  corporate purpose, including the establishment of reserves to secure the 

  bonds, the payment of principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the 

  bonds  and  the  payment of incidental expenses in connection therewith. 

  The aggregate principal amount of such bonds, notes or other obligations 

  shall not exceed  forty-two  million  dollars  ($42,000,000),  excluding 

  bonds,  notes  or  other obligations issued to refund or otherwise repay 

  bonds, notes or other obligations theretofore issued for  such  purposes 

  provided,  however,  that upon any such refunding or repayment the total 

  aggregate  principal  amount  of  outstanding  bonds,  notes  or   other 

  obligations  may be greater than forty-two million dollars ($42,000,000) 

  only if the present value of the aggregate debt service of the refunding 

  or repayment bonds, notes or other obligations to be  issued  shall  not 

  exceed  the  present  value  of the aggregate debt service of the bonds, 

  notes or other obligations so to be refunded  or  repaid.  For  purposes 

  hereof,  the  present  values  of  the  aggregate  debt  service  of the 

  refunding or repayment bonds, notes or  other  obligations  and  of  the 

  aggregate  debt  service of the bonds, notes or other obligations and of 

  the aggregate debt service of the bonds, notes or other  obligations  so 

  refunded  or  repaid,  shall  be  calculated  by utilizing the effective 

  interest rate of the  refunding  or  repayment  bonds,  notes  or  other 

  obligations,  which  shall  be  that  rate  arrived  at  by doubling the 

  semi-annual  interest  rate  (compounded  semi-annually)  necessary   to 

  discount  the debt service payments on the refunding or repayment bonds, 

  notes or other obligations from the payment dates thereof to the date of 

  issue of the refunding or repayment bonds, notes  or  other  obligations 

  and  to  the  price bid including estimated accrued interest or proceeds 

  received by the authority including estimated accrued interest from  the 

  sale  thereof.  The  authority  shall  have  the  power  and  is  hereby 

  authorized to enter into such agreements and perform such acts as may be 

  required under any applicable federal legislation to  secure  a  federal 

  guarantee of any bonds. 

    2.  The authority shall have power from time to time to renew bonds or 

  to issue renewal bonds for such purpose, to issue bonds  to  pay  bonds, 

  and,  whenever  it  deems refunding expedient, to refund any bond by the 

  issuance of new bonds, whether the bonds to be refunded have or have not 

  matured, and may issue bonds partly to refund bonds then outstanding and 

  partly for any other corporate purpose of the  authority.  Bonds  (other 

  than  notes  or  other  evidence  of  indebtedness) issued for refunding 

  purposes, which have a final maturity date longer than the  maturity  of 

  the bonds being refunded, shall be approved by a resolution of the board 

  of  supervisors  adopted  by  a majority vote and approved by the county 



  treasurer. Bonds issued for refunding purposes shall  be  sold  and  the 

  proceeds  applied to the purchase, redemption or payment of the bonds or 

  notes to be refunded. 

    3. Bonds issued by the authority may be general obligations secured by 

  the faith and credit of the authority  or  may  be  special  obligations 

  payable  solely  out  of  particular  revenues or other moneys as may be 

  designated in the proceedings of the authority  under  which  the  bonds 

  shall  be  authorized  to  be issued, subject as to priority only to any 

  agreements with the holders of outstanding bonds pledging any particular 

  property, revenues or moneys. The authority may  also  enter  into  loan 

  agreements, lines of credit and other security agreements and obtain for 

  or  on  its  behalf  letters  of  credit, insurance, guarantees or other 

  credit enhancements to the extent not or hereafter  available,  in  each 

  case  for  securing its bonds or to provided direct payment of any costs 

  which the authority is authorized to pay. 

    4.  Bonds  shall  be  authorized by resolution of the authority, be in 

  such denominations and bear such date or dates and mature at  such  time 

  or  times,  as  such  resolution  may  provide,  provided that bonds and 

  renewals thereof shall mature  within  forty  years  from  the  date  of 

  original issuance of any such bonds. 

    Bonds  shall  be subject to such terms of redemption, bear interest at 

  such rate or rates, be payable at such times, be in  such  form,  either 

  coupon or registered, carry such registration privileges, be executed in 

  such  manner,  be  payable  in  such  medium of payment at such place or 

  places, and be subject to such terms and conditions as  such  resolution 

  may  provide.  Notwithstanding  any other provision of law, the bonds of 

  the authority issued pursuant to this  section  shall  be  sold  to  the 

  bidder offering the lowest true interest cost, taking into consideration 

  any  premium  or discount not less than four nor more than fifteen days, 

  Sundays excepted, after a notice of such  sale  has  been  published  at 

  least  once  in a newspaper of general circulation in the area served by 

  the authority, which shall state the terms of the sale. The terms of the 

  sale may not change unless notice of such change is  published  in  such 

  newspaper at least one day prior to the date of the sale as set forth in 

  the original notice of sale. Advertisements shall contain a provision to 

  the  effect that the authority, in its discretion, may reject any or all 

  bids made in pursuance of such advertisements, and in the event of  such 

  rejection,  the authority is authorized to negotiate a private or public 

  sale or readvertise for bids in the form and manner above  described  as 

  many  times as, in its judgment, may be necessary to effect satisfactory 

  sale. 

    Notwithstanding the provisions of the preceding paragraph, whenever in 

  the judgment of the authority the interests of  the  authority  will  be 

  served   thereby,   the   members  of  the  authority,  on  the  written 

  recommendation of the chairperson, may authorize the sale of such  bonds 

  at  private  or  public  sale  on  a  negotiated  basis  or  on either a 

  competitive or negotiated basis.  The  authority  shall  set  guidelines 

  governing  the terms and conditions of any such private or public sales. 

  The private or public bond sale guidelines set by  the  authority  shall 

  include,  but  not be limited to, a requirement that where the interests 

  of the authority will be served by a private or public  sale  of  bonds, 

  the  authority shall select underwriters for each private or public bond 

  sale  conducted  pursuant  to  a  request  for  proposal   process   and 

  consideration  of  proposals  from  qualified  underwriters  taking into 

  account, among  other  things,  qualifications  of  underwriters  as  to 

  experience,  their  ability to structure and sell authority bond issues, 

  anticipated  costs  to  the  authority,  the  prior  experience  of  the 



  authority  with  the  firm,  if  any,  the capitalization of such firms, 

  participation of qualified minority and women-owned business  enterprise 

  firms  in such private or public sales of bonds of the authority and the 

  experience and  ability  of  firms  under  consideration  to  work  with 

  minority  and  women-owned  business  enterprises  so  as to promote and 

  assist participation by such enterprises. 

    The authority shall have the power from time to  time  to  amend  such 

  private  bond  sale guidelines in accordance with the provisions of this 

  subdivision. 

    No private or  public  bond  sale  on  a  negotiated  basis  shall  be 

  conducted   by  the  authority  without  prior  approval  of  the  state 

  comptroller. The authority shall annually prepare  and  approve  a  bond 

  sale  report  which  shall  include  the  private  or  public  bond sale 

  guidelines  as  specified  in  this  subdivision,  amendments  to   such 

  guidelines  since  the  last  private  or  public  bond  sale report, an 

  explanation of the bond sale guidelines and amendments, and the  results 

  of  any  sale  of bonds conducted during the fiscal year. Such bond sale 

  report  may  be  a part of any other annual report that the authority is 

  required to make. 

    The authority shall annually submit its bond sale report to the  state 

  comptroller  and  copies thereof to the senate finance committee and the 

  assembly ways and means committee. 

    The authority shall make available to the public copies  of  its  bond 

  sale report upon reasonable request thereof. 

    Nothing contained in this subdivision shall be deemed to alter, affect 

  the validity of, modify the terms of or impair any contract or agreement 

  made  or  entered  into in violation of, or without compliance with, the 

  provisions of this subdivision. 

    5. Any resolution or resolutions authorizing bonds  or  any  issue  of 

  bonds  by  the authority may contain provisions which may be part of the 

  contract with the holders of the bonds thereby authorized as to: 

    (a) pledging all or part of its  revenues,  together  with  any  other 

  moneys, or property of the authority, to secure the payment of the bonds 

  or  any  costs  of  issuance  thereof,  including but not limited to any 

  contracts, earnings or proceeds of any grant to the  authority  received 

  from  any  private  or  public  source,  subject to such agreements with 

  bondholders as may then exist; 

    (b) the rates, rentals,  fees  and  other  charges  to  be  fixed  and 

  collected  by  the  authority  and the amounts to be raised in each year 

  thereby, and the use and disposition of revenues; 

    (c) the setting aside of reserves and the creation  of  sinking  funds 

  and the regulation and disposition thereof; 

    (d)  limitations on the purpose to which the proceeds from the sale of 

  bonds may be applied; 

    (e) limitations on the right of the authority to restrict and regulate 

  the use of any water project or part thereof in  connection  with  which 

  bonds are issued; 

    (f)  limitations  on  the issuance of additional bonds, the terms upon 

  which additional bonds may be issued and secured and  the  refunding  of 

  outstanding or other bonds; 

    (g)  the  procedure,  if  any, by which the terms of any contract with 

  bondholders may be amended or abrogated,  including  the  proportion  of 

  bondholders  which  must  consent  thereto, and the manner in which such 

  consent may be given; 

    (h) the creation of special funds into which  any  revenues  or  other 

  moneys may be deposited; 

    (i) the terms and provisions of any trust, deed, mortgage or indenture 



  securing the bonds under which the bonds may be issued; 

    (j)  vesting  in a trustee or trustees such properties, rights, powers 

  and duties in trust as the authority may determine,  which  may  include 

  any  or all of the rights, powers and duties of the trustee appointed by 

  the bondholders pursuant to section eleven hundred  ninety-nine-hhhh  of 

  this title or limiting the rights, duties and powers of such trustee; 

    (k)  defining  the  acts  or  omissions  to act which may constitute a 

  default  in  the  obligations  and  duties  of  the  authority  to   the 

  bondholders and providing for the rights and remedies of the bondholders 

  in  the  event  of  such  default,  including  as  a matter of right the 

  appointment of a receiver,  provided,  however,  that  such  rights  and 

  remedies  shall  not  be inconsistent with the general laws of the state 

  and other provisions of this title; 

    (l) limitations on the power of the authority  to  sell  or  otherwise 

  dispose of any water facility or any part thereof or other property; 

    (m)  limitations  on  the  amount  of  revenues and other moneys to be 

  expended  for  operating,  administrative  or  other  expenses  of   the 

  authority; 

    (n) the payment of the proceeds of bonds, revenues and other moneys to 

  a  trustee  or  other  depository,  and  for  the method of disbursement 

  thereof with such safeguards  and  restrictions  as  the  authority  may 

  determine; and 

    (o)  any other matters of like or different character which in any way 

  affect the security or  protection  of  the  bonds  or  the  rights  and 

  remedies of bondholders. 

    6.  In  addition  to the powers herein conferred upon the authority to 

  secure its bonds, the authority shall have power in connection with  the 

  issuance  of bonds to adopt resolutions and enter into trust indentures, 

  agreements, or other instruments as the authority  may  deem  necessary, 

  convenient  or  desirable  concerning  the  use  or  disposition  of its 

  revenues or other moneys or property, including the  mortgaging  of  any 

  property  and the entrusting, pledging or creation of any other security 

  interest in any such revenues, moneys, or property and the doing of  any 

  act,  including refraining from doing any act, which the authority would 

  have the right to do in the absence of such  agreements.  The  authority 

  shall  have power to enter into amendments of any such agreements within 

  the powers granted to the authority by this title and  to  perform  such 

  agreements.  The provisions of any such agreements may be made a part of 

  the contract with the holders of bonds of the authority. 

    7. Any provision of  the  uniform  commercial  code  to  the  contrary 

  notwithstanding,  any  pledge of or other security interest in revenues, 

  moneys, accounts, contract rights, general intangibles or other personal 

  property made or created by the authority shall be  valid,  binding  and 

  perfected  from  the  time  when  such  pledge is made or other security 

  interest attaches without any physical delivery  of  the  collateral  or 

  further  act, and the lien of any such pledge or other security interest 

  shall be valid, binding and perfected against all parties having  claims 

  of  any  kind  in  tort,  contract  or  otherwise  against the authority 

  irrespective of whether or not such  parties  have  notice  thereof.  No 

  instrument  by  which  such a pledge or security interest is created nor 

  any financing statement need be recorded or filed. 

    8. Whether or not the bonds of the authority  are  of  such  form  and 

  character as to be negotiable instruments under the terms of the uniform 

  commercial code, the bonds are hereby made negotiable instruments within 

  the  meaning  of  and  for  all purposes of the uniform commercial code, 

  subject only to the provisions of the bonds for registration. 

    9. Neither the members nor the  officers  of  the  authority  nor  any 



  person  executing bonds shall be liable personally thereon or be subject 

  to any personal liability or accountability by reason  of  the  issuance 

  thereof. 

    10. The authority, subject to such agreements with bondholders as then 

  may  exist,  shall  have  power  out of any moneys available therefor to 

  purchase bonds of the authority in lieu of redemption, at  a  price  not 

  exceeding: 

    (a)  if  the  bonds  are  then  redeemable,  the redemption price then 

  applicable, plus accrued interest to the next interest payment date; 

    (b) if the bonds are not then redeemable, the  redemption  price  then 

  applicable  on  the  first date after such purchase upon which the bonds 

  become subject to redemption plus accrued interest to the next  interest 

  payment date. Bonds so purchased shall thereupon be cancelled. 

    11.  The  authority shall have power and is hereby authorized to issue 

  negotiable  bond  anticipation  notes  in  conformity  with   applicable 

  provisions  of  the  uniform commercial code and may renew the same from 

  time to time but the  maximum  maturity  of  any  such  note,  including 

  renewals  thereof, shall not exceed five years from the date of issue of 

  such original note. 

    * NB There are 2 § 1199-gggg's 

 

 
    * §  1199-hhhh.  Remedies of bondholders. Subject to any resolution or 

  resolutions adopted pursuant to paragraph (j)  of  subdivision  five  of 

  section eleven hundred ninety-nine-gggg of this title: 

    1.  In  the  event  that the authority shall default in the payment of 

  principal of or interest on any issue of the bonds after the same  shall 

  become  due  whether  at  maturity or upon call for redemption, and such 

  default shall continue for a period of thirty days, or in the event that 

  the authority shall fail or refuse to comply with the provisions of this 

  title, or shall default in any agreement made with the  holders  of  any 

  issue  of  the bonds, the holders of twenty-five per centum in aggregate 

  principal amount of  the  bonds  of  such  issue  then  outstanding,  by 

  instrument or instruments filed in the office of the clerk of the county 

  and  proved or acknowledged in the same manner as a deed to be recorded, 

  may appoint a trustee to represent the holders of  such  bonds  for  the 

  purposes herein provided. 

    2.  Such  trustee  may,  and  upon  written  request of the holders of 

  twenty-five per centum in principal amount  of  such  bonds  outstanding 

  shall, in its own name: 

    (a)  by action or proceeding in accordance with the civil practice law 

  and rules, enforce all rights of the bondholders including the right  to 

  require  the  authority  to  collect  rents,  rates,  fees,  and charges 

  adequate to carry out any agreement as to, or  pledge  of,  such  rents, 

  rates  and  charges, and to require the authority to carry out any other 

  agreements with the holders of such bonds  and  to  perform  its  duties 

  under this title; 

    (b) bring an action or proceeding upon such bonds; 

    (c) by action or proceeding, require the authority to account as if it 

  were the trustee of an express trust for the holders of such bonds; 

    (d)  by  action  or proceeding, enjoin any acts or things which may be 

  unlawful or in violation of the rights of the holders of such bonds; and 

    (e) declare all such bonds due and payable, and if all defaults  shall 

  be  made  good,  then with the consent of the holders of twenty-five per 

  centum of the principal amount of such  bonds  then  outstanding,  annul 

  such declaration and its consequences. 



    3.  Such  trustee  shall in addition to the foregoing have and possess 

  all of the powers necessary or  appropriate  for  the  exercise  of  any 

  functions  specifically  set  forth  herein or incidental to the general 

  representation of bondholders in the enforcement and protection of their 

  rights. 

    4. The state supreme court shall have jurisdiction of  any  action  or 

  proceeding  by  the  trustee on behalf of such bondholders. Venue of any 

  such action or proceeding shall be laid in the county. 

    5. Any such trustee, whether or not the issue of bonds represented  by 

  such  trustee has been declared due and payable, shall be entitled as of 

  right to the appointment of a receiver of  any  part  or  parts  of  the 

  properties  the  revenues  of  which are pledged for the security of the 

  bonds of such issue, and,  subject  to  any  pledge  or  agreement  with 

  holders  of  such  bonds, such receiver may enter and take possession of 

  such part or parts of the properties and shall take  possession  of  all 

  moneys  and  other  property  derived  from  such  part or parts of such 

  properties and proceed with any construction thereon or the  acquisition 

  of  any  property,  real  or personal, in connection therewith which the 

  authority is under obligation  to  do,  and  to  operate,  maintain  and 

  reconstruct such part or parts of the properties and collect and receive 

  all revenues there after arising therefrom subject to any pledge thereof 

  or  agreement  with  bondholders relating thereto and perform the public 

  duties and carry out the agreements and  obligations  of  the  authority 

  under  the  direction of the court. In any suit, action or proceeding by 

  the trustee, the fees, counsel fees and expenses of the trustee  and  of 

  the  receiver,  if  any,  shall constitute taxable disbursements and all 

  costs and disbursements allowed by the court shall be a first charge  on 

  any revenues derived from the properties. 

    6.  Before  declaring  the  principal  of  bonds  due and payable, the 

  trustee  shall  first  give  thirty  days'  notice  in  writing  to  the 

  authority. 

    * NB There are 2 § 1199-hhhh's 

 

 
    * § 1199-iiii. State and municipalities not liable on authority bonds. 

  Neither  the  state nor any municipality shall be liable on the bonds of 

  the authority and such bonds shall not be a debt of the state or of  any 

  municipality,  and  such  bonds  shall  contain  on  the  face thereof a 

  statement to such effect. 

    * NB There are 2 § 1199-iiii's 

 

 
    * §  1199-jjjj.  Moneys  of the authority. All monies of the authority 

  from whatever source derived shall be  paid  to  the  treasurer  of  the 

  authority and shall be deposited forthwith in a bank or banks designated 

  by the authority. The monies in such accounts shall be paid out on check 

  of  the  treasurer  upon  requisition  by  such person or persons as the 

  authority may authorize to make such requisitions. All deposits of  such 

  monies  shall  be  secured by obligations of the United States or of the 

  state or of any municipality of a market value equal at all times to the 

  amount on deposit and all banks and trust companies  are  authorized  to 

  give  such  security  for  such  deposits.  To  the  extent practicable, 

  consistent with the cash requirements of the authority, all such  monies 

  shall  be  deposited  in  interest bearing accounts. The authority shall 

  have power, notwithstanding the provisions of this section, to  contract 

  with  the  holders of any bonds as to the custody, collection, security, 



  investment and payment of any monies of the authority or any monies held 

  in trust or otherwise for the payment of bonds  or  any  way  to  secure 

  bonds,  and  carry  out  any  such  contract  notwithstanding  that such 

  contract may be inconsistent with the provisions of this section. Monies 

  held in trust or otherwise for the payment of bonds or  in  any  way  to 

  secure  bonds  and  deposits  of  such monies may be secured in the same 

  manner as monies of the authority and all banks and trust companies  are 

  authorized  to  give  such security for such deposits. Any monies of the 

  authority not required for immediate use or  disbursement  may,  at  the 

  discretion  of the authority, be invested in those obligations specified 

  pursuant to the provision of section ninety-eight-a of the state finance 

  law. Subject to the provisions of any contract  with  bond  holders  and 

  with  the  approval  of  the  state  comptroller,  the  authority  shall 

  prescribe a system of accounts. 

    * NB There are 2 § 1199-jjjj's 

 

 
    * §  1199-kkkk.  Bonds legal investments for fiduciaries. The bonds of 

  the authority are hereby made securities in which all  public  officials 

  and  bodies of the state and all municipalities, all insurance companies 

  and associations and other persons carrying on  an  insurance  business, 

  all   banks,   bankers,  trust  companies,  savings  banks  and  savings 

  associations,  including  savings  and  loan  associations,   investment 

  companies  and  other  persons  carrying  on  a  banking  business,  and 

  administrators, guardians, executors, trustees and other fiduciaries and 

  all other persons whatsoever, who are now or may hereafter be authorized 

  to invest in bonds or other obligations of the state, may  properly  and 

  legally  invest funds including capital in their control or belonging to 

  them. The bonds are also hereby made securities which may  be  deposited 

  with  and may be received by all public officers and bodies of the state 

  all municipalities for any purposes for which the deposit  of  bonds  or 

  other obligations of the state is now or hereafter may be authorized. 

    * NB There are 2 § 1199-kkkk's 

 

 
 

    * §  1199-llll. Agreement with the state. The state does hereby pledge 

  to and agree with the holders of  any  bonds  issued  by  the  authority 

  pursuant to this title that the state will not alter or limit the rights 

  hereby  vested  in  the  authority  to  purchase,  construct,  maintain, 

  operate,  repair,  improve,  increase,  enlarge,  extend,   reconstruct, 

  renovate,  rehabilitate or dispose of any water or sewer project, or any 

  part or parts thereof, for which bonds of the authority shall have  been 

  issued,  to  establish  and collect rates, rents, fees and other charges 

  referred to in this title and to fulfill the terms of any agreement made 

  with or for the benefit of the holders of the bonds or with  any  public 

  corporation or person with reference to such project or part thereof, or 

  in  any way impair the rights and remedies of the bondholders, until the 

  bonds, together with the interest thereon,  including  interest  on  any 

  unpaid   installments  of  interest,  and  all  costs  and  expenses  in 

  connection with any action  or  proceeding  by  or  on  behalf  of  such 

  holders,  are  fully  met and discharged. The authority is authorized to 

  include this pledge and agreement of the state  in  any  agreement  with 

  bondholders. 

    * NB There are 2 § 1199-llll's 

 



 
    * §  1199-mmmm.  Exemption  from  taxes, assessments and certain fees; 

  payments in lieu of taxes. 1. It is hereby determined that the  creation 

  of  the  authority  and the carrying out of its corporate purposes is in 

  all respects for the benefit of the people of the county and  the  state 

  and  is  a  public  purpose,  and  the  authority  shall  be regarded as 

  performing a  governmental  function  in  the  exercise  of  the  powers 

  conferred  upon  it  by  this title and shall not be required to pay any 

  taxes, special ad valorem levies or special assessments  upon  any  real 

  property  owned by it or any filing, recording or transfer fees or taxes 

  in relation to instruments filed, recorded or transferred by  it  or  on 

  its  behalf  provided, however, that any real property owned or acquired 

  by the authority outside of the  district  shall  be  exempt  from  real 

  property  taxes,  ad valorem levies or special assessments only pursuant 

  to and to the extent provided by an agreement with the governing body of 

  the municipality in which such real property is located. 

    2. The authority may pay,  or  may  enter  into  agreements  with  any 

  municipality  not  located  within  the  county  to  pay,  a sum or sums 

  annually or  otherwise  or  to  provide  other  considerations  to  such 

  municipality  with  respect  to  real  property  owned  by the authority 

  located within such municipality and constituting a part  of  its  water 

  system. 

    3.  Any  bonds  issued pursuant to this title together with the income 

  therefrom shall be exempt from taxation except for transfer  and  estate 

  taxes. The revenues, moneys and all other property and all activities of 

  the  authority  shall  be exempt from all taxes and governmental fees or 

  charges, whether imposed by the state  or  any  municipality,  including 

  without  limitation  real  estate taxes, franchise taxes, sales taxes or 

  other excise taxes. 

    4. The state  hereby  covenants  with  the  purchasers  and  with  all 

  subsequent  holders  and  transferees  of  bonds issued by the authority 

  pursuant to this title,  in  consideration  of  the  acceptance  of  and 

  payment  for  the bonds, that the bonds of the authority issued pursuant 

  to this title and the income therefrom shall be exempt from taxation  as 

  aforestated in subdivision three of this section, and that all revenues, 

  moneys,  and  other property pledged to secure the payment of such bonds 

  shall at all  times  be  free  from  taxation  as  aforestated  in  such 

  subdivision. 

    * NB There are 2 § 1199-mmmm's 

 

 
    * §  1199-nnnn.  Actions against the authority. 1. Except in an action 

  for wrongful death, no action or special proceeding shall be  prosecuted 

  or  maintained  against  the  authority for personal injury or damage to 

  real or personal property alleged to have been sustained  by  reason  of 

  the  negligence or wrongful act of the authority or any member, officer, 

  agent or employee thereof, unless: 

    (a) a notice of claim  shall  have  been  made  and  served  upon  the 

  authority  within  the  time  limit prescribed by and in compliance with 

  section fifty-e of the general municipal law; 

    (b) it shall appear by and as an allegation in the complaint or moving 

  papers that at least thirty days have elapsed since the service of  such 

  notice  and  that  adjustment  or  payment thereof has been neglected or 

  refused; and 

    (c) the action or special proceeding shall  be  commenced  within  one 

  year  and  ninety  days  after the happening of the event upon which the 



  claim is based. 

    An action for wrongful death against the authority shall be  commenced 

  in accordance with the notice of claim and time limitation provisions of 

  title eleven of article nine of this chapter. 

    2.  Wherever  a notice of claim is served upon the authority, it shall 

  have the right to demand an examination of the claimant relative to  the 

  occurrence  and  extent  of  the  injuries or damages for which claim is 

  made, in accordance with  the  provisions  of  section  fifty-h  of  the 

  general municipal law. 

    3.  The  authority may require any person presenting for settlement an 

  account or claim for any cause whatever  against  the  authority  to  be 

  sworn  before  a  member,  counsel,  or an attorney, officer or employee 

  thereof designated for such purpose, concerning such  account  or  claim 

  and  when  so  sworn,  to answer orally as to any facts relative to such 

  account or claim. The authority shall have power to settle or adjust all 

  claims in favor of or against the authority. 

    4. Any action or proceeding to which the authority or  the  people  of 

  the  state  may  be  parties,  in  which  any  question arises as to the 

  validity of this title, shall be preferred over all other  civil  causes 

  of  action  or  cases, except election causes of action or cases, in all 

  courts of the state and shall be heard and determined in  preference  to 

  all  other  civil  business  pending  therein  except  election  causes, 

  irrespective of position on the calendar. The same preference  shall  be 

  granted  upon  application of the authority or its counsel in any action 

  or proceeding questioning the  validity  of  this  title  in  which  the 

  authority  may  be allowed to intervene. The venue of any such action or 

  proceeding shall be laid in the supreme court of the county. 

    5. The rate of interest to be paid by the authority upon any  judgment 

  for  which  it is liable, other than a judgment against the authority on 

  bonds, shall be the rate prescribed by section five thousand four of the 

  civil practice law and rules.  Interest  on  payments  of  principal  or 

  interest  on  any bonds in default shall accrue at the rate or rates set 

  forth in such bonds from the due date thereof until  paid  or  otherwise 

  satisfied. 

    * NB There are 2 § 1199-nnnn's 

 

 
    §  1199-pppp. Construction and purchase contracts. The authority shall 

  let contracts for construction or purchase of  supplies,  materials,  or 

  equipment  pursuant to sections one hundred one and one hundred three of 

  the general municipal law and  shall  be  let  in  accordance  with  the 

  provisions of state law pertaining to prevailing wages, labor standards, 

  and  working  hours. Nothing in this section shall be construed to limit 

  the power of the authority  to  do  any  construction  directly  by  the 

  officers, agents and employees of the authority. 

 

 
    * §  1199-qqqq. Code of ethics. 1. Definition. As used in this section 

  the term "authority employee" shall mean any member, officer or employee 

  of the authority. 

    2. Rule with respect to conflicts of interest. No  authority  employee 

  should have any interest, financial or otherwise, direct or indirect, or 

  engage  in any business or transaction or professional activity or incur 

  any obligation of any nature, which is in substantial conflict with  the 

  proper discharge of his or her duties in the public interest. 

    3. Standards. (a) No authority employee should accept other employment 



  which will impair his or her independence of judgment in the exercise of 

  his or her official duties. 

    (b)  No  authority  employee should accept employment or engage in any 

  business or professional activity which will  require  the  employee  to 

  disclose  confidential  information which he or she has gained by reason 

  of his or her official position or authority. 

    (c) No authority employee  should  disclose  confidential  information 

  acquired by the employee in the course of his or her official duties nor 

  use such information to further his or her personal interests. 

    (d)  No  authority  employee  should  use or attempt to use his or her 

  official position to secure unwarranted  privileges  or  exemptions  for 

  himself or herself or others. 

    (e)  No  authority  employee  should  engage  in  any  transaction  as 

  representative or agent of the authority with  any  business  entity  in 

  which  he  or she has a direct or indirect financial interest that might 

  reasonably tend to conflict with the proper  discharge  of  his  or  her 

  official duties. 

    (f)  An  authority  employee  should  not  by  his or her conduct give 

  reasonable basis for the  impression  that  any  person  can  improperly 

  influence  such  employee  or  unduly  enjoy  his  or  her  favor in the 

  performance of his or her official duties, or that he or she is affected 

  by the kinship, rank, position or influence of any party or person. 

    (g)  An  authority  employee  should  abstain  from  making   personal 

  investments  in enterprises which he or she has reason to believe may be 

  directly involved in decisions to be made by the employee or which  will 

  otherwise  create  substantial  conflict  between his or her duty in the 

  public interest and his or her private interest. 

    (h) An authority employee  should  endeavor  to  pursue  a  course  of 

  conduct  which  will not raise suspicion among the public that he or she 

  is likely to be engaged in acts that are in  violation  of  his  or  her 

  trust. 

    (i)  No  authority employee employed on a full-time basis nor any firm 

  or association of which such an employee is a member nor  corporation  a 

  substantial  portion  of  the  stock  of  which  is  owned or controlled 

  directly or indirectly by such employee, should sell goods  or  services 

  to  any  person,  firm,  corporation or association which is licensed or 

  whose rates are fixed by the authority in which such  employee  services 

  or is employed. 

    (j)  If any authority employee shall have a financial interest, direct 

  or indirect, having a value of ten  thousand  dollars  or  more  in  any 

  activity which is subject to the jurisdiction of a regulatory agency, he 

  or  she should file with the secretary of state a written statement that 

  he or she has such a financial interest in such activity which statement 

  shall be open to public inspection. 

    4. Violations. In addition to  any  penalty  contained  in  any  other 

  provision  of  law  any  such authority employee who shall knowingly and 

  intentionally violate any of the  provisions  of  this  section  may  be 

  fined, suspended or removed from office or employment. 

    * NB There are 2 § 1199-qqqq's 

 

 
    * §  1199-rrrr.  Equal  employment  opportunity.  The  authority shall 

  ensure that all employees or  applicants  for  employment  are  afforded 

  equal employment opportunity without discrimination. 

    * NB There are 2 § 1199-rrrr's 

 



 
    * §  1199-ssss.  Audit  and  annual  report.  In  conformity  with the 

  provisions of section five of  article  ten  of  the  constitution,  the 

  accounts  of  the  authority  shall be subject to the supervision of the 

  state  comptroller  and  an  annual  audit  shall  be  performed  by  an 

  independent certified accountant. The authority shall annually submit to 

  the  board  of  supervisors,  county  treasurer,  governor and the state 

  comptroller and to the chairperson of the senate finance  committee  and 

  the  chairperson  of  the  assembly  ways and means committee a detailed 

  report pursuant to the provisions of section two thousand eight  hundred 

  of this chapter, and a copy of such report shall be filed with the clerk 

  of the board of supervisors and the county treasurer. 

    * NB There are 2 § 1199-ssss's 

 

 
    * §  1199-tttt. Environmental applications, proceedings, approvals and 

  permits. Any application in relation to the purposes of or  contemplated 

  by  this title heretofore filed, or any proceeding heretofore commenced, 

  by the county or  any  agency  thereof  with  the  state  department  of 

  environmental  conservation,  the  department  of  transportation or any 

  other  state  agency  or  instrumentality  or  with  the  United  States 

  environmental   protection   agency  or  any  other  federal  agency  or 

  instrumentality shall inure to and for the benefit of the  authority  to 

  the  same  extent  and in the same manner as if the authority had been a 

  party to such application or proceeding  from  its  inception,  and  the 

  authority  shall be deemed a party thereto, to the extent not prohibited 

  by any federal law. Any license, approval, permit or decision heretofore 

  or hereafter issued or granted pursuant to or as a result  of  any  such 

  application  or  proceeding shall inure to the benefit of and be binding 

  upon the authority and shall be assigned and transferred by  the  county 

  or  any  agency  thereof  to  the  authority, unless such assignment and 

  transfer is prohibited by federal law. 

    * NB There are 2 § 1199-tttt's 

 

 
 

    * §   1199-uuuu.   Limited  liability.  Neither  the  members  of  the 

  authority, nor any municipality,  officer  or  employee  acting  in  its 

  behalf,  while  acting  within  the  scope  of their authority, shall be 

  subject to any  personal  liability  resulting  from  the  construction, 

  maintenance  or  operation  of any of the properties of the authority or 

  from carrying out any of the  powers  expressly  given  in  this  title; 

  provided,  however,  that this section shall not be held to apply to any 

  independent contractor. 

    * NB There are 2 § 1199-uuuu's 

 

 
    * §   1199-vvvv.   Governmental   capacity   of   the   authority  and 

  municipalities. The authority, the county and the other  municipalities, 

  in  carrying  out  their  respective powers and duties under this title, 

  shall be deemed to be acting in  a  governmental  capacity  and  in  the 

  performance of an essential governmental function. 

    * NB There are 2 § 1199-vvvv's 

 

 



    * §   1199-wwww.  Separability  clause.  If  any  section,  clause  or 

  provision in this title shall  be  held  by  a  competent  court  to  be 

  unconstitutional  or ineffective in whole or in part, to the extent that 

  it is not  unconstitutional  or  ineffective,  it  shall  be  valid  and 

  effective,  and  no  other section, clause or provision shall on account 

  thereof be deemed invalid or ineffective. 

    * NB There are 2 § 1199-wwww's 

 

 
    * §  1199-xxxx.  Effect  of  inconsistent provisions. In so far as the 

  provisions of this title are inconsistent with  the  provisions  of  any 

  other  act,  general or special, or of any charter, local law, ordinance 

  or resolution of any municipality, the provisions of this title shall be 

  controlling.  Nothing  contained  in  this  section  shall  be  held  to 

  supplement  or  otherwise  expand  the powers or duties of the authority 

  otherwise set forth in this title. Except as specifically  provided  for 

  in  this  title,  in the performance of any of its functions, powers and 

  duties, the authority shall be subject  to  all  applicable  general  or 

  special  laws  of  the  state,  the  county  charter, and any local law, 

  ordinance or resolution of the county. 

    * NB There are 2 § 1199-xxxx's 

 

 
    * §  1199-yyyy. Charges by the authority; method of collection. 1. The 

  authority may fix and collect, on any equitable basis, rates,  fees  and 

  other  charges  for  the  use of its water or sewer facilities or of the 

  services or commodities provided by the authority. Such rates,  rentals, 

  fees  and  other  charges  may be fixed and collected from any person or 

  corporation to  which  such  facilities,  services  or  commodities  are 

  provided or made available from the authority. Such rates, rentals, fees 

  and  other  charges may be the same or different for each classification 

  of user or service recipient and may, by way  of  example,  reflect  the 

  source  and  composition of the sewage or location of services or system 

  costs and expenses. The authority shall not establish, fix or revise any 

  classification or user or rate, rental or fee or other charge unless and 

  until the authority has  held  a  public  hearing  at  which  interested 

  persons  shall  have  an  opportunity  to  be heard concerning the same. 

  Notice of any such public hearing shall be published at least  ten  days 

  before  the  date  set  therefore,  in at least one newspaper of general 

  circulation in the boundaries of the authority. Such  notice  shall  set 

  forth the date, time and place of such hearing and shall include a brief 

  description  of matters to be considered at such meeting. A copy of such 

  notice shall be available for inspection by  the  public.  At  any  such 

  hearing,  any  interested  persons shall have an opportunity to be heard 

  concerning  the  matters  under  consideration.  Any  decision  by   the 

  authority  at  such  public  hearing  or  relating  to the matters under 

  consideration at such hearing shall be in writing and made available  in 

  the  office  of  the  authority  for  public  inspection  during regular 

  business hours. 

    2. All rates, fees and other charges for the use of the facilities  or 

  services  or commodities provided or made available by the authority and 

  billed directly by the  authority  to  the  user  or  service  recipient 

  pursuant  to  a classification of users or service recipients adopted by 

  the authority as herein provided shall be lien upon  the  real  property 

  upon  which,  or  in connection with which, services are provided or are 

  made available, as and from the first date fixed for a payment  of  such 



  rates,  rentals,  fees  and  other  charges.  Any  such  lien shall take 

  precedent over  all  other  liens,  or  encumbrances,  except  taxes  or 

  assessments.  The  treasurer of the authority shall prepare and transmit 

  to the board of supervisors of the county, on or before the first day of 

  November in each year, a list of those properties using such  facilities 

  or  for  which  such  services  or  commodities  were  provided  or made 

  available and from which the payment of rates, rentals, fees  and  other 

  charges  are  in  arrears  for a period of thirty days or more after the 

  last day fixed for payment  of  such  rates,  rentals,  fees  and  other 

charges  without  penalty. The list shall contain a brief description of such 

properties, the names of the persons or corporations liable to  pay for the 

same, and the amount chargeable to each, including penalties and interest, as 

applicable, computed to December thirty-first of that year. 

  The  board  of  supervisors  shall levy such sums against the properties 

liable and shall state the amount thereof in a separate  column  in  the 

annual  tax  rolls  of  the  county  under the heading "water charge" or 

"sewer  disposal  charge,"  as  applicable.  Such   amounts,   excluding 

penalties  and  interest  when  collected  by  the  county  collector or 

receiver of taxes, shall be paid over to the treasurer of the authority.   

  Penalties and interest shall be retained by the  collector  which  shall   

become  a part of the general funds of the county. All of the provisions   of 

the tax law of the state  governing  enforcement  and  collection  of   

unpaid  taxes  or  assessments for special improvements not inconsistent  

herewith shall apply to the collection of such  unpaid  rates,  rentals, fees 

and other charges. 

    * NB There are 2 § 1199-yyyy's 

 



































 
 
 

 
MISSION STATEMENT AND PERFORMANCE 

MEASUREMENTS 
 

A02-002 
Adopted by LCWSA Board by motion at regular monthly meeting February 23, 2011 
Reviewed by LCWSA Board by motion at regular monthly meeting March 23. 2012 
Adopted by LCWSA Board by motion at regular monthly meeting February 27, 2013 
Reviewed and approved by motion at regular monthly meeting April 23, 2014 
Reviewed and approved by motion at regular monthly meeting April 22, 2015 

 
 

Mission Statement:  
The LCWSA mission is to provide high quality, environmentally sound, efficient, reliable, 
and affordable water and sewer services to the people who live, work and visit Livingston 
County.   
  
 
Goal – Maintain a high quality water source. 
The following outlines what the LCWSA is doing to achieve this goal: 

a) Changing water quality requirements - Several years ago, THM and HAA testing requirements were placed 
on our system.  The LCWSA system did have issues with THM and HAA production.  To meet this 
challenge, we have installed 3 rechlorination stations along our system so that we could minimize chlorine 
loading, and ultimately the development of THM and HAA's.  This, however, proved to not be enough to 
avoid issues with these contaminates developing.   In 2011, we installed mixing equipment to our main tank 
in hopes of keeping the development of THM's and HAA's out of the system.  Results of this effort are yet 
to be evaluated.  If this effort is successful, the 2014 capital project will continue to add mixing equipment 
to the system to improve water quality.   

b) Chlorination and Bacterial Sampling – Meeting DOH and EPA requirements - Consistent sampling for 
bacteriological issues takes place as required by the Department of Health.  Annually, all chlorine analyzers 
are calibrated to insure proper treatment of water in the system.  

c) Flushing - Flushing improves water quality in areas where usage is low.  Also, the flushing process moves 
more fresh water into the system so aged water is not an issue.  LCWSA flushes each line every other year, 
and dead-ends annually in summer months. 

d) The LCWSA provides water to our customers through several different water sources and filtration plants 
operated by different municipalities.  Working with supplying municipalities helps to keep the lines of 
communication open, and reviewing their water quality reports is essential to high water quality being 
served to our customers.  The LCWSA also works toward moving customers to the highest water quality 
source available.  An example is the Dacola Shores- West Lake Road project.  When completed, this 
project will facilitate moving approximately 191 customers to the Hemlock Lake source.    

e) Backflow prevention program – This program was implemented to decrease the chance that contamination 
of the water supply would occur due to a decrease in pressure, which would allow backflow into the 
system.  The program has required most non-residential customers to install testable backflow prevention 
devices and the customers are annually required to test that equipment and provide certified results.  Also, 
all new residential water customers are provided a check valve, which is required to be installed to prevent 
backflow.  

 



Goal – Environmentally sound sewage treatment.  
The following outlines what the LCWSA is doing to achieve this goal: 

a) LCWSA has diligently worked its way out of a consent order from the NYS DEC.  This was 
accomplished in September 2011.  LCWSA completed all projects that were agreed upon by both parties.  
The outcome of the capital improvements and operational changes is that the Lakeville plant only had one 
regulatory issue in 2011, which was a result of the ongoing construction.  The staff reports that the 
Lakeville plant has continued to meet permit requirements, insuring the safety of the environment is 
maintained throughout 2012. 
b) Avoiding overflows - LCWSA has an active Inflow and Infiltration program and an overflow prevention 
program.  Every five years, each pipe section is cleaned and videotaped.  Management then evaluates each 
section for needed repairs and develops the annual Inflow and Infiltration program for repairs.  In 2012, 
staff cleaned and televised 30,200 lf of sewer main.  Also in 2012, installation of two link pipe sealer 
sleeves on Grove and Main Street.  Also lined 360 lf of sewer on North Street.  

 
Goal- Provide efficient water and sewer services. 
The following outlines what the LCWSA is doing to achieve this goal: 

To provide efficient service is to be "productive without waste."  It is our goal for all staff to be productive 
without waste.  Several projects the LCWSA has implemented have led to more efficient practices. 
a) Operations and Administration procedures development  - This is an ongoing effort to standardize 
activities and to insure correct procedures are followed, resulting in less repeated activities. 
b) Electronic monitoring of water and sewer systems - The observation of mechanical equipment has been 
reduced from an 8-hour activity for two people, to a 1/2-hour activity for one person, utilizing electronic 
monitoring. 
c) Predictive maintenance - The evaluation of data gathered by staff, provide direct maintenance and 
replacement procedures for our pump stations.  Using predictive tools pinpoints issues faster, so that larger 
issues can be avoided. 
d) LCWSA utilizes simple (timers) to complex (multi-step controllers) to automate operations in both 
sewer and water systems.  Over time, more of this technology will be utilized to make jobs more efficient.  
e) Training – Staff training has aided in the blending of water and sewer positions, thereby increasing 
efficiency.   

 
Goal – Provision of reliable and environmentally sustainable sewer and water 
service 
The following outlines what the LCWSA is doing to achieve this goal: 

a) Reliability of water and sewer systems is built by a 2-fold approach: 
First - Backup systems and emergency operations 

LCWSA sewer and water systems provide "belts" and "suspenders" backup systems for most critical 
systems. 
“Belts”- 2 pump systems - each pump station is able to meet the needs for that station, utilizing one pump, 
with the second for backup and unusual situations.  Also, most critical pump stations have a back-up 
system for controls, utilizing a mechanical system if the electronic system fails.   
“Suspenders” - Backup power - all critical pump stations have back-up power and may also have double 
back-up with installation of "plug-ins" for portable generators. 

Second - Preventative maintenance 
LCWSA is striving to move maintenance from emergency or failure maintenance to preventative 
maintenance, thus increasing the reliability of our systems.  The LCWSA is doing this with the 
computerization of maintenance to allow the staff pinpointing of issues right in the field.   The LCWSA has 
also implemented replacement programs that are set on a schedule that will help us avoid failure of 
equipment.  
 
b) Environmentally sustainable water and sewer service –  

Sustainability practices are viewed as those practices that work at the root of an issue to solve it in 
a conclusive and environmental manner:  



1. Education of our customers through water quality reports which highlight how to 
conserve water, or educational flyers on what not to flush into the sewer system.    

2. Implementation of capital repair and replacement programs to replace inefficient 
equipment with energy-saving equipment.     

3. Electrical usage tracking by staff identifies abnormalities in energy use.  This 
program helps us deal with equipment issues before they become a big problem.  

 
Goal- Affordable provision of water and sewer services  
The following outlines what the LCWSA is doing to achieve this goal: 

a) MEGA - Savings and stability in utility costs are provided through our membership in the MEGA 
organization.  This membership joins municipalities together to purchase electric and gas service as a 
group, thus providing us purchasing power and ultimately, lower costs.  
b) Leak detection program – This program saves on the purchase of water costs, keeping costs stable.  The 
lost water has been reduced to 15%.   
c) Utilization of methane gas - The treatment of sewer sludge generates methane gas, which is utilized in 
the treatment process to provide the fuel for the boiler to heat the digesters.  Utilization of this gas provides 
cost savings. 
d) Purchasing practices – LCWSA staff utilizes multiple quotes in purchase of items other than state bid 
items and local bids. This provides assurance that prices are competitive.   
e) Staff analysis of electrical usage over time, water consumption verses retail sales and  fuel usage, have 
led to savings because problems have been identified.    
 

Goal – High quality customer service 
The following outlines what the LCWSA is doing to achieve this goal: 

a) Universal application of LCWSA rules to every customer in a consistent, respectful manner.  No special 
favors. 
b) Providing accurate information to customer questions.   
c) Assisting customers in solving problems 
d) Being on time for appointments.  
e) The LCWSA website gives customers useful information on many topics of interest.  

 
 
Goal – Reliable reporting  
                  a.  Meeting reporting rules, requirements and recommendations of the following regulatory  
                       agencies: 

i. NYS Authority Board Office 
ii. GASB/FASB account rules 

iii. NYSDEC 
iv. NYSDOH 
v. USEPA 

b. Assessment of operating and financial measurement reports on a regular basis by the Board and 
senior staff to ascertain whether goals are being met.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





























































H:\POLICY\WASA policy approved\A05-000 Governance Committee Charter-linked.doc 1

 

 

 

 

 

 

GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE CHARTER 

 
A05-000 

Updated 11/2006 

Resolution 2006-44 

 
This Governance Committee Charter was adopted by the Board of the Livingston County Water 

& Sewer Authority, a public benefit corporation established under the laws of the State of New 

York, December 27, 2006. 

 

Purpose 

The purpose of the Governance committee is to assist the Board by: 

• Keeping the Board informed of current best practices in corporate governance; 

• Reviewing corporate governance trends for their applicability to the LCWSA; 

• Advising those responsible for appointing members to the Board on the skill, qualities 

and professional or educational experiences necessary to be effective Board members. 

 

Powers of the Governance Committee 

The Board Members have delegated to the governance committee the power and authority 

necessary to discharge its duties, as per the Bylaws of the LCWSA. 

 

Composition and Selection 

The membership of the committee shall be as set forth in accordance with and pursuant to Article 

E, Section 1 of the Authority’s bylaws.  The governance committee shall consist of no fewer than 

three independent members of the Board.  The governance committee members shall be 

appointed by, and will serve at the discretion of the Board. 

The governance committee members should be knowledgeable or become knowledgeable in 

matters pertaining to governance. 

 

Committee Structure and Meetings 

The governance committee will meet as necessary to adequately fulfill all the obligations and 

duties outlined in the charter.  All committee members are expected to attend each meeting, in 

person or via telephone or videoconference.  Meetings will be held per the LCWSA Bylaws. 

 

Reports 

The governance committee shall: 

• Report its actions and recommendations to the Board at the next regular meeting of the 

Board. 

 



H:\POLICY\WASA policy approved\A05-000 Governance Committee Charter-linked.doc 2

Responsibilities 

To accomplish the objectives of good governance and accountability, the governance committee 

has responsibilities related to : (a) the Authority’s Board; (b) evaluation of the Authority’s 

policies; and (c) other miscellaneous issues. 

 

Relationship to the Authority’s Board 

The Board has delegated to the governance committee the responsibility to review, develop, 

draft, revise or oversee policies and practices for which the governance committee has specific 

expertise, as follows: 

• Develop the Authority’s governance practices as necessary.  These practices should 

address transparency, independence, accountability, fiduciary responsibilities, and 

management oversight. 

• Develop the competencies and personal attributes required of members to assist the 

Livingston County Board of Supervisors in identifying qualified individuals. 

 

In addition, the governance committee shall: 

• Recommend to the Board the number and structure of committees to be created by the 

Board. 

• Provide recommendations to the Board regarding board member education, including 

new member orientation 

• Provide recommendations to the Board on performance evaluation, including 

coordination and oversight of such evaluation of the Board, its committees and senior 

management in the Authority’s governance process. 

 

Evaluation of the Authority’s Policies 

Review as needed: 

• Code of ethics 

• Policies such as (a) purchasing; (b) disposition of real or personal property 

• Bylaws.  

 

 



 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

H:\PROCEDURES\POLICY\WASA policy approved\A05-001 Bylaws-linked.doc 

Approved April 23, 2008   

Underline = LCWSA legislation,     ( ) = Deleted text,    Bold = added text 

A05-001 

 

 BY LAWS OF THE LIVINGSTON COUNTY WATER & SEWER AUTHORITY 

 

Article A: Organization  Article F: Officers 

 Section 1: Administration  Section 1: Officers 

 Section 2: Fiscal Year  Section 2: Chairperson 

 Section 3: Form of Seal  Section 3: Vice-Chairperson 

 Section 4: District of Definition  Section 4: Treasurer 

    Section 5: Secretary 

Article B: Members   Section 6: Additional Duties 

  Section 1: Members  Section 7: Election of Officers

 Section 2: Qualifications of Members  Section 8: Removal and 

  Section 3: Official Oaths   Vacancies  

  Section 4: Vacancies 

  Section 5: Filling of Vacancies Article G: Records 

  Section 6: Removal of Member  Section 1: Definitions 

  Section 7: Unexcused Absence  Section 2: Records Required to 

   Of Member   be Maintained 

  Section 8: Compensation of Members 

    Article H: Amendment of By Laws 

 

Article C: Meetings 

  Section 1: Annual Meeting 

  Section 2: Regular Meetings 

  Section 3: Special Meetings 

  Section 4: Notice of Members 

  Section 5: Quorum and Exercise of Powers 

  Section 6: Conduct of Meetings 

  Section 7: Procedure 

  Section 8: Minutes 

 

Article D: Open Meetings 

  Section 1: General 

  Section 2: Accessibility 

  Section 3: Public Notice 

  Section 4: Executive Sessions 

  Section 5: Attendance 

 

Article E: Committees 

  Section 1: Committees 

  Section 2 Meetings 

  Section 3: Conduct of Meeting 

  Section 4: Minutes      

   



 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

H:\PROCEDURES\POLICY\WASA policy approved\A05-001 Bylaws-linked.doc 

Approved April 23, 2008   

Underline = LCWSA legislation,     ( ) = Deleted text,    Bold = added text 

 

ARTICLE A: ORGANIZATION 

 

Section 1: Administration; The powers, organization and administration of the Livingston 

County Water and Sewer Authority (the “Authority”) shall be as authorized and established by 

the provisions of the Livingston County Water and Sewer Authority Act (the “Act”). The powers 

of the Authority shall be vested in the members thereof in office from time to time. 

 

Section 2: Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the Authority shall begin January 1 and end 

December 31 of each year. 

 

Section 3: Form of Seal. The seal of the Authority shall be in such form as may be 

determined, from time to time, by the Authority. The seal on any Authority obligation for the 

payment of money may be a facsimile. 

 

ARTICLE B: MEMBERS 

 

Section 1: Members. The Authority shall be governed by a Board consisting of seven (7) 

members (“Members”) appointed by resolution by the Board of Supervisors of Livingston 

County (the “Board of Supervisors”). 

 

Section 2: Qualifications of Members. Each member must, at the time he/she is 

appointed, have attained the age of eighteen years, be a citizen of the United States, a resident of 

New York State and resident of Livingston County.   

a) Pursuant to subdivision 3 of Section 2824 of the PAL, no Board member, 

including the chairperson, shall serve as the Agency’s chief executive officer, 

executive director, chief financial officer, comptroller, or hold any other 

equivalent position while also serving as a member of the Board. 

b) Pursuant to subdivision 3 of Section 2825 of the PAL, all Agency Board 

members, officers and employees shall file annual financial disclosure statements 

with the Board of Ethics of the County of Livingston (the “County”) pursuant to 

Article 18 of the GML of the State. 

 

Section 3: Official Oaths. Each Member shall, within thirty (30) days after notice of 

his/her appointment or within thirty (30) days after the commencement of his/her term of office, 

take and subscribe  to a oath or affirmation before entering the duties of his/her office. 

 “The oath shall be administered by the County Clerk or Assistant County Clerk of 

Livingston County, and shall be filed in the office of the County Clerk of Livingston County.”  

 

Section 4: Vacancies. The office of a Member shall be deemed vacant upon the 

happening of one of the following events before the expiration of the term thereof 

a.) The death of the Member 

b.) The resignation of the Member 

c.) The Member ceasing to be a resident of Livingston County; 



 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

H:\PROCEDURES\POLICY\WASA policy approved\A05-001 Bylaws-linked.doc 

Approved April 23, 2008   

Underline = LCWSA legislation,     ( ) = Deleted text,    Bold = added text 

d.) The Member is convicted of a felony or a crime involving a violation 

of the oath of office; 

e.) The entry of a judgment or order of a court of competent jurisdiction 

declaring the Member to be incompetent; 

f.) The refusal or neglect of the Member to file the official oath within 

thirty (30) days after commencement of his/her term, except as 

otherwise provided by law. 

g.) The unexcused absence of a Member from three (3) consecutive 

regular meeting, as more fully set forth in, Article C. 

 

Section 5: Filling of Vacancies. Vacancies occurring at the end of a term shall each be 

filled in the manner provided in. Section 1. above and for a three (3) year term. Vacancies 

occurring otherwise than by the expiration of a term shall be filled in the same manner as set 

forth in. Section 1. for the remainder of the unexpired term. 

 

Section 6: Removal of Member. A Member may be removed from office by the Board 

of Supervisors for inefficiency, neglect of duty or misconduct in office and for the same reasons 

as provided by law for the removal of officers of Livingston County. Prior to removal, the Board 

of Supervisors shall give such Member a copy of the charges against him/her and an opportunity 

to be heard in person or by counsel in his/her defense, upon not less than ten (10) days notice. 

 

Section 7: Unexcused Absence of Member. If a Member fails to attend three consecutive 

regular meetings of the Authority, unless such absence is for good cause and is excused by the 

Chairperson of the Authority, or other presiding officer. or in the case of the Chairperson of the 

Authority, by the Chairman of the Board of Supervisors, either prior to or subsequent to the 

meeting, the office may be deemed vacant for the purposes of the nomination and appointment of 

a successor. The Secretary of the Authority shall send a written reminder of the provisions of this 

Section to a Member who has two consecutive unexcused absences. 

 

Section 8: Compensation of Members. The Officers of the Authority shall receive from 

the Authority such salary. if any. as shall be determined from time to time by the Board of 

Supervisors. Members and officers shall be reimbursed for all their actual and necessary 

expenses, including travel expenses, incurred in carrying out their duties.  The Authority may not 

grant loans or extend credit to members, officers and employees of the Authority. 

 

 

 

 

ARTICLE C: MEETINGS 

 

Section 1: Annual Meeting. The first meeting in each fiscal year shall be the annual 

meeting of the Authority and shall be held at the time and place, within Livingston County, 

designated in the notice of same. 

 

Section 2: Regular Meetings. Regular meetings of the Authority   shall be held at the 



 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

H:\PROCEDURES\POLICY\WASA policy approved\A05-001 Bylaws-linked.doc 

Approved April 23, 2008   

Underline = LCWSA legislation,     ( ) = Deleted text,    Bold = added text 

time and place, designated at the annual meeting or from time to time by Resolution of the 

Board. 

 

Section 3: Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Authority may be called by the 

“Chairperson,” “or by the Board” or shall be called by the Secretary upon the written request of 

at least two Members. Each special meeting shall be held at the time and place, within 

Livingston County, as the person calling the meeting shall determine. 

 

Section 4: Notice of Members. No notice need be given to Members of a regular meeting 

of the Authority. Notice of the place, day and hour of every special meeting shall be given to 

each Member by delivering the notice to the Member personally or leaving the notice at his/her 

residence or usual place of business at least three (3) days before the meeting. No notice of an 

adjourned meeting of the Authority need be given to Members other than by announcement of 

the meeting. Notice of any meeting need not be given to any Member who submits a signed 

waiver of notice thereof before, at or after the meeting, nor to any Member who attends the 

meeting without protesting, prior to or at the commencement of the meeting, the lack of notice to 

him. Neither the business to be transacted at, nor the purpose of, any meeting of the Authority 

need be specified in any notice or written waiver of notice unless so required by these by laws or 

by law, except that notices of special meetings shall specify the business to be transacted. 

 

Section 5: Quorum and exercise of powers. Four (4) Members shall constitute a quorum 

authorized to transact any business presented at the meeting of the Authority. All action shall be 

taken by the affirmative vote of at least four (4) of the Members of the Authority. 

When a quorum is one present to organize a meeting, it is not broken by the subsequent 

withdrawal of a Member. The Members present may adjourn the meeting despite the absence of 

a quorum. 

 

Section 6: Conduct of Meetings. At all meetings of the Authority, the Chairperson shall 

be the presiding officer, or if the office of Chairperson is vacant or in the absence or disability of 

the Chairperson, then the Vice Chairperson shall be the presiding officer; if the office of Vice 

Chairperson is vacant or the Vice Chairperson is absent or disabled, the Members of the 

Authority shall choose a presiding officer from among those Members present, to preside at such 

meeting. The Secretary of the Authority, except as otherwise provided by the Authority shall act 

as Secretary at all meetings of the Authority, and in the absence of the Secretary or an Assistant 

Secretary, a temporary Secretary shall be appointed by the presiding officer. 

 

Section 7: Procedure. The order of business and all other matters of procedure at each 

meeting of the Authority may be determined by the presiding officer. 

 

Section 8: Minutes. Minutes shall be taken at all meetings of the Authority and its 

committees which shall consist of a record or summary of all motions, proposals, resolutions and 

any other matter formally voted upon and the vote thereon. Such minutes shall be available to the 

public in accordance with the provisions of the Freedom of Information Law. (Public Officers 

Law, Article 6) 

 



 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

H:\PROCEDURES\POLICY\WASA policy approved\A05-001 Bylaws-linked.doc 

Approved April 23, 2008   

Underline = LCWSA legislation,     ( ) = Deleted text,    Bold = added text 

 

 

 

ARTICLE D: OPEN MEETINGS 

(PUBLIC OFFICERS LAW, ARTICLE 7) 

 

Section 1: General. Every meeting of the Authority and its committees shall be open to 

the general public except for Executive Sessions. 

 

Section 2: Accessibility. The Authority shall make or cause to be made all reasonable 

efforts to ensure that meetings subject to this Section are held in facilities that permit barrier-free 

physical access to the physically handicapped. 

 

Section 3: Public Notice. Public notice of the time and place of all meetings subject to 

this Section shall be given to the news media and conspicuously posted in one or more 

designated public locations: 

a). At least 72 hours in advance if the meeting is scheduled at least one week prior 

thereto, or 

b). Otherwise, at a reasonable time prior thereto. 

 

Section 4: Executive Sessions. Upon a vote of at least four (4) Members, taken in an 

open meeting pursuant to a motion identifying the general area or areas of the subject or subjects 

to be considered, the Authority may conduct an executive session for the below enumerated 

purposes only, provided, however, that no action by formal vote shall be taken to appropriate 

public moneys: 

a) Matter which will imperil the public safety if disclosed; 

b) Any matter which may disclose the identity of a law enforcement agent or informer; 

c) Information relating to current or future investigation or prosecution of a criminal 

offense which would imperil effective law enforcement if disclosed; 

d) Discussion regarding proposed, pending or current litigation; 

e) Collective negotiations pursuant to article fourteen of the civil service law; 

f) The medical, financial, credit or employment history of a particular person or 

corporation, or matters leading to the appointment, employment, promotion, 

demotion, discipline, suspension, dismissal or removal of a particular person or 

corporation; 

g) The preparation, grading or administration of examination; and  

h) The proposed acquisition of securities, or sale or exchange of securities held by the 

Authority, but only when publicity would substantially affect the value thereof. 

i) “Any other reason authorized by law.” 

 

Section 5: Attendance. Attendance at an Executive Session shall be permitted to any 

Member and any other persons authorized by the Authority. 

 

 

ARTICLE E: COMMITTEES 



 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

H:\PROCEDURES\POLICY\WASA policy approved\A05-001 Bylaws-linked.doc 

Approved April 23, 2008   

Underline = LCWSA legislation,     ( ) = Deleted text,    Bold = added text 

 

Section 1: Committees. The Authority may create a management committee and one or 

more other committees of the Authority, each consisting of three or more Members of the 

Authority, which committees shall serve in an advisory capacity only, and no committee shall be 

delegated any powers of the Authority. The Chairperson shall have the authority to appoint and 

remove Committee Members. Appointments to regular committees shall be made as soon as 

possible after the commencement of the fiscal year. Appointments to special committees shall be 

made at the time the committee is formed. 

 

Section 2: Meetings. Meetings of any committee of the Authority may be held at such 

places within Livingston County as the committee shall determine. Regular meetings of any 

committee of the Authority shall be held at such times as may be determined by either the 

Authority or such committee, and no notice to Members of the Committee shall be required for 

any regular meeting. Special meetings of any committee shall be called by the Secretary of the 

Authority upon the request of any two Members thereof. Notice of special meetings of any 

committee shall be given by mailing the same, at least three (3) days before the day on which the 

meeting is to be held, to the address of each Member designated by him/her for such purpose (or, 

if none is designated by him/her for such purpose, to his/her last known address) or by delivering 

it personally at least twelve (12) hours in advance of the time for which the meeting is called. 

Notice of any meeting need not be given to any committee member who submits a signed waiver 

of notice thereof before, at or after the meeting of any committee need be specified in any notice 

or written waiver of notice unless so required by these By Laws, except that notices of special 

meetings shall specify the business to be transacted. 

 

 Section 3: Conduct of Meeting. The Chairperson of the committee or, in the event that 

the office of committee Chairperson is vacant or in the absence or disability of the committee 

Chairperson, such other Member of the committee as is chosen by the committee shall preside at 

each meeting of the committee. The Secretary of the Authority, except as otherwise provided by 

the Authority, shall act as Secretary at all meetings of the committee, and in the absence of the 

Secretary or any Assistant Secretary, a temporary Secretary shall be appointed by the 

Chairperson of the committee meeting. 

 

              Section 4: Minutes. All committees shall keep minutes of their meetings in accordance 

with, Article C, Section 8; minutes of committee meetings shall be circulated to all Members of 

the Authority. 

 

 

ARTICLE F: OFFICERS 

 

Section 1: Officers. The Officers of the Authority shall consist of a Chairperson. a Vice 

Chairperson. a Treasurer and a Secretary and such other officers as the Authority may appoint 

from time to time. The Chairperson. Vice Chairperson and Treasurer shall be Members of the 

Authority Board: the Secretary need not be a Member of the Authority. No person may hold 

more than one office at the same time.  

 



 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

H:\PROCEDURES\POLICY\WASA policy approved\A05-001 Bylaws-linked.doc 

Approved April 23, 2008   

Underline = LCWSA legislation,     ( ) = Deleted text,    Bold = added text 

Section 2: Chairperson. The Chairperson shall preside at all meetings of the Authority. 

Except as otherwise authorized by resolution of the Authority, the Chairperson shall execute all 

agreements, contracts, deeds and any other instruments of the Authority. At each meeting, the 

Chairperson shall submit such recommendations and information considered proper concerning 

the business, affairs and policies of the Authority. 

 

Section 3: Vice Chairperson. The Vice Chairperson shall, in the event of absence or 

disability of the Chairperson, perform all of the duties and responsibilities of the Chairperson. 

 

Section 4: Treasurer. The Treasurer shall have the care and custody of all funds of the 

Authority and shall deposit or cause the same to be deposited in the name of the Authority in 

such banks and/or trust companies in the State of New York as designated by the Authority or 

invested in accordance with the Act and Section 98-a of the State Finance Law. Any deposit of 

such moneys shall be secured by (or guaranteed by) obligations of the United States, the State of 

New York, or Livingston County, of a market value equal at all times to the amount on deposit. 

The Treasurer shall keep or cause to be kept regular books of account showing receipts and 

expenditures, and shall render to the Authority as the Authority shall require an account of 

transactions and also of the financial condition of the Authority.  

 

          Section 5: Secretary. The Secretary shall keep the records of the Authority, 

including the records required to be maintained in, Article (3, Section 2 of these By Laws, shall 

act as secretary of the meetings of the Authority and its committees and record all votes, shall 

keep a record of the proceedings of the Authority in a journal of proceedings, and shall perform 

duties incident to the office. The Secretary shall have the power to affix the Authority seal to all 

contracts and other instruments authorized to be executed by the Authority. The Secretary shall 

provide all Members with a copy of the agenda for regular meetings two (2) days prior to the 

meeting to the address of each Member designated by him/her for such purpose (or, if none is 

designated by him/her for such purpose, to his/her last known address). 

 

Section 6: Additional duties. The officers of the Authority shall perform such other 

duties and functions as may from time to time be authorized by resolution of the Authority or be 

required by the Authority, by the By Laws of the Authority or be the rules and regulations of the 

Authority. The Chairperson shall have the power to appoint, on a temporary basis until the 

Authority next meets, an acting Treasurer, Vice Chairperson, or Secretary in the event these 

positions become vacant or their office holders cannot fulfill their duties due to absence or 

disability. 

 

Section 7: Election of Officers. The first officers of the Authority shall be elected at the 

first meeting of the Authority. Thereafter, all officers of the Authority shall be elected at the 

annual meeting of the Authority from among the Members of the Authority and shall hold office 

for one year or until the successors are elected and qualified. Nothing herein shall prevent an 

individual from succeeding himself/herself in office. 

 

Section 8: Removal and vacancies. All officers serve at the pleasure of the Authority and 

an officer may be removed or have his/her authority suspended by the Authority at any time, 



 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

H:\PROCEDURES\POLICY\WASA policy approved\A05-001 Bylaws-linked.doc 

Approved April 23, 2008   

Underline = LCWSA legislation,     ( ) = Deleted text,    Bold = added text 

with or without cause. If an office becomes vacant for any reason, the Members of the Authority 

shall have the power to fill such vacancy. 

 

 

ARTICLE G: RECORDS 

(PUBLIC OFFICERS LAW, ARTICLE 6) 

 

Section 1: Definition. “Record means any information kept, held, filed, produced, or 

reproduced by, with or for the Authority, in any physical form whatsoever, including, but not 

limited to, reports, statements, examinations, memoranda, opinions, folders, files, books, 

manuals, pamphlet, forms, papers, designs, drawing, maps, photos, letters, microfilms, computer 

tapes or discs, rules, regulations or codes.” 

 

Section 2: Records required to be maintained. The Authority shall maintain the 

following records: (a) a record of the final vote of each Member in every Authority proceeding in 

which the Member votes, (b) a record setting forth the name, public office address, title and 

salary of every Member, officer or employee of the Authority, and (c) a reasonably detailed 

current list by subject matter of all records in the possession of the Authority. 

 

 

ARTICLE H: AMENDMENT OF BY LAWS 

 

Section 1: Amendment and Repeal. By Laws may be repealed (except where provisions 

of sections of the Laws of the State of New York are incorporated), amended (except where 

provisions of sections of the Laws of the State of New York are incorporated) or adopted by the 

Board. 

 

Section 2: Filing of Bylaws. The Secretary of the Authority shall file a certified copy of 

the Bylaws, and any amendments thereto, with the office of the Livingston County Clerk. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

H:\PROCEDURES\POLICY\WASA policy approved\A05-001 Bylaws-linked.doc 

Approved April 23, 2008   

Underline = LCWSA legislation,     ( ) = Deleted text,    Bold = added text 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



This is an Equal Opportunity Program. Discrimination is prohibited by Federal law.   Complaints of discrimination may be filed 
with USDA, Director, Office of Civil Rights, Room 326-W, Whitten Building, 1400 Independence Ave., SW, Washington, DC 

20250-9410 

     
    
      
 
        

 
Catherine Muscarella 
Executive Director 
 
 
 
FINAL – Privileges of the Floor 
 
Date: October 27, 2004 
 
 

Anyone wishing to have privileges of the floor at a LCWSA Board meeting must provide notice three 
business days before the meeting date.   Notice may be given to any Board member or officer of the Board in 
person or via phone, fax, e-mail or mail.  The Chairman of the Board may limit time and number of privileges 
of the floor granted at any meeting.  
 

It is the discretion of the Chairman of the Board or majority of the Board if privileges will be granted under or 
outside of this policy.  
 
 Adopted Oct. 27, 2004 

1997 D’Angelo Drive 
PO Box 396  
Lakeville, NY 14480 
Phone: (585) 346-3523 
e-mail: cmuscarella@co.livingston.ny.us 

F Fax: (585) 346-0954 
T TTY NY: (800) 662-1220 
 
 

 

mailto:cmuscarella@co.livingston.ny.us


















 1 

A05-005 
Updated 12/2006 

no approval required 
SUMMARY OF FILING REQUIREMENTS 

 
 
Annual Report    
 
 Due Date:   90 days after end of fiscal year 
 
 Content:  
  1. Operations & accomplishments 
  2. Revenues & Expenses 
  3. Assets & Liabilities 
  4. Status of reserve & other special funds 
  5. Schedule of bonds/notes outstanding, incurred, & redeemed 
 
 Where to File: 
 
  - NYS Authority Budget Office 
  - Governor 
  - Senate Finance Committee, chairman 
  - Senate Finance Committee, ranking minority member 
  - Assembly Ways & Means Committee, chairman 
  - Assembly Ways & Means Committee, ranking minority member 
  - State Comptroller 
  - Livingston County Board of Supervisors 
  - Livingston County Treasurer 
 
 
 Public Authorities Law Reference: 2800 and 1199-ssss 
 
 
Budget 
 
 Due Date: 90 days prior to start of fiscal year 
 

Content: Budget for upcoming year, current year & actual receipts/expenses for last 
completed year 

 
 Where to File: 
 
  - NYS Authority Budget Office 
  - Governor 
  - Senate Finance Committee, chairman 
  - Senate Finance Committee, ranking minority member 
  - Assembly Ways & Means Committee, chairman 
  - Assembly Ways & Means Committee, ranking minority member 
   

Public Authorities Law Reference: 2801 



 2 

 
 
Audit Report 
 
 Due Date: 30 days after receipt from auditor 
 
 Content: Report by external auditor 
 
 Where to File: 
 

   - NYS Authority Budget Office 
   - Governor 
   - Senate Finance Committee, chairman 
   - Senate Finance Committee, ranking minority member 
   - Assembly Ways & Means Committee, chairman 

  - Assembly Ways & Means Committee, ranking minority member  
 

 Public Authorities Law Reference: 2802 and 1199-ssss 
 
Note:  As part of audit the 'Annual Update Document' needs to be completed on the NYS 
Comptroller's form.  This is due to the NYS Comptroller's Office by February 28th (but a 60-
day extension is typical) 
 
 
Personnel Report 
 
 Due Date: January 15th 
 

Content: Personnel service schedule indicating position, grade, salary, and title 
for each employee in summary form 

 
 Where to File: 
 

   - NYS Comptroller 
   - Senate Finance Committee, chairman 
   - Assembly Ways & Means Committee, chairman 
 


	03.15.23 - Agenda.pdf
	March 15, 2023 at 8:00 a.m.
	Watershed Education Center (Vitale Park)
	Lakeville, NY 14480

	Agend Packet Webversion.pdf
	Agenda Packet.pdf
	Agenda Packet.pdf
	02.15.2023 - Unreviewed Minutes.pdf
	Unreviewed Minutes
	January 18, 2023 at 8:00 am
	Watershed Education Center (Vitale Park)
	Lakeville, NY 14480
	Operations and Capital Report

	03.08.23 - Unreviewed Minutes.pdf
	March 8, 2023 at 8:00 a.m.
	Watershed Education Center (Vitale Park)
	Lakeville, NY 14480

	Financial Report.pdf
	2023-02-28 - LCWSA 2022 Self Assessment Internal Controls.pdf
	2023 Final Workplan (002).pdf
	2023-02-14 - Policy update memo.pdf

	Formatted Policies.pdf
	A-001 - LCWSA Mission.pdf
	A-002 By-Laws of the LCWSA.pdf
	A-003 Code of Ethics.pdf
	PURPOSE
	SCOPE
	POLICY
	I.  Responsibility of Directors and Employees
	II.  Implementation of Code of Ethics
	III.  Violations and Penalties
	IV.  Reporting Unethical Behavior

	A-004 Governance Charter.pdf
	PURPOSE
	SCOPE
	CHARTER
	I.  Power of the Governance Committee
	II.  Composition and Selection                                                                                                   The membership of the committee shall be as set forth in accordance with and pursuant to Article E, Section 1 of the Autho...
	III.  Committee Structure and Meetings
	IV.  Reports
	V.  Responsibilities
	VI.  Relationship to the Authority’s Board
	VII.  Evaluation of the Authority’s Policies
	VIII.  Other Responsibilities


	Agenda Packet
	2023-10 - RESOLUTION ADOPTING ADMINISTRATIVE POLICIES A-001 - A-004.pdf
	RESOLUTION NO. 2023-10

	Required Comm Letter.pdf

	Agenda Packet
	Livingston County Water and Sewer Authority FS draft.pdf
	CoverPage
	TableOfContents
	Opinion-updated
	MDNA
	BS
	Inc
	Footnotes
	new pages.pdf
	CF1
	CF2



	Agenda Packet
	Livingston County Water and Sewer Authority FS draft.pdf
	RSI3
	RSI4
	RSI5
	Sch I
	Sch II
	YellowBook

	2023-11 - RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE 2022 ANNUAL AUDIT.pdf


	page holder.pdf
	Current Policies.pdf
	A01-000  Public Authority Law-linked.pdf
	Public Authorities Law
	Public Authority Accountability Act of 2005

	A01-002 Ethics and Disclosure Law.pdf
	A05-002  Code of Ethics-linked.PDF
	A01-003 Public Authorities Law-title 8-linked.pdf
	A02-001 Enabling legislation.pdf
	A01-004 LC Resolution creating LCWSA-linked.PDF
	A01-005 NYS Public Service Law - Water-linked.PDF
	A02-002 LCWSA Mission-linked.pdf
	A02-002
	Adopted by LCWSA Board by motion at regular monthly meeting February 23, 2011
	Reviewed by LCWSA Board by motion at regular monthly meeting March 23. 2012
	Reviewed and approved by motion at regular monthly meeting April 23, 2014
	Reviewed and approved by motion at regular monthly meeting April 22, 2015
	Goal – Provision of reliable and environmentally sustainable sewer and water service
	First - Backup systems and emergency operations

	Goal- Affordable provision of water and sewer services
	Goal – High quality customer service

	A02-003 Policies to be filed at County Clerks Office-linked.PDF
	A02-004 Annual Internal Control Assessment-linked.PDF
	A05-000 Governance Committee Charter-linked.pdf
	A05-001 Bylaws.pdf
	A10-001 Privileges of the floor-linked.pdf
	A10-100 NYS Open Meeting Law-linked.PDF
	A05-005 Summary of Filing Requirements-linked.pdf





